W i g T
P

== MISSI55Ippy MUSEUN o ART— 2

L

¥
&
i

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
For the Year Ended Septeml)er 30, 2012

Department of Administration
Finance Division

Mayor Harvey JOl’lIlSOIl, Jr.



CITY OF JACKSON
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

" INTRODUCTION SECTION

Letter of Transmittal

GFOA Certificate of Achievernent

Organizational Chart

List of Elected and Appointed Officials

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Audiior's Report on Financial Statements and Supplementary information
Management's Discussion and Analysis

Basic Financial Statements:
Governmant-wide Financial Statements:
Statermant of Net Assels
Statement of Activities

Furd Financial Statements:
Governmantat Funds;
Balance Shest
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds o the Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances
Reconciiation of the Statement Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund
Balances of Governmental Funds 1o the Statement of Activities
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Budgst and Actual - General Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Experviitures, and Changes In Fund Balances-
Budget and Actuat - Federal Grants Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Reveniues, Expenditures, and Changes In Fund Balances-
Budget and Actual - Improvement Fund

Proprietary Funds:
Statement of Net Assets
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changas in Fund Net Assels
Staternent of Cash Flows

Fiduciary Funds:
Siatemnent of Net Assets
Staternent of Changes in Net Assets

Notes to the Financial Slatements

Required Supplementary [nformation:
Scheduie of Funding Progress - Employess’ Retiremant Systems

PAGE

{ - wiit

14
16
18
17
18- 23
24
25
25-27
28
29-~30
31
32

33-80

81




CITY OF JACKSON
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDEDR SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED)

Supplementa) Data:
Combining and Individual fund Stalements and Schedules:
Nonmajor Governmentat Funds:
Combining Balance Sheet
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expendiiurss, and Changes in Fund Balances
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budget and Actual - Parks and Recreation Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budget and Actual - State Grants Spedial Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budget and Actuat - Disability and Relief Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budget and Actual - Debt Service Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expendilures, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budget and Actual - 1982 Industrial Park Bond Capital Project Fund
Scheduls of Revenuss, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budget and Actual - 1998 General Obligation Bond Fund
Schedule of Revenuss, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budget and Actual - 2003 General Obligation Bong Fund
Schedilé of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budget and Actual - 2006 General Obligation Bond Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expendiluraes, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budgset and Actual - 2009 Gensral Obligation Bond Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budget and Actyal - 2009 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Project Fund
Sehedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changess in Fund Balances-
Budget and Actual - 2008 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budget and Aclual - 2009 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances-
Budget and Actual - 2012 Gensral Obligation Note Capital Project Fund

Nonmajor Proprietary Funds:
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Nef Assets
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Fiduclary Funds:
Combining Statement of Changes in Assels and Liabiliies - Trusl Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Net Assets - Trust Funds
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities - Agsncy Funds

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds:
Comparafive Scheduies by Source
Schedule by Function and Aclivity -
Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity

PAGE

82 -83
84 -85

86

g7

&8

89

80

9

92

93

94

95

o6

a7

a8

20 <100

101
102

103
104
105

106
107 - 1089
110-112




CITY OF JACKSON
COMPRENENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

TABLE OF CONTENTS (CONTINUED)

STATISTICAL SECTION {UNAUDITED)

Met Assets by Component

Changes In Net Assets

Governmental Activities Tax Ravenues by Souree

Fund Balances of Governmentat Funds

Changes In Fund Balances of Goverrynentat Funds

General Governmental Tax Revenues by Sources

Assessed Value and Estimated Aclual Value of Taxable Property
Property Tax Rates - Direct and Qverlapping Governments
Principat Property Taxpayers

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by }“ype

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt

Legal Debt Margin Information

Pledged-Revenue Coverage

Demographic and Economic Statistics

Principal Employsars

Full-lme Equivalent City Governrment Employess by Function
Operating Indicators by Fungian

Capltal Assets Statistics by Fundtion

PAGE

113

114

115 -116

117

118

110

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128

128

136

131

132

133

134



CITY OF JACKSON
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

TABLE OF CONTENTS {CONTINUED)

SINGLE AUDIT SECTION

independent Auditor's Report on Internal Conirol Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance

and Other Matlers Based on an Audit of Financlal Statements Performed in Accordance With
Government Auditing Standards

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Notes to the Schedule of Expendifures of Federal Awards

independent Auditor's Report on Compliance With Resuirements That Could Have a Direct and
Material Effect on Each Major Program and on internai Control Over Compliance in Accordance
with OMB-Circular A-133

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

Corrective Action Plan

Independent Auditor's Report on Compliance with State Laws and Regulations

Bupplemental Data:
Schedule of Bonds of City Officlals

PAGE

135- 136
137 -140

141 - 142

143 ~144
145 - 151
162 -153
154 - 156

187

158



INTRODUCTION SECTION



s

Bt e

Bepartment of Administration Post Office Box 17

Jackseon, Mississippi 392050017

Ui

Harvey Johnson, Jr.
Mayer of the Ciry of Jackson

May 3, 2013

Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and
Citizens of the City of Jackson, Mississippi:

A requirement of Mississippi law is that local governments annually publish audited financial
statements. Accordingly, the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2012 for the City of Jackson, MS is submitted herewith.

An unqualified opinion on the financial statements of the City of Jackson, MS has been issued
by Banks, Finley & White Co. for the year ended September 30, 2012. The Independent
Auditor's Report is included in the front of the financial section of the CAFR. The City of
Jackson is also required to have an audit performed in compliance with the Single Audit Act of
1996 regarding granis received from the federal government. The Single Audit report was
issued by Banks, Finley & White Co.

The dedicated and professional staff of the Finance Division, Department of Administration,
prepared this report in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAP), We maintain that the data is accurate in all material aspects and is
presented in a manner designed to set forth fairly the financial aclivities of the varlous funds of
the local government. The responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the fairness and
- completensss of the presentation, including any disclosures necessary to enable the reader to
gain an understanding of the fiscal affairs of the City, is entrusted to the administration of the
local government. We further assert that the internal controls implemented provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements.

All of the governmental activities and business-type activities of the City of Jackson, MS, as well
as the Jackson Redevelopment Authority (JRA) and the Capital City Convention Center
Commission {component units of the city) are included in the 2012 CAFR. JRA and the Capital
City Convention Center Commission are presented as a proprietary fund type within the CAFR
because the City exercises significant oversight responsibility. The approval of JRA's
administrative operating costs and appointments to its Board of Commissioners are authorized
by the City’s governing body. Additionally, JRA accounts for its separate funds and maintains
revenues sufficient to meet their operating costs, debt service and system replacement and
maintenance needs for their parking garages and other urban renswal projects. The Capital City
Convention Center Commission is accountable as a component unit of the City because of its
fiscal dependency on the City of Jackson.

Four Proprietary Funds, which provide a variety of services on’a fee-for-services basis, are
among those funds whose financial operations are included in the CAFR. These Proprietary



Funds are the Waier/Sewage Disposal System, Madison Sewage Disposal System,
Transportation, and Sanitation and Recycling.

Organizationally, the 2012 CAFR provides information in three major sections: Introductory,
Financial, and Statistical. The Introductiory Section encompasses the Letier of Transmitial, the
Organizationat Chart of the Executive Branch of the City of Jackson, MS, and a list of principal
elected and appointed officials. The Financial Section consists of the Independent Accountants’
Report, the Basic Financial Statements, Notes to the Financial Statements and the various
individual fund and account group financial statements and schedules. Additionally, a narrative
introduction, overview, and analysis are provided in the form of Management's Discussion and
Analysis (MD&A). We recommend that the MDS8A on pages 3-11 be carefully examined by the
reader to provide a more congcise picture of the financial position of the City. '

DESCRIPTION OF CITY OF JACKSON, MS

Historical Background

The City of Jackson, MS was founded in 1821 at the site of a trading post that was situated on a
*high and handsome bluff' on the west bank of the Pearl River, which is located in the central
region of the state. Ht is said that the trading post was operated by a French-Canadian trader
named Louis LeFleur, who gave the town its original name of LeFleur's Bluff. The Mississippl
Legislature wanted the seat of government moved out of the Natchez area and inte 3 more
ceniral location. Thomas Hinds, James Pation and Willlam Lattimore were then commissioned
to locate the ideal site for the state capital. Thelr report to the General Assembly was that
LeFleur's Bluff had "beautiful and healthful surroundings, good water, abundant timber,
navigable waters, and neamess to the Natchez trace.”" A legislative act dated November 28,
1821 authorized the location to be the permanent seat of government and that it would be
named Jackson in honor of Major General Andrew Jackson who later would become the
seventh president of the Uniled Siates. A $3,500 contract was let to build Mississippi's first
capitol, a two-story brick structure 40 feet by 30 feet, where the opening session was held on
December 23, 1822, A second capitol building, popularly known as the "Old Capitol” was
completed in 1840 and remainad in use until 1903. The building, restored in 1861, has become
Mississippi's Historical Museum. The New Capitol building, a magnificent structure patterned
after the National Capitol, was completed in 1903.

During the Civil War, the town was ravaged and bumed three times by Union froops under the
command of General Willlam Tecumseh Sherman. The destruction prompted the unwelcome
nickname of "Chimneyville.” Although Jess than 8,000 peopie lived in Jackson at the turn of the
century, its population began accelerating rapidly after 1900.

Jackson Today

Presently, Jackson has 173,514 citizens within it radius of 113 square miles., Since 1985, the
City of Jackson, MS operates under the mayor-council form of government.  Prior to 1085, the
commission form of government, which included & mayor and two commissioners elecled at-
farge, was in place. Currently, the municipal government is comprised of the mayor, who is
elected at large, and seven council members, who are elected by ward. The mayor and council
members, who have policy-making and legislative authority, serve four-year terms. The Mayor
appoints, and the City Council approves, the Chief Administrative Officer, City Aftorney, and

ii



eight department heads. Cily leaders are committed to ensuring that the municipality has a
healthy financial outlook while providing essential services.

A comprehensive range of municipal services including public safety, street maintenance, water,
sewer, and sanifation services, social programs, recreation activities, cultural events and
general administration are provided to Jackson’s citizens. These services are provided in the
context of the broad public policy initiatives as determined by the slected officials of Jackson,
MS. Youth and Education, Crime Prevention, Public Safety, Neighborhood Enhancement,
Economic Development, Changes in City Government, Quality of Life, and Infrastructure and
Transportation were the policy initiatives for FY 2012,

The City of Jackson, MS is required to submit its municipal budget on an annual basis to the
City Council for adoption on or before the fifteenth day of the last month in the fiscal year. A
budget process, linking policy initiatives, services, and available resources, is utilized to develop
the budget. As the primary financial planning and control document, the budget provides the
foundation for City operations. The budget is crafied to include expenditures by fund: General,
Special Revenue, Debt Service, Proprietary, Trust, and Capital; by department. Administration,
General Government, Human & Cultural, Parks & Recreation, Police, Fire, Personnel, Public
Works, and Planning; and by category: Personal Services, Supplies and Material, Other
Services and Charges, and Capital Quilay. General Properly Taxes, Licenses and Permits,
Fines and Forfeitures, Intergovernmental, Admissions, Fees, Rentals, Interest, Other Revenues,
and Operating Transfers are the categories that comprise the revenue budget. During the fiscal
year, department heads may lransfer resources within a department by following established
guidelines, These transfers, along with other budget adjustments, are incorporated into Budget
Revisions that must be approved by the City Council. The Executive Branch is afforded the
opportunity fo submit a maximum of three Budget Revisions to the City Council for approval
within the fiscal year.

ECONOMIC QUTLOOK

The City is the seat of government for the State of Mississippi and home to a diverse sconomy.
In addition to governmental services, major industries located within the city limits or in close
proximity include the Nissan auto plant and manufacturers of power, metal fabrication, airplane
parts, and machine parts and engines, However due to the national economic downturn, the
cily, slate, and industries alike have been impacted by the national recession. Jackson
continues to be the site of the largest financial institufions in the state. Numerous healthcare
faclliies and health service agencies, including the state’s only medical school provide
employment to more than 30,090 professionals and staff.

As the population, educational, cultural, medical, and governmental center of the state, the
Jackson mefropolitan surrounding area has a relatively stable unemployment rate of 7.5 percent
with an employed labor force of 250,330, This unemployment rate compares favorably to the
state's overall unemployment rate of 8.1 percent. Over the previous years, the unemployment
rate has ranged from a high of 8.2 percent to a low of 6.0 percent for 2012.

Jackson, M3, however, is highly dependent upon the public sector as an economic engine.
While public sector employment is generally more stable than private sector employment, the
spin-off businesses and entrepreneurial opportunities that are needed for sustained growth is
not generated at the desired level. Thus, the economic development efforts must look toward
business-government parinerships as a part of the solution. Towards that end, Jackson is
poised fo realize a number of developments of mixed use facilities in the immediate future,



The City has also begun o benefit from a variely of downtown revitalization efforts. These
efforts include a recently renovated multi-modal transportation center, completion of a major
portion of a parkway project to connect downtown fo Jackson State Universily, and creation of
an entertainment district in and around Farish Sireet, the oldest African American nationally
designated historic district. Occupancy in the downtown area is at 85 percent and is expected
to remain stable. The high percentage of college-aducated residents who reside in Jacksonis a
positive trend that can further the City’s efforts to becoming a dynamic urban center.

The totatl renovation and completion of the King Edwards Hotel (Hilton Garden) and Class A
office space at the Pinnacle building along with the opening of the Standard Life Building as a
mixed use facility has generated a resurgence of downtown.

Jackson properly owners pay property taxes for county, city, and school totaling $171.35 per
$1000 of assessed value. The assessment rate is 10 percent for residential property, 15 percent
for other real property and 30 percent for personal property. There is no local income fax in
Jackson,

FINANCIAL OUTLOOK

The City's financial stability is evidenced by the general fund reserve, fund balance reserve
pelicy, bond ratings and other fiscal determinanis. An Unprestricied General Fund Reserve
policy that is within range of the level cited by GFOA recommended practice has been adopted
by the City Council. The City's unreserved fund balance amounted to 23 percent of the adopted
General Fund operating revenues for FY 12,

The unassigned General Fund balance availlable for future appropriation is $26,310,107 milllon,
which includes $8,675,153 million aftributable 1o the City’s General Fund reserve policy. An
additional $4,568,019 million Is reserved for inventeries and state tort claims.

The City remains an excelient place for investors with ratings of Aa2 on G.0. bonds and
Aa3 on Revenue bonds by Moody's and AA- on G.O. bonds and A+ on Revenue bonds b
Standard & Poor's. :

The estimated rafio of net bonded debt to estimated assessed valuations and the amount of
bonded debt per capita in FY 2012 are useful gauges of the City's debt position.

POPULATION: 173,514
BONDED DEBT PER CAPITA $ 703.06
REAL & PERSONAL PROPERTY ASSESSED VALUE: $§ 1,046,591,521
NET BONDED DEBT (G.O): $ 131,691,624
RATIO OF DEBT TO ASSESSED VALUE: 12.36%



The following charts reflect activities within the Debt Service Fund and Proprietary Funds:

BONDS QUTSTANDING

_ Amount Quistanding Amount Qutstanding
Category Sept, 30, 2012 Sept. 30, 2011
General Obligation $ 131,200 $ 131,720
General Obligation Note 402 -

Tax Increment Limited Obligation 6,102 6,541
Bonded Debt $ 137,794 $ 138,261
Revenue Bonds ' ‘ 154,436 148,325
Urban Renewal Bonds - 9,865 10,853
Component Unit
Total $ 302,089 $ 297,538

PROPRIETARY FUNDS — CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Net Income {Loss) 2012 2011:
Water/Sewage Disposal Fund $  (6,530) $ 7,562
Madison Sewage Disposal Fund (36} 10
Transportation Fund 1,476 559
Sanitation and Recydling Fund 342 414

Total Net Income $ (4,748) $ 8,545




The City of Jackson parlicipates in two refirement systems administered by the Public
Employees’ Retirement System of Mississippi (PERS). Both systems are defined benefit plans
and include a multi employer, cost-sharing pension plan and an agent multi employer pension
nlan. Substantially, the City of Jackson full-ime employees participate in the mulli employer
cost-sharing pension plan. Benefit and contribution provisions are established by state law and
may be amended only by the State of Mississippl Legislature. The employer and employees’
contributions represented 14.26% and 9.00% of covered payroll, respectively.

Additionally, the City maintains the Employess' Group Benefit Fund (Internal Service) to account
for the accumulation of revenues, principally contributions from the City of Jackson and
employees to be used io fund future liabilities and current payment of employee medical claims
and related administration expenditures of the City's group benefit plan. Revenues tolaled
$8,137,831 and employee benefit costs were $14,722 224 during fiscal year 2012, The City's
General fund appropriated $6,529,160 o the Employees’ Group Benefit fund.

FINANCIAL POLICIES

There are several distinct policies that provide the framework for the financial operations of the
City. One such policy is the commitment to conservatism by the Executive Branch in projecting
its annual revenues, This policy provides a safeguard to drastic reductions in a given budgest
gycle in the event of under budgeted or unbudgeted costs. The City of Jackson, MS aiso has a
policy to carefully allocate one time revenues such that operating expenses are nof increased.

SELECT RECOGINTIONS

Recognized as one of the 10 best places to live in America for under $40,000/year by U.8.
News and Worid Report.

Selected as one of the top 100 Metro Economies in America by U.8. Conference of Mayors.

Recognized as one of 100 Best Communities for young people by American Promise Alliance
and ING. :

Certificate of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada awards
a Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting fo a governmental unit that publishes a
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) that meets the GFOA standards. GFOA
awarded a Ceriificate of Excellence fo the City in 2011 for ils CAFR. A Cerlificate of
Achievement is valid for one year only. The City's management believes that #s 2012 CAFR
confirms fo the Certificate of Achievement program reguirement and therefore will submit it for
review.
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FUTURE INITATIVES

The Construction and development of a Convention Center Hotel remains a top priority for the
City of Jackson, It is expected that many developers will respond to the Request for Proposals
and once the hotel is developed will employ 300 persons within the holél and restaurant,

Farish Street Entertainment District is being developed as a tourist destination that will have 14
restaurants and clubs in phase one. These venues will provide live music, food and
opportunities for local talent to perform. The number of jobs is estimated at 600.

The 21 acre property, centrally located off of 1-565, known as the Old Mississippi Schooi for The
Blind has been secquired and is the site for the Dislrict at Eastover Development which is
proposed to include a 100,000 square foot office building, an 80-120 room hotel, a 45,000
square—~foot grocer, a restaurant, 125,000 square feet of retail, 120,000 square feet of
residential units, and a four screen movie theater,

The Landmark Health Care Facility development is nearing completion and will be a state of the
art five story medical office complex with medical offices and retail outlets located on State
Street.

Growth along the Mississippl Healthcare Corridor (Woodrow Wilson Drive) is expected in the
soming years with University of Mississippi Medical Center having hired 1,800
employees over the last 18 months.

The Highway 80 initiative plans for a cooperative effort amongst many different groups. The
City of Jackson has relocated 300 City employees to the Metro Center Mall to create an impetus
for other businesses to locate within that area. The Jackson Redevelopment Authority has
designated the Highway 80 Corridor as an Urban Renewal Area and has shown different sites
to developers for future development.

The construction of the Iron HorselLive Music Venue/Catering business will occupy an
estimated 10,000 square feef, with the Mississippi Music Experience Museum in 4,000 square
feet, and the Headquarters for the Mississippi Blues Trail in the remaining 1,000-2,000 square
feet

The development of JSU's proposed 50,000 seat Domed Stadium with the potential 1o
redevelop the gateway from JSU to Downtown. This is a $200 million dollar development.

The adaplive re-use of historic structures called "Capitol Lofts” will create 31 units of artist
housing, community areas, and art gallery/studio space. This development is localed across
the streel from the successful King Edward/Standard Life Mixed-Use Project and will further the
revitalization of the western end of Downtown Jackson. Capitol Art Loft, LLC is a Joint Venture
between HRI Properties and Black White Development.

The Midtown development foundation has created new infill housing and retail development.
The project has created a new since of community focusing on the arts as a means to energize
the area. By parinering with Milisap's college, the continued growth of this community is
promising.
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BANKS, FINLEY,
WHITE & CO.

CERTIFIED FUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable Mayor Harvey Johnsen, Jr.
and Honorable Members of the City Councill
City of Jackson, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activitles, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Jackson, Mississippi (the Cily), as of and -
for the year ended Septernber 30, 2012, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financtal
statemente as listed in the table of contents. We alse have audited the financial statemenis of
each of the Gity's nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, and internal service funds
presented s supplemental information in the accompanying combining and individual fund
financial statements as of and for the year ended September 30, 2012, as listed in the table of
contents. These financlal statements are the responsibility of the City of Jackson, Mississippi,
management. Our responsibility Is to express an opinion-on these financial statements based on
our audit. We did not eudit the financial statements of the component units of the City of Jackson,
Mississippi, as follows: Jackson Redevelopment Authority and Capital City Convention Center
Commission which statements reflect asseis and revenues of 22.04 percent and 12.88 percent,
respectively, of the business-ype acfivities funds. Those financial statements were audited by
other auditors, whose report thereon has been furmnished fo us, and our opinion, insofar as it
relates to the amounts inchuded for this component unit, is based solely on the report of the other
auditors.

We conducted ocur audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governmental

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test

basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial stafements. An audit also

includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by

management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We belisve that’
our audit and the report of other auditors provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinicn, based on cur audit and the report of other audifors, the respeciive financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respect, the financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activitles, the aggregale discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Jackson, Mississippi, as of September 30, 2012, and the respective changes in financial position,
cash flows and, the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund, the Federal Grant
Special Revenue Fund, and the Capital Project Improvement fund, where applicabile, thereof, for
the year then ended in conformity with accounting principies generally accepted in the United
States of America.

In sccordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated May 3,
2013, on our consideration of the City of Jackson, Misslssippi's intermnal contrel over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts and
grants, That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
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Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of
our audit, :

Accounting principles generally accepted In the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and budgetary comparison information on pages 3 through 11 and 81
through 85 ba presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economie, or historical context. We have apolied ceriain
limited procedures to the supplementary informafion in accordance with the auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquirdes of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency
with management’s response to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial slatements. We do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on the information because the imited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance

Qur audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financlal statements that
collectively comprise the City of Jackson, Mississippl's financial staternents as a whole. The

- introductory section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements, budgestary
comparison schedules, capital assets schedules and sististical section are presented for
purposas of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. The
accompanylng schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by .S, Office of Management and Budgst Circular A-133, Audits of Siate, .
Local Governments, and Non-Profifs Organfzations, and is alsc not a required part of the basic
financial statements of the Cliy of Jackson, Mississippi. The combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the
responsibifify of management and were derived from and reiate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used 1o prepare the financial statements. The information have
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audil of the financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly o the
underlying accounting and other records used io prepare the financial statements themselves,
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of Amnerica. In cur opinion, the information is fairly stated in all materials respects in
relations to the financial statements taken as a whole. The infroductory section and statistical
sactions have not been sublected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on
them.

Ry, W i o

BANKS, FINLEY, WHITE & CC.

Jackson, Mississippi
May 3, 2013



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As financial management of the City of Jackson, we offer readers of the City of Jackson's financial
statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Jackson for the
fiscal year ended September 30, 2012. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here
in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal, which can be
found on pages i - vill of this report.

Fmancra! Highlights
The assets of the City of Jackson exceeded its liabilifies at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$419 million {nef assets). Of this amount, there is $32 million in unrestricted net assets, which may be
used to meet the government's ongoing obligations o ciizens and crediors.

«  The government's total net agsets decreased by ($56.2) mitlion,

+  As of the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson's governmental funds reported combined
snding fund halances of $49.7 million, & decrease of ($6.8) million in comparison with the prior year.
Approximately fifty-three (53) percent of this total amount is $26.3 milion (unassigned) and is
available for spending at the government's discretion {unassigned fund bafance).

- At the end of the current fiscal year unassigned fund balance for the general fund was $26.3 million,
or twenty-six {26) percent of folal general fund expenditures.

. The City of Jackson'’s total debt increased by $3.4 million {1.0 percent) during the current fiscal year.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended fo serve as an introduction to the City of dacksens basic
financial statements. The City of Jackson’s basic financial statements comprise three components: 1)
government-wide financial staterments, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial
statements. This report 2iso contains supplementary information in addition fo the basic financial
statements themselves.

Governmeni-wide financial statements. The governmeni-wide financial statements are designed to
provide readers with @ broad overview of the City of Jackson's finances, in a manner similar to a private-
secior business.

The statement of net assets presents information on all of the City of Jackson's assets and Habilities, with
the difference between the two reporied as nef assels. Over time, increases or decreases in net assels
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Jackson is improving or
deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the govemment's net assefs changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues .and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation ieave}.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Jackson that are.
principally supporied by taxes and intergovemmental revenues {governmental aclivifies) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City of Jackson include general
govamment, public safety, public works, human & cultural services, employee benefits, and interest on
long term debl, The business-type activities of the City of Jackson include water/sewer, transportatlon
and sanitation.

The government-wide financial statements include the Cily of Jackson itself (known as the primary
government), and a legally separate redevelopment authorily and Capital City Convention Center
Commission for which the City of Jackson is financially accountable. Financial information for these
component unifs are reported separately from the financial information presented for the primary
government itself.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-13 of this report.



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fund financial statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activilies or objectives. The City of Jackson, like othar
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. All of the funds of the City of Jackson can be divided into two categories:
governmental funds and proprietary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions
reported as governmenial activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows
and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end
of the fiscal year. Such Information may be useful in evaluating & government's near-term financing
requirements,

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presenited for governmental activities In the government-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may betlter undersiand the long-term impact of the government's nearterm financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheel and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation o facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activilies,

The City of Jackson maintains sideen {18} individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Federal Grant Fund, Debt Service
Fund, Improvement Fund, 1998 General Obligation Bond Fund, 2003 General Obligation Bond Fund,
2006 General Obligation Bond Fund, and 2008 Generai Obligation Bond Fund, all of which are
considered to be major funds. Data from the other eight {8) governmental funds are combined irfo a sin-
gle, aggregated preseniation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is
provided in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The City of Jackson adopis an annual budget for alf of its funds. A budgetary comparison statement has
been provided to demonsirate compliance with the budget.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 14-25 of this report.

Proprietary funds. The Cily of Jackson maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise
funds are used o report the same funclions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The City of Jackson uses enterprise funds to account for its Water/Sewage Disposal
System Fund, Madison Sewage Disposal System Funds, Transportation Fund and Sanitation Funds.
internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate and allocate costs internally among
the City of Jackson's various functions. The City of Jackson uses an internal Service Fund to account for
its Employee Group Health Benefit Fund. Because these services predominantly benefit governmental
rather than bhusiness-type functions, i has been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial s{atements.

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wids financial statements, only
in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate Information for the
Water/Sewage Disposal Sysiem Fund and Sanitation Fund, both of which are considered to be major
funds of the City of Jackson. Data from the other two {2} proprietary funds are combined into a single,
aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-maijor proprietary funds is provided
in the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report. The intemal Service Fund is presented in
the Proprietary Fund financial statements as governmental activities,

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 26-30 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduclary Funds are used to report assets held in a trustee of agency capacily for
others and therefore are not available to support City programs. The function of the City's principal trust
fund is discussed in Note 6.A.2. The reporting focus is on net assets and changes in net assets and are
reported using accounting principies similar to proprietary funds. The purpose of the City's Agency Funds
is o collect and remit to the related organizations the proceeds of a special sales tax received from the
State.

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can ba found on pages 31-32 of this report.
4



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Thea notes 1o the financial statements can be found on pages 33-80 of this report.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the City of Jackson's progress in funding
its obligation to provide pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees. Required
supplementary information can be found on page 81 of this report.

The combining statements referrad to earlier in connection with nen-major governmental funds and non-
major proprietary funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information on
pensions and other post-employment benefits. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules
can be found on pages 82-102 of this reporl.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position.
In the case of the City of Jackson, assets exceeded liabilities by $410 million at the close of September
30, 2012,

By far the iargest portion of the City of Jackson's net assets (88 percent) reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those
assels that is still outstanding. The City of Jackson uses these capital assels fo provide services to
cifizens; consequently, these asseis are not available for future spending. Although the City of Jacksorr's
investment in its capital assels is reported nei of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources; since the capitat assels themselves
cannot he used 1o liquidate these liabiliies.

City of Jackson's Net Assels
{amounts expressed in thousands)
Govaramental Business-iype
Ackivities | Activities _ Totak
2012 2011 2012 2011 2612 2911
Current and other assefs $ 147888 $ 150,389 5 91788 § 280,556 23,757 % 240445
Capitd assots - 261,238 286 482 358,491 350,564 849,729 637 016
Tolsl assets 436206 436,841 453 280 441,120 802486 877,961
fLong-term liabilifes cutstanding 180,507 183,589 174 841 167,373 355,348 0862
Other Elabiliies 97 438 91525 17851 BN 116,389 103,036
Totd Liakifides 277,845 275,114 182,792 178,884 470,737 453,808
INefassets:
Invested in capital assefs, nst )
of related debi 187 510 180,357 184,185 183,735 371,895 364,002
Restricied 15,041 17 468 - - 15,041 17 468
Unrasticted {41,280 (36,1003 73,303 7850 32,013 42 401
Total net assets T IBT.ZET TS B1.73 T§ 257488 § 26220 418,188 8 405062

The City of Jackson's total net assets decreased by $5.2 million during the current fiscal year.

Governmental activities. Governmental activities decreased the City of Jacksom's net assets by $.5

million.




CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

City of Jackson's Changes in Net Assets
{amounts expressed in thousands)
Governmental Business-iype
Activities Activities Total
2077 2011 Rie 2011 2012 i1
Revenues:
Program ravenues
Charges for services 8 16,954 & 14,078 % 60,581 § 58,580 77515 § 73656
Operatfing grants and contributions 10,114 11,570 831 706 10,745 12,278
Ceapital grants and contdhutions 1,970 5,025 2,844 2,568 4,814 7893
Seneral revenues:
Property taxes 74,856 68,108 - - 74,856 64,108
Sales taxes 32,701 31,656 - - 32,71 314656
Franchise taxes 8,218 7.878 - - 8,218 74878
Other 843 830 501 1,841 1,344 28671
Total revenues 145,656 138,143 84 537 64,695 210,193 203838
Expenses:
General governmant 29,456 28312 - - 29,456 29312
Publk safely 57,055 58,766 - - 57,055 59,166
Publc works 24,721 21,774 - - 24,721 21774
Human and cultural services 13,756 18,01 - - 13,758 18,041
Employee benefils 8,685 BE25 > - 8,686 8525
inferest on bng-ferm debt 7,448 5864 - - 7,448 5864
Water/Sewer - - 58,347 41,795 55,347 41,785
Nonmajor - - 7044 B84 7044 8,764
Sanitation - - 11,804 14,156 11,604 11,156
Total expenses 141,124 140,752 74,285 81,718 215,408 202467
increase in netassels before ransfers 4,535 {1,608} 8,748} 2,980 {5,213} 1,371
ransfers (5,000) {16,232) 5,000 5,564 - (4,6568)
nerease in net assets | (485) {11,841) {4,748} 8,544 {5,213} (5,297)
etassets - October 1, 2011 161,726 172,875 262,236 253,602 423,962 426,667
Prior year adjustment - 892 - - - 652
et assets - September 3§, 2012 § 161,261 & $ 257488 § 762,238 418748 & 423862

163,726

in FY 2007, the City issued $65 million in General Obligation Bonds on behalf of the Capital City
Ceonvention Cenfer Commission fo construct the Convention Center. A special sales tax levy was
established to pay the debt service for the bonds. The bonds couldn't be issued a2s revenue bonds
because of the uncertainty of the sales tax collections; therefore, the bonds were issued as GO Bonds of
the City with full, faith and credit of the City. The asset (the Convention Center faciiity) is the property of
the Capital City Convention Commission and recorded on the books of the Commission, but the lability
{the bonds to construct the Convention Center} is on the books of the Chy.

in prior years, the City had not presented the asset resulting from the 1887 contribution of bond proceeds
to fund the actuarial accrued liability for the MRS plan. in 2007, pursuant to GASB Statement No. 27,
Accounting for Pensions by Stale and Local Governmental Employers, the City calculated its net pension
obligation. In adopting GASB Statement No. 27, the City has increased net assets — beginning of year in
the government wide financial statements of governmental activities by $25.6 million {o recognize the net
pansion asset calculated under GASE Statement No., 27.



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT’S DiSCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Analysis of the Government's Funds

As noted earlier, the City of Jackson uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the City of Jackson’s governmental funds is to provide information on
near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in
assessing the City of Jackson’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve
as a useful measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

Business-type activities. Business-type activities decreased the City of Jackson’s net assets by ($4.7)
million. This decrease is primarily in the Water Sewer fund.

Expenses and Program Revenues-Business-Type Activities
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson's governmental funds reporfed combined
ending fund balances of $49.7 million, a decrease of ($6.8) million in comparison with the prior year.
Fifty-three (53) percent of this total amount is $26.3 milllon which is available for spending at the
government's discrefion (unassigned). The remainder of fund balance is as follows:

¢« Nonspendable - $2,159,625 is designated for inventories,
e Restricted - $658,112 is designated for public safety.

¢ Committed - 54,789,276 is designated for siale tort claims, capital outlay, and other restricted
purposes.

= Assigned - $48,733 is designated for cafeleria flexiable spending.

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Jackson. At the end of the current fiscal year,
unassigned fund balance of the general fund was $26.3 million, while total fund balance reached $34
million. As a measure of the general fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned fund
balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.

During the current fiscal year, the fund balance of the City of Jackson's general fund increased by
$839,246. The decrease in fund balance for the federal grant fund ($47,241) is for a variety of restricted
purposes. The debt service fund has a total fund balance increase of $499,267 which is partially revenus
from property taxes and the payment of debt. The decrease in fund balance for the improvement fund
($5,444,475) Is fo liquidate contracts and purchase orders. The reduction in fund balance for the 1998 GO
Bond ($130,022) and the decrease in fund balance for the 2003 GO Bond {$1,213,007) is the natural
spend down of bond proceeds. The reduction in fund balance for the 2006 GO Bond ($4,362) is for the
construction of the Capital City Convention Center, The 2009 GO Bond had a fund balance decrease of
{$1,703,080) due to indebtedness incurred during the year,

The dshi service fund has a fotal fund balance of $2.3 million, all of which Is reserved for the payment of
debt service, ' :

Proprietary funds. The City of Jackson's proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund at the end of the year amounted fo
$69 million, The decrease in het assets for the Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund was ($6.5) million.

General Fund Budgetary RHighlights

Differences between the original budget and the final amended budget expenditures were $6.5 million
increase and can be briefly summarized as follows:

s 5$2.9 million increase In capital outlay

»  $.5 million decrease in contract services and charges
e $2.9 million increase in personneal services

« 5.2 million increase in supplies and materials

Significant budgetary expenditure variances between the final amended budget and aciual results are as
follows:

« Actual personnel services for all city departments was $6.6 million less than the finai budget.
Actual capital outlay for ali city depariments was $1.2 million less than the final budget.

s  Actual contractual services and charges throughout all city depariments was $5.1 million less
than the final budget. : '

« Actual supplies and materials for all city departments was $1.7 million less than the final
budget.



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGERMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Jackson’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type
activities as of September 30, 2012, amounts io $650 million (net of accumulated depreciation). This
investment tn capital assets includes land, bulldings and system, improvements, machinery and
equipment, park facilities, roads, and bridges. The total increase in the City of Jackson's investment in
capital assets for the current fiscal year was 2% (a8 1% Increase for governmental activities and a 1%
increase in business activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

» - The increase in total net assets was the continued expenditure of prior bond issue proceeds
for expansion and replacement of infrastructure.

Chy of Jackson's Capital Assels
{net of dapreciation)
{amounts expressed in thousan ds}

Governmental Business-type
Activiies Acfivities Total
202 2011 2612 2011 2012 2011
Land [ 14500 % 4527 $ 1,838 § 1,838 § B,4838 % 16,365
Bullding & systems ' 55,880 57,3714 40,575 43,043 085,255 100,414
Migchinery and equipment 11,985 11,886 18,373 16,022 28,338 27,908
| nfrasiruciure 114,907 118,589 141,365 146 558 256272 265,147
Construction in progress 93,086 834,078 158,540 143,103 252,626 227,182
Total § 281238 § 285452 § 358481 § 350,564 5 649,726 § 637,018

Additional information on the City of Jackson’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 53-55 of
thils report.

Long-term debt, At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Jackson had iotal bonded debt
outstanding of $282 million. Of this amount, $137 million comprises debt backed by the full faith and
credit of the City. The remainder of the City of Jackson's debt represents bonds secured so!e!y by
specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue bonds).

City of Jackson's Cutstanding Debt
Generdl Obligaton and Revenue Bonds and Gther Loans
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Gipvernmentat Businesstype
Activities Activities Total
20612 2014 202 2011 2012 2011
General obligation bonds 131,280 & 431,720 $ - % - $ 131290 § 131,720
Revenue bonds - - 154 430 148, 325 154,430 148,325
Tax incrementbonds 6,102 8,541 - - 8,102 6,541
Special obligation bonds - - - - - .
| gans, noles andleases 27,883 28,838 15647 - 18,857 43,530 45 385

Total $ 165275 § 167,000 $ 170,077 § 164,882 $ 335352 § 331,981

The City of Jackson's fotal debt increased by $3.4 million during the current fiscal year.

10



CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The bond ratings services from Standard & Poor's and Moody's establish that bonds marketed by the City
have favorable investment qualities. Fresently, the city has the following ratings:

Moody's Standard & Poor's
Reavenue o Aad At
General Obligation Bonds Aaz ‘ AA-
Urban Renewal Revenue Bonds Aa3 A

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 15 percent
and 20 percent of its total assessed valuation. The current debt fimitation for the City of Jackson under
the 15% rule is $100 million in excess of the City of Jackson's outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on the City of Jackson's long-term debt can be found in Note 4 on pages 58-68 of
this reporl.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates
«  Major revenues sources are expected to remain basically at existing levels.

+ Inflationary trends in the region compa?e favorably to national indices.

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Jackson's budget for the 2013 fiscal year.

During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the general fund increased $1.5 million.

Requests for Information

This financial report is desighed to provide a general overview of the City of Jackson's finances for afl
those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided
in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Department of
Administration, Office of the Directar, P.O, Box 17, Jackson, M3, 38205-0017.

11
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City of Jackson
Statement of Net Assets
As of September 36, 2012

Primary Government Ceomponent Units

Capital Ciy
Jackson Convention
Basiness-Tyno Redevelopment Centey
Goveramenial Activities Agtivities ‘Fotal Awthority Commmnisgion
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents § 49,110,633 3 15,522,149 § 64,732,742 b3 1,185,209 $ 2422753
Accounts recsivable, net 130,755 79,758,066 20,868,821 - -
Olher reecivable 75,237,115 1,351,318 76,588,433 1,426,430 1,378,957
Intergovernmental receivable 2,358,546 663,877 3,022,423 - -
Tnternal balences 2,928,944 £2,928,944) - " .
Inventories 2,159,625 1,843,378 4,003,603 - 54,497
Prepaid Expenses - - - 1,934 35,245
Net pengion asset 15,785,086 - 15,785,086 “ -
Restricted aasols:
Cash and cash equivalents - 41,226,329 41,226,329 319,237 1,525,891
Investmonts - 2,000,600 2,000,000 - 500,000
Deferred charges 257,130 2,252,574 2,505,804 -
Capital assets:
Land 14,500,351 1,837,929 16,338,350 4,538425 5,792,683
Buildings 55,880,289 40,375,608 56,255,897 30,863,981 70,694,853
Aunfomotive and equipment 11,964,628 16,373,256 28,337,924 149,462 4,507,351
Infrastrucharc 114,907,083 141,364,853 256,271,934 - - -
Construction in Progress 93,985,870 158,539,620 252,525,496 - -
Property held for development - - - 1,213.270 -
Total assets 435,206,161 450,280,121 B89,486,282 - 40,381,948 86,907,270
LIABILITIES
Liahitities:
Accounts Payable 7,798,359 10,411,663 18,215,622 80,140 402,183
Accrued interest payable 731,059 558,095 1,285,154 145,577 -
Unearned revenue 67,832,934 - §7,832,934 - 242,159
Other liabilities 3,212,342 4,764,864 7,471,146 22,682 201,867
Noncurrent Habifities: )
Net ather posternployment benefits 17,862,756 2,714,243 20,578,999 - -
Drus within one year 13,773,000 8,133,000 21,906,000 465,000 -
Die {o more than one year 166,734,386 160,708,097 333,442,483 9,406,251 -
Total liabilities 277944836 192,791,902 470,736,738 10,113,650 847,789
HET ASSETS .
Invested in capital assels, net of related debt 187,514,540 184,185,153 371,695,603 27,784,330 K0,989,887
Resiricted for:
Dabt garvice 2,331,343 - 2,331,343 8510 -
Chapital projects 9,985,238 - 9,985,238 219,486 -
Other purposes 2,408,394 - 2,408,354 - -
Capital City Convention Center 335,627 - 315,627 2,625,891 -
Unrestricted (41,289,817) 73,303,066 32,013,249 2,268,022 3,043,703
Total net nssets § 161,261,325 § 257,488,219 3 418749344 % 30,278,298  § 86,059,481

The noles to the financial statements ave an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jacksen
Reconciliation of Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Net Assets
September 30, 2012

Amount reported for governmental activities in the statement
of net assets are different because:

Total fund balances - governmental funds § 49,703,470

Capital assefs used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, 291,238,227
therefore are not reported in the funds

Net pension assets recorded in govermmental activities that are not a financial
resource and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds 15,785,086

 Internal service fund is used to account for the group benefit plan.
The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are
included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets (620,714)

Receivable recognized on the full accrual basis for the government-wide
statements but not on the fund statements 2,073,662

Revenues that were earned but unavailable to the city and recorded as unearned
in the fimd statements 1,925,467

Net other postemnployment benefit recorded in governmental activitios that are
not a financial resource and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds (17,862,756}

Long-term Habilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds,

Bonds and loans payable, net of refunding gains, premium and discounts (152,228,427)
Deferred bond issuance costs _ 257,230
Accrued interest on long-term debt (731,059
Capital leases (17,057,853)
Compensated absences (4,676,113)
Claims payable (2,068,822)
Workers' Compensation Benefits (4.476,073)
Net assets of governmental activities $ 161,261,325

~ The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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] City of Jackson
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balaunees of Governmental Funds
Teo the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Arnounts reported for povernmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:
- Net change in fund balances — total governmental funds

Ciovenumental fimds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
of aciivities the cost of these assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and
reported as depreciation expense. This is the amomnt by which capital outlays exceeded
deprecistion in the current period

The issnance of long-term debt {e.g, bonds, leases) provides cwrrent financial resources to
Governiental fands, while the repayment of the principal of Jong-term debt consumes the
current financial resources of the govemnmental funds, Neither transaction, however, has any
effect on net assets. Also, governmental fimds report the effect of issnance cost, premiums,
discounts and simsilar items when debt is first issued, whereas, these amounts are deferred
and mmortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences
in the treatment of Jong-term debt and related ftems

Activities from debi related transactions
New capital fease proceeds reported in the fund siatements
Retirement of prior leases
Note proceeds recorded in the fund statements
Amortization of deferred bond issuance cost

Decrease 1n net pension asset reported on the statement of activities that do not require current
financial tesources and therefore not reported as expenditures in the funds

Increase in net other postemployment benefits liability reported on the statement of activities that
do not requite current financial resources and therefore not reporied as expenditares in the funds

Expenses reported on the statement of activities that do not require current financial Tesources
and therefore not reported as expenditures in the fimds

Revenues recognized on the full accrual basis for the government-wide statements but are not
tecognized on the fund statements :

" Internal service fund net activity not reported on the governmental fund statement

Change in the net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Bodget and Actusl
For the Year Ended Septenther 30, 2012

Varianee with
Budget Amount © Actuat Tinat Budpet-
Original Wimal Amounts positive{negative)
Revennes:
General property faxes
Current realty taxes . $ 33282391 § 31,882,391 §  32,540953 § (1,341,438)
Current personal faxes 13,499,089 13,499,089 13,919,000 419511
Ad valorem taxes on automoebiles 6,220,575 £,220,575 6,613,362 392,787
Delinguent taxes 450,000 450,000 1,659,810 1,209,810
Delinguent personal taxes 50,000 50,000 94,372 44372
Interest on current tanes - - 19 39
Interest on delinguent faxes 540,000 540,99()‘ 913,021 373,021
Comurmumity improvement 177,000 177,000 114,915 (62,085}
Total general property taxes 54.819,055 54,819,055 55,855 472 1036417
Licenses and permits
Privilege licenses 400,600 400,600 445,745 45,745
Building permits 777,967 TFT967 742,271 {35,696)
Air conditioning and duct permits 60,000 60,000 48,163 {11,837)
Plumbing petmits 50,000 50,000 51,659 1,659
Flectric pernuts 150,000 150,000 163,606 13,606
(3as Pernits 70,000 70,600 47,980 (22,020)
Historic preservation appHeation 1,600 1,000 868 {32)
Dance hall and other recreationat fees 7,500 7,500 5,854 {1,646)
Landfl charges 1,006,819 1,006,819 1,630,503 23,684
Taxicab license fees 2,800 2,600 1,245 (755)
Sign permits 40,400 40,400 44,658 4258
Zoning permits 25,000 25,000 25,735 735
Combustible and framimable liquid permits 5425 5425 7950 2,525
Fiveworks Display Permit 200 240 300 140
Adreraft registeation 5,000 5,000 2,391 (2,609
Transit Merchants-Peddlers License 5,000 5,000 4,500 {500)
Boarding, Lodging-Licenses - - T80 780
Adult entertaineni-and License 30,000 30,000 20,018 {9,982)
Special event fes 4,000 4,000 14,314 14314
Maintenance fees 6,000 6,000 7320 1,320
Fire mspection permit 6,000 6,000 7,150 1,150
Annuat vehicle inspecton 4.500 4,500 3.312 {1,188)

-Total Hicenses and permils 2,656,811 24656811 2,676,422 19,611
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City of Jackson
General Fand

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budge! and Acinal

Revenues (Conthroed):
Intergovernmental Revenmes:
State Grants and Sharsd Revennes:
Algohol permits
Geaoline Tax
MBEQ - Solid Wasle
Municipal sevolving fond
State reimb training academy
State fire protostion
Sales tax
Bes & truck privilege mx
Wireless radio communicafion program
Homestead sxemption
Total state grants shared revenues

Federal and State Granis and Shared Revenoes:

HITDA Grant
COPS- Universal Hire
JOVD grant
MDOT Summer Youth reimbursement
MDBOT Litter Pick Up
FEMA/MEMA Disaster
{Oither police grants
Total federal and state shared revenues
County Revenues:
Pro rata road tax
Hinds County 911 Funds
Total county revenue

Total intergovernmental revenues
Fines and Forfeilures:
Court & nyisdemeador fines
Vehicle parking fines
Muoving traffic violations
City coutt cosls
Bad check fee and Warrsnt fes
Asimel control citations
Municips! contt computer
Municipsl court drivers impr fee
FExpongement fee
Jacksou coflection fee
Miscellaneons Court Docket fee
Dropped charpe fee
Cash bond - clearing account
Reameignment fee
Daily storage fee-vehicle
Adtinistrative foe - del cases
Contempt fee
Computerized Crime prevention
Municipal Court Enhancement fea
Jackson Enhancement fee
Wrecker foes
Total fines and forfeiteres

For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Variance with
Budget Amonnt Actual Final Budgei-
Originnd Finat Amounts positive(negative}
b 262000 § 262,000 8 267,650 5,650
3146 31,146 30,062 (1,084}
- - 2,131,716 231,716
95,633 95,633 86,870 (8,763}
- - 230,401 230,401
859,721 859,721 904,238 44,517
30,631,728 31,183,932 29,154 689 {2,029,243)
497,694 497,694 543,775 46,081
173,037 173,037 194,138 21,101
1,163,951 1,163,951 1,530,791 366,840
33,714,810 34,267,114 35,074,330 R47.216
20,600 20,000 11,036 {8,564}
- 3,059,050 748,209 (2,310,841)
- - 10,000 15,000
35,000 35,000 25,976 (9,024)
12,168 12,168 14,631 2AG3
- 31,500 83,200 51,700
116,135 116,135 60,891 (55,244
183,300, 3273 853 953,943 (2,319,910}
440,000 460,000 586,809 126,802
. - 250,724 250,724 -
460,000 710,724 837,533 126,809
34,358,213 38,251,601 36,865,806 {1,385,885)
1,100,000 1,100,000 901,746 {198,254)
150,000 150,000 137,439 (12,561}
1,400,000 1,400,000 1,483,712 83,712
25,000 25,000 18,040 (5,960)
177,400 177,400 182,115 4,715
2,200 2,200 1,569 {631)
22,000 22,000 23,118 1,116
40,000 40,000 45,635 5,635
6,000 6,000 6,255 255
100,000 100,000 125,033 25,933
145,000 145,000 160,100 15,100
6,000 4,600 4,550 {1,450
55,000 55,000 23,580 {(31.420)
20,000 20,600 25,025 5,025
25,000 25,000 31,138 6,138
375,000 375,000 408,470 33,470
132,000 132,000 137,786 5,786
25,000 25,060 27,346 2,346
- 168,237 225,279 57.042
- - 112,500 112,500
75,000 75,000 84,185 G185
3,880,600 4,048,837 4,165,519 116,682
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City of Jacksen
General Fund .
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended Septemnber 30, 2812

Yariance with
Budget Amount - Actual Fiual Budget-
Original Final Amounts nosilive(negative}
Revenues {Continned);
Admissions, Fees, Rentals and Concessions:
Parldng meters § 160,000 § 160,000 § 192,641 32,641
Mumicipal Avditorimm:

Rentals 102,000 102,000 39,858 {62,142)

Concessions 2200 2,200 1,123 {1,077
Local record fee 5,000 5,000 5,032 3z
Pistol Range rent 1,000 1,600 3,003 2,003
DOutdoor adversting 12,000 12,000 10,872 (1,028)
Fire Water fiow test fee 2,500 2,500 1,200 (1,300)
Fire Reports 9,500 9,500 13,33% 839
Accident report fee 106,600 100,600 87,175 (12,825)
Background check fee 12,500 12,275 16,112 3,837
Bail bondsman applicant photo 200 200 210 10
Bail bondsman mug shot fee 300 300 15 {2853
Bail bondsman ID card 700 700 520 {180
Fingerprinting 16,000 16,000 18,460 2,460
Yerification of records 30,0600 30,000 26,707 {3,293)
Fire sprinkier plans review 4,075 4075 5,895 1,820
Rents & Royalities 11,000 HLO00 11,0%0 20
Azt Gallery Donations - - 1,660 1,660
‘Telecommunication Franchise Agreement 267,000 267,000 452,459 185,459
Tower Remtals 2,395,506 2422,378 2,447,082 24,704
Aris Center:

Adwrssions, rents and royaltiss 5,100 5,100 1,835 {3,265}

Community roon ront 10,000 10,600 4,115 {5,885)

Concessions 250 250 555 305

Plangtarium:

Admissions,Discovery Shop, ete. 47,000 47,000 319,443 (7.557)
Senior Centers Reservation Fee 3,600 3,600 4,654 1,054
Special Frogram ~ CMPDD rent - - 2,674 2,674
Smiith Roberison Mugenn:

Gift shop 750 750 . (750)

Donations 4,400 4 AG0 603 (3,797}

Admdssions, rentsl 5,500 5,500 362 (5,138}

Totai adrissions and rentals 3,208,481 3,234,728 3,385,794 151,066

nterest:
Earned on inveshnents 174,880 174,880 211,363 36,483
Earned on accounts 1,207 1,207 - {1,207}
Total interest earned 176,087 176,087 211,343 35,276
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City of Jackson
Genersl Fund

Beatement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

Revennes {Continued):

Other Revenues:
Public utility
Franchise cable television
Waler Sewer Franchise Fee
Nuclear power plant
Sale of cemetery lots
Small antmal comtrol
Palice-snle of wexpons
Parking fee-City employees
Police
Public Safety Compunications
Indivect sost
Strect index books
Downtown Jackson Partners
Plumbing exsimn
Eletrical exam
Penalty on demo/grass/weeds
Cemeteries-openings/closings
Perfomance contract rebate
Site plan review planning
Construction plan review
Building & Perniit misc
Cafeteria plan-flexible spending
Administeative fea-payroll deductions
Sale of maps, plans, and specifications
Traffic
LegalfCity Clerk/Finance and Management
Fire Musewm donations
Fire-Arson/Internal Affairs donations
Fire Deparfment
Grants & Donations
1.D. Badge foe-city employee
Abtract fees
Setilemesnt of insurance claim
Proceeds from assels and forfeitures
PEG Revenue
Other

Total other reverues
Total revesaes

For the Year Ended September 38, 2812

Yarfance with
Badget Amount Actual Final Budget-

Oripinal Final Amoun{s positive{negative)

4,610,814 § 4,140,708 % 4,140,768 § -

1,623,000 1,623,000 1,651,709 28,709

B30,5%7 830,597 830,597 -
1,617,573 1,613,573 1,504 985 (22,588)

. - 400 440

3.000 3,000 5,739 2,739
3,000 3,060 12 (2,988)

7,000 7,060 11,960 4,960
111,251 490,748 476,537 {11,2i1)
30,000 34,000 8,320 (21,680}
2,608,590 2,608,590 2,525,645 {82,545}
1,000 1,060 - {1,000}

155,874 155,874 158,601 2,727

- - ‘15 75

100 100 100 -

6,300 16,968 56,780 30,812
25,000 25,000 10,225 (14,775}

- . - 129 129
15,000 15,000 13,980 {10280
3,500 3,500 200 {3,300

190,004 100,000 105,215 5215
150,004 150,000 149,953 {47

12,000 12,060 13,809 1.809

3,500 3,560 4,266 766
14,873 15,351 479 {14,372)
11,000 11,000 8,775 {2225}
1,800 1,508 598 910)

- 808 2,809 2001
202,700 3,26G 1,801 {1,399)
75,000 248,585 231,774 (16,811)

560 500 795 ' 295

4 0006 4,000 7,695 3,005

75,600 75,600 80,607 5,607
82,903 82,503 48427 (34,470)
188,394 188,354 166,734 {21,660)

- 13,028 21,525 8,897
12,572 669 12 481,495 12,334 824 (146,671)
111,671,816 115,608,704 115,405 200 (173,504)
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ity of Jackson
General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actnal
For the Year Ended September 340, 2612

Variance with
Budgef Amount Actual Yinzi Budget-
Original Final Amounts positive(negative)
Bxpenditares:
Current Operations:
General Government.
Administartion and Infra-governmental
Personnel services 5 15,160,215 % 10,898.900 § 9,982,867 § C 916,033
Supplies : 1,493,608 2,128,559 905,179 1,223,350
Other services and charpes 9,192,974 9,319,685 5,844,005 3,475,680
Capital outlay 2,050,702 4,351,386 3,494,203 857,183
Total Department of Adminstration 24,897 497 26,698,530 20,226,254 6,472,276
Personnet
Persormel services 808,365 811,757 639,165 172,592
Supplies 12,561 14,756 7,694 7,062
Orther services and charges 99,431 108,356 88,920 19,436
Capital Outlay 734 3,639 2,205 1,434
Total Department of Personne] 921,091 038,508 737,984 200,524
Plunning :
Personnal services 2,382,800 2447312 2,208,219 238,093
Supplies 103,572 115,993 92,826 23,167
 Other services and charpes 4,347,764 4,254,017 3,710,208 543,809
Capitml Quflay 3,870 4227 3,002 1,225
Total Department of Planiing 6,838,006 6,821,549 6,014,255 807,294
Total General Government 32,656,504 34,458,587 26978493 7,480,004
Drepattment of Humign and Coltural Services
Health and Welfare
Personmel supplies 1,201,911 1,191,594 1,128,371 63,223
Supplies 25,100 34,411 28,217 o,194
Other services and charpers 634,736 083,482 634,868 48,014
Capital outlay 264,615 271,877 271,872 5
Total Health and Welfare 2,126,412 2,181,364 2,063,328 118,036
Culture and Recreation
Personnel services 614,562 551,757 523,583 28,174
Supplies #2476 144,715 114,603 30,112
Other services and charges 1,448,400 11,497,823 1,421,006 70,817
Capital cutlay 2,155 10,291 7,701 2,590
Total Culture and Recreation . 2,147,549 2,204,586 2,066,893 137,693
Total Department of Human and Cultural Services 4,273,961 4,385,950 4130221 253,729
Department of Public Safety
Persommel services 46,191,824 50,074,810 45,215,600 4,839,210
Supplies 3,137,949 3,485.961 3,337,804 148,157
(ther services and charges 3,698,707 3,754,682 3,337,030 417,652
Capital outlay 4,487,360 4,941,257 4,738,824 - 22473
Tatal Departiment of Public Safety 57,515,880 62,256,730 56,629,258 5,627,492
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City of Jackson
Genetal Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditeres, and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the Year Ended September 36, 2012

Variance with
Budget Amount Actual Fina) Budget-
Ovriginal Final Amounts positive(negative}
Expenditures (Continged):
Department of Public Works
Personnel services 3 7,089972 % 7,382,676 § 7,044,555 § 338,121
Supplies 1,756,188 1,896,856 1,656,629 240,261
Oiher services and charges 3,578,379 2,853,602 2,305,056 548,546
Capital outiay 1,279,733 1,430,812 1,287,172 143,640
Total Departrment of Public Works 13,704,272 13,563,980 12283 412 1,270,568
-Current Operations
Hmployee Benefits
Supplies 5,000 65,000 65,000 ' .
Oiher services and charges 1,887,729 1,859,422 1,687 802 171,620
Total Employee Benefits 1,952,125 1,924,423 1,752 802 171,620
Total expenditures 116,103 446 116,589,689 101,784,186 14,R05,503
Exc::és{éeﬁuicncy) of revenues over gxpenditures 1368 A} {520,985 13,711,014 14,631,999
Oher Fingneing Sources(Uses)
Trausfers in - 699 879 . (180}
Tranfors out (15,999,557 (15,999,557) (16,073,593) 74,636
Procecds from long term debt 2,813,289 2.957,119 3,035,128 (77,24%
Sale of capiial assefs 192,650 198 120 165,818 32,302
Totaf other financing sowmes(uses) (12,994,218} (12,843,559) {12,871,768) 28,209
Net change in fond halance {11,425,748) (13,764,544) 839,246 14,660,208
Fund balances st beginning of vear 33.126,607 33,126,007 33,126,607 -
Tund bafances at end of year b 21,700,859 % 19,362,063 § 33965853 % 14,603,790

The notes to the financial statements are an ingral part of this statement,
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City of Jackson
Federal Granis Specist Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actial

Feor the year ended September 30, 2012

Budpget Amount
Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actaals Amounis  posftive(negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmenial $22,088,893 424,273,607 $ 11157449 $ (13,113,355
Interest - - 7,642 7,642
Other - - 300,750 300,750
Total revenues ' 22,088,803 24,273,007 11,465,841 (12,807,166)
- EXPENDITURES
© Current Operations:
Personnel Services 4,712,437 4,500,447 3,833,042 667,405
Bupplies 823,078 864,189 725,463 138,726
Other Services and Charges 16,931,272 18,270,919 7,318,015 10,952,904
Capital Ontlay £13,985 2,191,890 522,238 1,669,652
Debt Service:
Interest and service charges _ - - 46,550 {46,550)
Total expenditures 23,080,772 25,827 445 12,445,308 13,382,137
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditores (891,879) (1,554,438) (979,467) (574,971)
OTHER FINANCING SCURCES (USES)
Transfers in:
General Fund 929,529 957,754 932,222 (25,532}
Total other financing sources {nises) 929,529 057,754 932,222 {25,532}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other Gnancing
~ sources over expenditures and other nses {62,350) {596,684) (47,245) 549439
Fund balances at begimning of year 1,383,190 1,583,190 1,583,190 -
Fund balances at end of year $ 1,520,840 $ 986,506 $ 1,535,945 $ 549,439

" “The notes to the financial siatements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
Improvement Fung

Schedule of Revenues, Kxpenditures and Changes in Fand Balances - Budget and Actual

Fer the year ended September 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Original Final Actual Amounts  pesitive (negative)
REVENUES _
General property taxes $ 650,800 $ 1,032,535 $ 1,032,534 3 {1}
Intergovernmental Revenue 1,667,270 2,244.770 52,718 (2,192,052)
Tnterest - - 29,597 29,597
Other revenues - 18,450 18,450 -
Total revenues _ 2,617,270 3,285,755 1,1 33,299 {2?1 62,456)
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Other Services and Charges 8,550,824 16,924,232 6,575,275 4,348,937
Capital Outlay - 16,725 2,490 14,226
Total expenditures 8,550,824 10,940,937 6,571,774 4,363,163
Deeficiency of revenues over {under) expenditures (5,933,554) {7,645,182) (5,444,475) (2,200,767)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES{USES)
Proceeds from long term debt 3,398,518 3,305,518 - 3,398,518
‘Fotal other financing sources and uges 3,398,518 3,308 518 - 3,398,518
Net change in fund balances {2,535,036) (4,246,664) (5,444,475) 1,19?,82 i
Fund balances af beginning of year 6,816,204 6,836,294 6,836,294 -
Fund balances at end of year $ 4,301,258 3 2,589,636 5 1,391,819 b 1,197,811

The notes to the Gnancial statements are an infegral part of this statement,
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Assets
Corrent Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, less allowances
Infergovermnental receivables
{ther receivables
Restricted Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Inventories

Total Current Assets

Noncutrent Assets:

Restricted Assets
(Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Deferred charges - bond costs,
fet of amortization
Total Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets:

Property, plant and equipment, at cost
Land
Buildings

Water plant, distribution systern and equipment

Automotive and other equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation

Construction in Progress
Net property, plant and equipment

Total Assets

City of Jackson

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds 7
As of September 36, 2012
Water/Sewage Nenmajor
Disposal Enterprise Infernal
System Sanitation Funds Totals Service Fand
§ 13339743 & 221588 § 66,517 15,622,149 % 359,980
23 859370 5,898,606 - 29,758,066 75,352
- - G63.877 663,877 -
1,351,318 - - 1,351,318 -
14,559,571 - - 14,559,571 -
1,843,378 - - 1,843,378 -
54,953 380 8,114,585 736,394 63,798,359 435,332
26,666,758 - - 26,666,758 -
2,000,000 - - 2,600,600 -
2,252,574 - “ 2,252,574 -
30,919,332 - - 30,919,332 -
1,387,998 - 456,000 1,837,999 -
117,830,080 57,301 147,903 118,075,284 -
258,742,877 - 943,632 259,686,509 -
- 14,100,832 2,477, 869 10,559,245 27,137 976 ~
392,061,788 2,535,200 12,140,780 406,737,768 -
(199,424,729} (1,653,640) £5,707.645) {206,786,014) -
192,637,059 881,560 6,433,135 199,951,754 -
156,234,777 - 2,304 843 158,539,620 -
348,871,836 881,560 8,737,978 358,491,374 -
§434,744,548 § 8,996,145 $ 9468372 $ 453,209,065 5 435332

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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Liabilities and Fund Eqaity

Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestrictod Assets:

Accounts/claims payable
Due to other funds
Compensated abuences
Retainage paysble
Customer deposits
Other
Current portion of Long-Term Debt:
Lease obligations

. State Department of Environmental Quality

Total Current Liabilities Payable
from Unrestricted Asscts

Currert Liabilitics Payable from Resiricted Assets:

Revenue bonds
Accrued mterest payable
Total Current Liabilites f’ayabla
from Resiricted Assels

Total Current Liabilities

Post Employment Benefits accrual
Long-Term Debt
{less amounts classified as current liabilities):
Compensated absences
Revenue bonds
{net of unamortized discount/premium}
Lease obligations
Siate Department of Envirenmental Quality
Tofal Long-Term Debt
Tatal Liabilitics
Met Assels
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted
Total Net Assets

Total liabilities and net nssels

Cily of Fackson
Statement of Net Assefs
Proprietary Fands
Ag of September 30, 2012

Water/Sewage Nenmajor

Disposal .Enterprise Tnternal
System Sanitation Funds Totals Service Fund
$ 5321805 3% 850,521 % 276,187 8§ 6448513 % 408,512
- - 2,928.944 2,928,944 -
334,757 52,164 8,723 395,644 -
3,814,406 - 45446 3,859,852 -
4,264,804 - - 4,264,804 -
103,298 - - 103,298 -
460,643 323514 212,094 996,251 -
1,586,105 - - 1,586,105 -
15,885 818 1,226,199 3,471,394 20583411 408,512
5,155,000 - - 5,155,000 -
558,095 - - 558,095 -
5,713,005 - - 5,715,095 -
21,598,913 1,226,199 3,471,394 26,296,506 408,512
2,375,562 294,643 46,038 2,716,243 -
120,715 18,518 - 139233 -
153,506,486 - - 153,506,486 -
1,137,436 420,396 513,499 2,071,331 -
10,991,047 - - 10,991,047 -
165,755,684 438,914 513,499 166,708,097 -
189,730,159 1,959,756 4.030,931 195,720,846 A08,512
176,035,118 137,650 8,012,285 184,185,153 “
68,979,271 6,898,739 (2,574,944) 73,303,066 26,820
245,014,389 7,036,389 5437441 257,488,219 26,820
$ 434744548 § 8996145 § 9468372  § 453209065 § 435332

The notes in the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
Staterment of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Asgets
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 38, 2812

Water/Sewage Npnmafor
Disposal Eunterprise Internal
System Sanitation Funds Total Service Fond
. Operating Revenues:

i Sales to customers § 47,966,053 $12,006,853 % 588,629 & 60,561,535 § -
Contributions - - - - 4,808,132
Contributions - City Match ‘ - - - - 2,966,485
Other ravenues 51,029 99,267 480,370 630,666 363,214

Total Operating Revenues 48,017,082 12,106,120 1,068,999 61,192,201 8,137,831
1 Operating Expenses:

Personnel services 10,645,418 1,371,422 276,334 12,293,174 -

Supplies 5,159,810 349,911 821,857 6,231,578 -

Other services and charges 17,560,729 9,890,833 51712,127 32,623,689 14,722,224

Depreciation 8,782, 498 281,716 774,218 9,838,430 -

Total operating expenses 42,148 455 11,893 882 7,044,536 61,086,873 14,722,224

Operating income (losgs) 5,868,627 212,238 (5,975,537 105,328 (6,584,393}
Nonopersting revenues {expenses):
Interest revenue 461,524 10,408 - 47 471,979 2,281
Inierest and service charges on Jong-ferm
debt and capitalized lease obligations (11,937,083) - - {11,937,083) -

Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets 15,090 7,000 7,480 29,570 -

Amortization of bond Issuance cost (1,261,804} - - {1,261,804) -
Total nonoperating revenues {expenses) (12,722 273} 17,408 7,527 (12,69’?,33 8} 2,281
Income (loss) hefore contributions

and transfers (6,853,646) 229,646 (5,968,010) (12,592,610 (6,582,112}
" Capital confributions from gran{s - 112,320 2,731,308 2,843,718 ' -
Transfers In:

General Fund A - - 4638988 4,638,988 6,629,160

Enterprise Fund - - 37,870 37,870 -

(Capital Projects Fund 361,478 - - 361,478 -

Transfers Cut: '

Huterprise Fund (37,870) - - {37,870) -
Total Transfers In {Out) 323,608 - 4,676,858 5,000,466 _ 6,629,160
Change in Net Assets (6,530,038) 341,966 1,440,246 (4,747,826) 47,048

Total net assets - beginning 251,544,427 6,694, 423 3,997,195 262,236,045 (20,228)
Total net assets - ending § 245,014,389 $ 7,036,389 § 5,437,441 $ 257,488,219 $ 26,820

. The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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City of Jaclison :
Statement of Cash Flows [
Proprietary Funds :

Cash Flows from Operating Actlvitles
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from other revenue
Paymenis to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net Cash provided by (used for)
Operating Activities

Cagh Flows from Nopcapital Financing Activities
Transfors In
Transfers Qut

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activites

Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities '
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Progeeds from sale of capital assets
Procesds from capital debt
Principal paid on capital debt
Proceeds from capital contributions
Proceeds from capital debt - premium and discount
Interest paid on capital debt
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related

financing activities

For ¢he Year Ended Sepiember 30, 2012

Cash Flow Provided by (Used for) Invesiing Activities:

Interest on investroents
Net Cash provided by investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginming of year
Cash and cash equivalents ai end of year

Nonmajor O
Water/Sewer Enterprise Internal Service
Disposal System Sanitation Funds Total Fund
§ 43344101 $11,077512  §  S8R620  $55,010242 7774617
51,029 99,267 820,221 70,517 342,699 -
(16,949,631}  (9,597,847)  (6,625,729)  (33,173,207) (14,610,032; -
(10,217,615) {1,082.105) {228.3125) (11,527,845} .
16,227,884 496,827 (5,445,004} 11,279,707 {‘6,492,'&6‘; :
361,478 - 4,676,858 5,038,336 6,629,1605' i
(37,870) - - {37,870) -
323,608 - 4,676,858 5,000,466 6,629,160 .
(15,962,687) (4,453) (1,799,004 (17,766,144 -
15,000 7,000 7480 29,570 -
84,095,166 620,000 74,660 84,789,826 -
(79,091,504) (284,733) (218,489} (79,594,726) -
- £12,320 2,731,358 2,843,718 “
(6,762,197 - - (6,762,193) -
{3,727,342) - - {3,727,342) .
(21,433 470) 450,134 796,045 §20,187,291) -
461,524 10,408 47 471,979 2,281 -
461,524 10,408 47 471,979 2,281
{4,420,454) 957,369 27,946 {3.435,139) 138,725_
58,986,526 1,258,520 38,571 60,283,617 221,255 .
3 54,566,072 § 2215889 3 66,517 356848478

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staternent.
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City of Jackson
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 36, 2812

MNenmajor
Water/Sewer Enterprise Enternal Service
Disposal System Sanifafion Funds Total Fund
. Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash
' Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities:
2% Operating income {loss) 5 5868627 & 212238 % (5975537) § 105328 0§ {6,584,393)
- Depreciation Expense 8,782,498 281,716 774,218 9,838,432 -
{Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net {3,562,791) (929,341) - (4,492,132} (20,516}
' (Increase)decrease in inventories 563,052 - - 563,952 -
{Increase) decrease in other receivable (1,059,161} - 330,851 {719,310} -
{Increase} decrease in deferved charges {19,656) - - {19,656} -
Tncrease (decrease) in accounts payable and retainage 5,588351 937,540 {585,707 5,940,184 112,193
Increase (decrease) in accrued interest payable (52,340% - - (52,340) -
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (8,556} (5,326) 2,17 (9,711) -
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits ‘ 193,149 - - 193,149 -
Increase (decrease) In other linbilties {68,180} - - {68,189} -
Total adjustments 10,359,257 284,589 530,533 11,174379 9,677
Net cash provided by {used for) operating activities $ 16227884 § 496,877 § (5445004 $11,279707 § {6,492,718)
Nencash Investing, Capiial, and Financing
Activities: .
Borrowing uoder capital lease $ 1,398,946 & 420,000 $ 74,660
Recap of cash and cash equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents ' $ 13339743 $ 2215889 $ 66517  §15622,148 § 159,980
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 41,226,329 - - 41,226,329 -
% 54,566,072 $ 1215885 $ 66,'517 $56,848478 % 359,980

‘The hotes to the financial statements are an integral part of thix statement.
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CETY OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 34, 2012
Trost Fundg Agency Funds
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents k! 396,987 $ 21,379
Investment at fair value:
Certificate of deposit 32,270 -
Total assets $ 429,257 $§ 21379
Liabilities and Net Asscts
Liabilities:
Payables to others 3 - $ 21,379
Total liabilities - $ 21,379
Net Assets: :
Held in trust 429,257
Total net assets 428257
Total liabilities and net assets 3 429 257

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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CITY OF JACKSON
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 20612

Trust Funds
Additions:
Interest $ 3,002
{ther additions 209,274
Total additions 3 212,276
Deductions:
(General govermment
Trust funds $ 127.976
Total deductions 127976
Change in Net Assets 84,300
et assets at beginning of year 344,057
Met agsets at end of vear b 429,257

T'he notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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NOTES TO THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF JACKSORN
Motes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2012

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
A. REPORTING ENTITY

The Cify of Jackson, Mississippi {the City) is incorporated under the Laws of the State of Mississippl. The

~ City operates under the Mayor-Council form of government with a full-time Mayor elecied from the City at

large and seven part-time Council members (City Council) elected from wards. The City's major
operafions include police and fire protection, parks and recreation, public works, public transit system,

urban development and general administrative services. In addition, the City owns and operaies a water

and sewer system,

The City's financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting
Standards Board {GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments through its
pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also required io follow the
proncuncemenis of the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued through November 30, 1969
that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. Afthough the City has the option to apply
FASB pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise funds, the City
has chosen not to do so. The more significant accounting policies established in GAAP and used by the
City is discussed below.

in evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed potential component units for
which the City may or may not be financially accountable and as such, be included within the City's
financial statements. The component units discussed below are included because of the significance of
their operational or financial relationships with the City.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Using the criteria above, management has determined that the Jackson Redevelopment Authority (JRA)
and the Capital Cily Convention Center Commission should be reported as discretely presenied
component units of the City. The discretely presented component units are reported in separaie columns
in the government-wide statements to emphasize they are legally separate from the primary government.
The following is a summary of the City's discretely presented component units.

The Jackson Redevelopment Authority {(JRA) was established in 1868 under Section 43-35-1 through 235
of the Mississippi Code of 1842, as annotated. In 1970, JRA became the Parking Authority for the City
under the same statute. The Mayor of the City makes appointments to a seven-member Board of
Commissioners for staggered five-year terms fo oversee the operations of JRA. Members may be
removed from office for inefficiency, neglect of duty or misconduct in office. The City Council appropriates
the administrative operating budget and must review and approve any amendments or budgetary
adjustments. The City Council is responsible for designation of those urban renewal projecis undertaken
by JRA. The City makes annual confributions necessary to pay a portion of JRA's urban renewal bonds
and has agreed to make payment of substantially all of the outstanding bonds. JRA operates on a
September 30 fiscal year and its financial statement data is presented as a proprielary fund type.
Complete financial statements for JRA may be obtained at its administrative office located at 218 South
President Street, Jackson, Mississippi 38201.

The Capital City Convention Center Commission, a non-profit corporation, was authorized 1o be created
by House Bill 1832 during the 2004 Regular Session of the Migsissippi State Legistature. The entity is
governed by hine commissioners. The Mayor of the City appoints hotel/motel membaers for initial terms of
one and three years, respectively, restaurant members for initial terms of two and four years, respectively,
The Mayor appoints two members representing the business community for initial terms of one and five
years, respectively. The Mayor appoints two members at large for initial terms of two and three years,
respectively. One member is appointed by the Governor of Mississippt for an initial term of four years,
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Polices {Continued):
A. REPORTING ENTITY (Continued):

The Ciy issued $65,000,000 of General Obligation Bonds for the development of the proposed
Convention Center. The Capital City Convention Center Commission has jurisdiction and authority over
all matters relating to the acquisition, construction, furnishing, equipping, erection, operation,
maintenance, and promotion of a convention center. The Commission submils its budget! and certain
other planned actions to the City for comment prior to Initiation. The Commission operates on a
September 30 fiscal year and its financial statement data is presented as a proprietary fund type.
Complete financial statemenis for the Capital City Convention Center Commissicn may be obtained at

P. (. Box 35583, Jackson, Mississippi 38207.

Related Organizations

The following four agencies are non-profit corporations established within the City of Jackson. The Mayor
appoints the board members of each respective agency as confirmed by the City Council. Each agency is
fiscally independent from the City of Jackson, issues its debt, approves its budgets, and sets iis rates and
charges., The primary government has no authorily to remove board members, designate management,
or approve or modify rates. The City of Jackson is not obligated in any manner for the debt issues of
these agencies. Financial statements for these agencies ¢an be obtained at the following addresses:

Alrport Authority Jackson Housing Authority
100 International Drive 2747 Livingston Road
Jackson, MS 39208 Jackson, MS 39213
Jackson Public School Disirict Metro Jackson Convention & Visitors Bureau
662 South President Street 821 North President Sireet
Jackson, MS 30201 Jackson, MS 38202

Joint Ventures

The Jackson/Hinds Library System (the System) operates under & joint agreement between the City and
Hinds Counly and Is funded equally by the City and the County. The joint agreement was effective
October 1, 1986. All buildings used by the System within the City of Jackson are owned and maintained
by the Cily and, as such, have bean included in the capilal assets of governmental aclivities. The
Jackson/Hinds Library System's financial statements may be oblained by writing o 300 North Siale Street,
Jackson, MS 39201.

B. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND LEVEL STATEMENTS

The City's basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the City as a whole) and
fund financial statements (reporting the City’s major funds). Both the government-wide and fund financial
statements categorize primary activities as efther governmentaf or business type. The City’s police and fire
protection, parks and recreafion, public works, and general administrafive services are classified as
governmental activities. The City's water/sewer, sanitation, and public transit services are classified as
business-type aclivities. :

In the government-wide Siatement of Net Assels, both the governmenial and business-lype activities
columns (&) are presented on the consolidated basis by column, (b) and are reported on the full accrual,
economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt
and obligations. The City’s net assets are reported in three parts: invested in capital assets, net of related
debt; restricted net assets; and unrestricled net assets, The City first utilizes restricted resources fo
finance gualifying activities,
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued):

B. BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FURND LEVEL STATEMENTS
{Continued):

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net costs of each of the City's
functions: and business-fype activities (police, fire, public works, efc.). The statement of activities
demonsirates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by
program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to applicants who use, or direclly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Operating
grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital
grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses {including depreciation) by related program revenueas,
operating and capital grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function {police, fire,
public works, efc.) or a business-type aciivily. Taxes and other items not properly included among
pragram revenues are reported instead as general revenues. The net costs (by function or business-type
activities} are normally covered by general revenue (property, sales or gas tax, infergovernmental
revenues, interest income, stc.).

The City does not aliocate indirect cost. An administrative service fee is charged by the General Fund to
the other operating funds that is eliminated like a reimbursement (reducing the revenue and expense in
the General Fund) to recover the direct costs of General Fund services provided (finance, personnel,
purchasing, legal, technology management, efc.).

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the City as an entity and the changes in the
City's nat assets resulting from the current year's activities. Separate financial staterments are provided for
governmental funds and proprietary funds. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-
halancing accounts that comprises Hs assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equily, revenues and
expenditurésfexpenses. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the
fund financial statements. .

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds,
even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual
governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperafing ltems. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and preducing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
City's Proprigtary Funds and of the City's Internal Service Funds are charges fo customers for sales and
services., Operating expenses for Proprietary Funds and Internal Service Funds include the cost of sales
and services, direct adminisirative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not mesling this definition are reporfed as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the amccrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
staternents. Agency funds are used to report resources in a purely custodial capacilty {assets equal
liabitities). So, agency funds cannot be said to have a measurement focus, however, they do use the
accrual basis of accounting {o recognize receivables and payables. Revenues are recorded when earned
and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash fiows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied, Grants and similar items
are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met,
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING {(Continued):

Governmental fund financial staternents are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues @re considered fo be available when they are collectible within the
current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the City
considers revenues to be available If they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting,
However, debt service expendilures, as well as expendilures related fo compensated absences and
claims and judgments, are recarded only when payment is due,

Properly taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered 1o be susceplible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when the City
receives cash.

The City reports the following major government funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the Cily's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
transactions of the City, except those required ta be accounted for in another fund.

Federaf Grani Fund — This fund is used to account for proceeds of various federal grant
programs.

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and the
subsequent disbursement of such resources to pay principal and interest on long-term debt of the
City {other than debt of the Enterprise Funds). Bond ordinances reguire the City to account for
debt service transactions in separale funds, restrict the flow of cash between such funds, and
comply with various other covenants. For financial statement reporting, the various debt service
funds have been combined.

Improvement Fund — This fund is used to account for revenues that are legally restricted for
improvements to City facilities.

1998 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of
$35,000,000 issued o finance certain projects including storm drainage systems, construction of
@ youth detention center, and repairing buildings. ‘

2003 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used fo account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of
$20,000,000 issued to finance certain projects including storm drainage systems, repairing and
the construction of municipal buildings, infrastructures, and cther related improvements.

2006 GO Bond Fund - This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of
$65,000,000 issued to finance the acquisition, construction, equipping, and furnishing of a
convention center in the City to be known as the Capital City Convention Center and other
authotized costs.

2008 GO Bond Fund — This fund is used to account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of
$26,210,000 issusd to pay the coslts of constructing, improving and paving sireets, sidewalks,
driveways, parkways and public parking facilities.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water/Sewage Disposal Sysfem Fund - This fund accounts for activities associated with the
provision of water, sewerage and water poliution confrol services to individuals, organizations and
other governmental uhits within and around the City.

Sanitation Fund — This fund accounts for activities associated with the City's sanitation and
recyeling service.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):

. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING {Continued):
Additionally, the City reports the following fund types:

infernal Service Fund is used to account for the financing of goods or services provided by one
department or agency to other departments or agencles of the governmental unit, or to other
governmental uniis, on 2 cost-reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary Funds:

Fiduciary Funds are used fo report assets held in a trustee or agency capacity for others and
therefore are not available to support City programs. The City has three trust funds, the
Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund, the Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund, and the
Mausoleum Trust Fund, The function of the City's principal employee benefit trust fund, the
Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund, is discussed in NOTE 8.A2. The function of the
Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund is to account for contributions from the public sector which is
held in trust for fire and police allowable claims. The function of the Mausoleum Trust Fund is to
maintain and upkeep the Henry Mausoleum.

The purpose of the City's Agency Funds is to collect and remit fo the related organizations the
property taxes collected and proceeds of a special sales tax received from the State. The reporting
focus is on nat assets and changes in net assefs and are reporied using accounting principles
similar to proprietary funds.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or business-
type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are summarized into a single column. GASBS No.
34 sets forth minimum criteria {percentage of assets, liabilities, revenues or expendituresiexpenses of
gither fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds.
The nenmajor funds are combined in a column in the fund financial statements.

The City's internal service fund is presented in the proprietary funds financial statements. Because the
principal users of the intemnal setvices are the City's governmental activities, the financial statements of
the internal service fund are consolidated inte the governmental activities column when presenied in the
government-wide financial statements. To the extent possible, the cost of these services is reported inthe
appropriate functional activity (police, fire, public works, etc.). '

D, ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY

%, Cash and Cash Eqguivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include demand deposk accounts, petly cash, and certificates of deposit with a
maturity date generally within 90 days of the date acquired by the City. Collateral as further discussed in
Note 4.A, Is pledged by the various financial institutions to secure City funds,

2. Recelvables

All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated
portion that is expected to be uncoilectible.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued):
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY {Continued):
3. Invesiments

Investments are recorded at fair value with ali investment income, including changes in the fair value of
investments, reported as revenue in the financial statements. Ihcome from short-term interest bearing
securities is recognized as earned. Statutes authorize the City to invest in U.8. Government obligations,
U.8. Government agency obligations, State of Mississippi obligations, and obligations of a corporation of
the U.8. Government.

Securities traded in a national or international exchange are valued at the last reporied sales price at
current exchange rates. Shori-term investments are reported at fair value when published prices are
available, or at cost plus accrued Interest, which approxdmates fair value, For individual investments
where no readily ascertainable fair value exists, the Clty of Jackson, in consultation with its investment
advisors and custodial bank, has determined the fair values.

4. Restricted Assets

Caertain proceeds of the Cily's Proprietary Fund revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for
their payment, are classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because they are maintained in
separate bank accounts and trust accounis and their use is limited by applicable bond covenants.
Restricted amounts in governmental activities include amounts set aside by law for state tort claims and
amounts accumulated for general ohiligation bond debt service.

5. Inventories

inventories are priced at cost using the weighted average method. Inventories are accounted for using
the consumption method and are not charged out until used. Inventories consist of major stores of
materials and supplies held at central locations. The user departments and cther funds of the City are
charged for the cost value of the items, as they are withdrawn from inventory.

8. Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired are carried at historical cost. Contributed assets are recorded at fair
market value at the date received. The Cily's classes of capital assets and their capitalization levels are:
land — cost or fair market value, buildings - $50,000, land improvemenis -  $25,000, machinery and
equipment - $1,000, infrastructure - $100,000, and construction in progress — based on the project’s class.
The cost of normal maintenance and repair that do not add to the value of capital assets or materially
extend their respective lives are not caplialized. Interest expenditures within governmental activities are
not capltalized.
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Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
B, ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY {Continued),

6. Capital Assets (Continued):

Capital assets, excluding land and construction in progress, are depreciated using the straighi-line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Buildings 40
Land improvements 20
Heavy machinery and 5-15
equipment

Computer equipment 3
Vehicles 310
infrastructure 8-50

Interest is capitalized on proprietary fund assets constructed with the proceeds of tax-exempt debt. The
amount of interest to be capitalized is calculated by offsetting interest expense incurred from the date of
the borrowing until completion of the project with interest earned on invested proceeds over the same
period.

The City has a collection of artwork presented for public exhibition and education that is being preserved
for future generations. The proceeds from the sales of any pleces of the collection are used fo purchase
other acquisitions. The collection is not capitalized or depreciated as part of capital assets.

Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related to utllities), traffic
signals, elc.

7. Compensated Absences

The City accrues accumulated unpaid personal leave and associated employee-related cost when earned
{or estimated to be eamed) by employses up o 240 hours. For the Proprietary Funds and the
government-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be used in the following year.
in accordance with GAAP, for the governmental funds, all of the compensated absences are considered
long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a reconeiling item between the fund level
andl government-wide presentation, The compensated absences labllity is liquidated by the following
funds: general fund, special revenus, transportation, sanitation & water/sewer.

8. Bond Discounts, Bond Premiums and lssuance Costs

in the governmental funds, bond discounts, bond premiums and issuance costs are treated as period
gosts in the vear of issue. Bond premiums and discounts are shown as an "Other Financing
Sources/lises”.

In the proprietary funds and government-wide financial statements, bond discounts, bond premiums and
issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the terms of the bonds outstanding method, which
approximates the effective interest method. Bond discounts and premiums are presented as a reduction
and increass, respectively, of the face amount of the revenue bond payable. Issuance costs are recorded
as other assels,
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued):
0. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued):
9. Interfund Activity

Inferfund activity is reported as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reporied as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject o elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed io be at market or near fair market rates are treated as
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiing fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund
fransactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as
part of the recongiliation to the government-wide financial statements.

10. Revenues

Substantially all governmental fund revenues are acorued. Property taxes are recognized at the levy date,
All property {axes are billed, collected and recognized as revenue within the same period for which they
are levied. Subsiiles and grants fo proprietary funds, which finance either capital or current operations are
reported as non-operating revenues. Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from
nonoperating ftems. Operating revenues and expenses result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operafions. The principal
operating revenues of the enterprise fund and of the government's internal service funds are charges fo
customners for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. Al
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as noncperating revenues and expenses.
In, applying GASBS No. 33 to grant revenues, the provider recognizes fabilities and expenses and the
recipient recognizes receivables and revenues when the applicable eligibility requirements, including time
requirements, are met. Resources fransmitted before the eligibility requirements are met are reported as
advances by the provided and deferred revenue by the recipient.

14. Expenditures

Expenditures are recoghized when the related fund liability is incurred. Inventory costs are reported ir1 the
period when inventory items are used, rather than in the period purchased.

12. Reserves and Designations

Portions of fund equity are segregated for future use and therefore, are not available for
future appropriations or expenditure. City has a municipal bond debt service reserve insurance palicy for
the proprietary funds in lieu of cash. Amounts reserved for slate forl claims represent amounts required
by state law to be segregated for these purposes. The unreserved designated fund balance of the Capital
Projects Funds is appropriated for expenditures in fulure years.

13. Net Assets

Net assets represent the difference between asseis and liabilities. Net assetfs invested in capital assets,
net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the oulstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net
assels are reporied as restricted when there are limitations imposed on their use either through external
restrictions imposed by craditors, grantors or Jaws or regulations of other governments.
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Nots 1 ~ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY (Continued):
14. Fund Balance

in the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that
comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the
specific purpose for which amounts in the funds can be spent. Fund balance is reported in five
componerits - nonspendable, restricted,committed, assigned and unassigned.

Nonspendable - This component includes amournts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) notin
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - This component consists of amounts that have consfraints placed on them either externally by
third-parties (creditors, grantors, confributors, or laws or regulations of other governments) or by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Enabling legistation authorizes the Cily to assess,
levy, charge or otherwise mandate payment of resources (from external resource providers) and includes
a legally enforceable requirement {compelled by external parties) that those resources be used only for
the specific purposes stipulated in the legistation.

Committed - This component consists of amounis that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the City's highest level {City Council) of decision making authority
which includes the city charter, ordinances and resclutions prior to the end of the fiscal year. Those
committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Cily removes or changes the
specified use by taking the same {ype of action {city charter, ordinance and resolution} it employed
previously to commit those amounts.

Assigned - This component consists of amounts that are constrained by the City's intent to be used for
specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor committed. The authority for assigning fund balance is
expressed by the City Council, Mayor or thelr designee as established in the City's Fund Balance Policy.

Unassigned - This classification represents amounts that have not been restricted, committed or assigned
to specific purposas within the general fund, The general fund is the only fund that reporis a positive
unassigned fund balance amount. Gther governmental funds besides the general fund can only repart a
negative unassigned fund balance amount.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are avallable for use, it is the Cify's policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resocurces {(committed, assigned and unassigned) as they are
needed. When unresiricted resources {commitied, assigned and unassigned) are available for use it is the
City's policy to use committed resources first, then assigned, and then unassigned as they are needed.
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Note 1~ Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued}):
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY {Continued):
15. Fund Balance/Net Asset Policy

The Cily has adopted a fund balance / net assels policy that is tailored o the needs of the Cily to ensure
against unanticipated events that would adversely affect the financial condition of the City and will not
jeopardize the continuation of necessary public services. This policy will ensure the City maintains
adequate fund balance / net assets and reserves in the City's various operating funds to provide the
capacily 1o: {1} provide sufficient cash flow for daily financial needs, (2} secure and maintain investment
grade bond ratings, {3) offset significant economic downturns and revenue shortfalis, and (4) provide
funds for unforaseen expenditures related fo emergencies.

The City will maintain reservations of Fund Balance / Net Assets In the General Fund and Proprietary
funds of the City. The City shall retain the minimum requirement for each fund listed below.

General Fund — There shall be a reservation {unassigned) of fund balance equal to 7.5% of the adopted
General Fund operating revenues. For the purposes of the calculation, the current fiscal year budget shall
be the budget as originally adopted by resolution on or before September 15™ for the subsequent fiscal
year. The reserve shall be in addition o all other reserves or designations of the fund balance, including
but not limited to reserves for encumbrances, donafions, advances to other funds, designations for
compensated absences, and insurance.

Enterprise Fund — The Cily maintains a Sanitation Fund, Water and Sewer Fund, and Transportation
Fund. Under the Water Sewer Bond Ordinance, the following Fund Balance/Reserves are required; 1/12
of O&M budgst for Operstion & Maintenance; 1/12 of actual debt service; 2/12 of O&M budget for
Contingent Fund; and, Maximum of $100,000 for Depreciation Fund.

The total Required Fund Balance/Reserve for 2012 is $11,884,831 and this amount is on deposit at
Sepiember 30, 201 2.

Replenishment of Reserve Deficits - If, at the end of any fiscal year, the actual amount of unassigned fund
balance or unassigned net assets falls below the required fund levels set forth herein, the Mayor shall
prepare and submit a plan for expenditure or expense reductions and / or revenue increases to the, City
Council. As a part of the annual budget review, the City Council shall review and, if necessary, amend the
plan submitied by the Mayor for restoring the amounts of unassigned fund balance or unassigned net
assets fo the required levels. :

16. Pension Expenses

The City funds pension expenses as required by applicable statute. Two plans, funded from both City and
employee contributions are described in NOTE 6.F.

17. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management fo make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures. Actual resulis could differ from those estimates.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued):
0. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS OR EQUITY {Continued):

18. New Accounting Pronouncements

During the fiscal year 2012 the Clty implemented the following GASB protiouncements:

In June 2011, GASB issued Staternent No. 59, Financial Instrumenis Ommnibus. The Statement updates
and improves existing standards regarding financial reporting of certain financial instruments and external
investment pools. The Statement is effective for financial statemenis prepared by state and local
governments for periods beginning after June 15, 2011. In conjunction with the 2012 fiscal year audit, a
review was made relating to the requirements of this statement. As a result of this review, this Statement
had no significant impact on the City’s financial statements.

in June 2011, GASB issued Statemeant No. 64, Derivative Instruments: Appfication of Hedge Accounting

Termination Provisions ~ an amendment of GASB Statement No. 53. This Statement enhances

comparability and improves financiat reporting by clarifying the clrcumstances in which hedge accounting

should continue when a swap counterparly, or a swap counterparty’s credit support provider, is repfaced.

The requirements of this statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2011. In conjunction

with the 2012 fiscal year audit, a review was made relating to the requirements of this Statement. As a
‘result of this review, this statement had no significant impact on the City's financial statements.

The City will adopt the Tollowing new accounting pronouncements in future years:

In Novernber 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 80, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Service
Concession Arrangements. This Statement addresses how fo account for and report service concession
arrangerments (SCAs). It improves financial reporting by establishing recognition, measurement and SCA
disclosurs requirements for both transferors and governmenital operators. The reguirements of Statement
60 are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. This Statement will not have a significant
impact on the City.

in November 2010, GASB issued Statement No. 81, The Financial Reporting Enfity:  Omnibus — an
amendment of GASB Staternents No. 14 and No. 34.  This Statement includes amendments o GASE
Statement No. 14 and GASB Statement No. 34 that befler address user needs and reporting entity issues
that arose after the issuance of those Statements. Statement 61 modifies requirements for inclusion of
component units, amends the criteria for reporting components and clarifies the reporting of equity
interests in legally separate organizations. The provisions of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after June 15, 2012. Early application is encouraged. This Statement will not have a significant
impact on the City.

In December 2010, GASE issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncemenis. This Statement
incorporates generally accepted accounting principles for state and local governments issued from all
sources that do not conflict with, or contradict GASB pronouncements, info one.  This Stalement
supersedes GASB Statement No. 20 and eliminates the election in paragraph 7 of Statement No. 20 that
aliowed enterprise funds and business-type aclivities to apply post-November 30, 1989 FASE Statements
and Interpretations that do not conflict with GASB pronouncements. The requirements of this Statement
are effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2011. Early application is encouraged. This
Statement will hot have a significant impact on the City.
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Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued):
D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS QR EQUITY {Continued):
18. New Accounting Pronouncements {Continued):

In June 2011, GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Qutflows of Resources,
Defarred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. This Staternent calls for deferred oufflows of resources
to be reported separately from assets, and for deferred inflows of resources to be reported separately
from liabilifies. The net difference betwaen these elements are described as net position, rather than as
net asseots. The requiremenis of this Statement are effective for periocds that ends December 31, 2012,
This Statement will not have a significant impact on how the City reports its net position.

In April 2012, GASB issued Siatement No. 65, Elemenis of Financial Statements. This Statement
specifies that recognition of deferred outflows and deferrad inflows should be limited to those instances
specifically identified in authoritative GASB pronouncements. Consequently, guidance was needed to
determine which balances being reported as assets and liabilities should actually be reported as deferred
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, according to the definitions in Concepts Statement
4. Based on thase definitions, Statement 85 reclassifies certain items currently being reporied as assets
and liabilities as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. In addition, this
Statement recognizes cerlain items currently being reporled as assels and liabilities as outflows of
resources and inflows of resources. The requirements of this Statement are effective for periods
beginning after December 18, 2012. This Statement will not have a significant impact on the City.

in April 2012, GASB issued Statement No. 66, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and
Related Insurance Issues. This Statement amends Statement No, 10 by removing the provision that limits
fund-based reporting of a state and local government's risk financing acfivities o the general fund and the
internal service fund typse. As a resull, governmenis would base their decisions about governmental fund
type usage for risk financing activities on the definitions in Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and
Governmental Fund Type Definitions.

This Statement also amends Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting
Guidance Confained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncemenis, by modifying the
specific guidance on accounting for {1) operating lease payments that vary from a straightdine basis, (2)
the difference between the initial investment {purchase price} and the principal amount of a purchassd
loan or group of loans, and (3) servicing fees related fo morigage loans that are sold when the stated
service fee rate differs significantly from a current (normal} servicing fee rate, These changes would
eliminate any uncertainty regarding the application of Statement No. 13, Accounting for Operating Leases
whh Scheduled Rent Increases, and result in guidance that is consistent with the requirements in
Sigtermnent No, 48, Sales and Pledges of Receivables and Fulure Revenues end intra-Entity Transfers of
Assels and Fuiure Revenues, respectively. The requirements of this Statement are effective for pericds
beginning after December 15, 2012, This Statement will not have a significant impact on the City.
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CITY OF JACKSOR
Motes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2012

Note 2 — Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and the
government-wide statement of net assets

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance - fofal
governmental funds and net assels — governmental asctivities as reported in the government-wide
statement of nat assets. One element of that reconcitiation explains that “long-term liabilities, including
bonds payable, are not due and. payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.”
The details of this $180,982 difference are as follows {in thousands}:

Bonds payable $ 148,217
Less: Deferred charge on refunding {to be amortized as
interest expense) 1,066
Less: lssuance premium 3,437
Less: Issuance discount (to be amorized as interest expense) {491)
Detferred bond issuance cost {257}
Accrued interest pavable 731
Capital leases payable 17,058
Clairms and judgments 2,089
Compensated absences 4,876
Workers' Compensation Benefits 4,476

Neat adjustment to reduce fund balance — tofal governmental funds to arrive at
net assets — governmental activities $ 180,982

Anocther element of that reconciliation explains that "Internal service funds are used to account for the

group benefit plan. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental

activities in the statement of net assets.” The details of this (§ 28) difference are as follows {in thousands).
Net assets of the internal service funds {($ 26)

Net adjustment to increase fund balance — fotal governmenial funds to arrive at
net assels - governmental aolivities __{$286)

B. Explanation of certain differences befween the governmentsl fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes a
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CITY OF JACKSON
Notes to Financial Siatements
Senternber 30, 2012

Note 2 — Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements
{Continued):

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities
{Continued):

reconciliation between net changes in fund balances — totgl governmental funds and changes in net
assets of governmental aclivities as reporied in the government-wide statement of activities. One element
of that reconciliation explains that *Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of aclivities the cost of those assets is allocated over their sstimated usefut lives and
reported as depreciation expense.” The details of this $4,786 difference are as follows (in thousands):

Capital outlay $ 10,838
Depreciation expense {(5,783)

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances — fotal governmental
funds to arrive at changes in net assets of governmental activities 54786

Another element of that reconciliation states that "The issuance of long-term debt {(e.g., bonds, leases)
provides current financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of fong-
ferm debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Meither fransaction, however,
has any eflect on nel assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums,
discounts, and similar liems when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized
in the statement of activities." The delails of this $1,211 difference are as follows (in thousands):

Principal repayments:

General obligation debt 430
Limited obligation debt 430
Other debt : 342

Net adjustment to decrease nef changes in fund balances — total
governmental funds to artive at changes in net assets of governmenial
activities 51211

Ancther element of that reconciliation states that *The activities from debt related transactions include new
capital lease proceeds reported in the fund statements and retirement of prior lease.” The detalls of this
{$1,015) difference are as follows (in thousands):

Debt issued or incurred:

Capital lease financing $ 3,009
Frincipal repayments:
FPayment on capital lease (4,114)

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances — fotal
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assats of governmenial
activities _($ 1,015)
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MNote 2 — Reconciliation of government-wide and fund financial statements
{Continued):

B. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities
{Continued):

Ancther element of that reconciliation states that "Some expenses reported in the statement of activiies
do not reguire the use of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds.” The details of this ($125} difference are as follows (in thousands).

Compensated absences (& 258)
Workers' compensation benefits {457)
Claims and judgments 1
Agerued interest : Ky
Amortization of bond premium 415
Amortization of bond discounts {28)
Amortization of issuance costs . 155
Amortization of deferred costs 17

Net adjustment to decrease nest changes in fund balances — totaf
governmental funds to arrive at changes in net assels of governmenial

activities (5 125)

Another element of that reconciliation states that "Revenues recognized on the full accrual basis for the
governmeni-wide statements but are not recognized on the fund statements.” The details of this ($1,870)
difference are as follows {in thousands):

Property taxes receivable ($1.876)
Special assessments receivable 3]

MNet adjustment o increase net changes in fund balances — fotal governmental
funds to artive al changes in nef assets of governmenial activities 1$1 870}

Ancther slement of that reconciliation states that "internal service funds are used by management fo
charge the cosis of fleet management and management information systems to individuat funds. The net
revenue of certain activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.” The details
of this ($ 601) difference are as follows (in thousands):

Change in net assets of the internal service funds {($ 601}

Nef adjustment {o decrease nef changes in fund balances — fotal
governmental funds o arrive at changes in net assels of governmental
activities .

($ 801)
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CITY OF JACKSON
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Note 3 — Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability

A, BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The City follows these procedures in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial

statements.

1. The Finance Division of the Deparment of Administration prepares estimates of available
revenue.

2. Department directors submit proposed expendifure budgets to the Finance Division of the
Department of Administration by June 1 each year.

3. The Finange Division of the Department of Administration reviews the expenditure budgets,
ang the necessary revisions are communicated to depariment directors.

4. Budgeted revenues and expenditures are balanced, and a summary budget is prepared by July
1, and presented to the Mayor.

5. The Mayor submits the propesed budget to the City Council by August 1. The final
budget is approved by September 15 and must be published in a local newspaper on or before
September 30. .

6. The budget is formally amended in September each year or any time that budget revisions
through funds reallocalion are necessary or a budget deficit is indicated.

7. The City prepares annusal budgets for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service

Fund, Capital Projects Funds (with the exception of the 1986 Indusirial Park, the 1992 Special
Assessment and the 1996 Metro Station Funds), Enterprise Funds, Internal Ssivice Fund and
Trust Funds {with the axcaption of the Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund). Budgets for the
Enterprise Funds are prepared on a GAAP basis but excluds depreciation and bad debt
expense and inciude debi refirement payments. The General Fund, Debt Service Fund,
Special Revenue Funds, Capital Projects Funds, Internal Service Fund and Trust Funds are
prepared in accordance with GAAP. Budget and actual comparisons are presented in the
accompanying financial statements for all governmental type funds for which a budget is
adopted,

During the fiscal year, several adjustments are normally required to the adopted budget. The
approved budget may be amended as required In accordance with the following profocol:

a. Revenues are reviewed at least quarterly, and the projections are adjusted if warranted.
These adiustments o expected revenues, if material, can precipitate adjustments ta the
axpenditure budget.

"~ b, Adjustmenis to transfer approved expenditure budgets from one department to another or

to transfer from one category to another within a department must be approved by the
City Council. ‘

¢. Al new appropriations must be approved by the Cily Council and are normally submiited
by the Mayor's Office.

The legal level of conirol for all budgets adopted is al the category level by funds with the
exception of the General Fund, which is appropriated at the category level by department.
Administrative control for all budgets ts mainiained through the establishmant of more detalled
line-item budgsts,
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CITY OF JACKSON
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2012

Note 3 — Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability (Continued):

A. BUDGETARY INFORMATION (Corntinued):

The Finance Division of the Depariment of Adminisiration exercises budgetary moniioring
throughout the fiscal year. An adopted budget may not exceed its appropriated leve! without
City Council approval. The Finance Division of the Department of Administration advises the
Mayor whenever a requested expsnditure will exceed budgeted amounts. The City Council
may approve expenditures in excess of budgeted amounts in various funds or departmenis as
appropriate, as long as iolal annmual expenditures do not exceed availlable resources.
Adjustments in expendilure rates, if necessary, are implemented by the Cily Council as
required, so that the lofal expenditures and rescurces will remain in balance throughout the

year.

8. Budgetsd expendifure or expense amounts as originally adopted were amended by the City
Council in Beptember 2012 as provided by law, as follows {in thousands).

General Fund

Special Revenue Funds

Debt Service Fund
Capital Projects Funds
Enterprise Funds
Internal Servige Fund

Originally Budget as Increase
Adopted Budget Amended {Decrease)

§ 125,076 $ 133,308 $ 8,232
46,297 53,482 7,185

14,597 14,873 376

19,349 20,036 8,687

263,760 325,478 61,718

13,063 14,768 1,705

G 482 142 § 571,045 588,003

2. Unexpended appropriations lapse at year end in all funds,

B. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The City has no deficit fund squity by individual fund as of Septermber 30, 2012
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CITY OF JACKSON
Notes to Financlal Statemionts
September 30, 2012

Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds
A DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

1. Policies and Practices

The coliateral for public entities’ deposits in financial instifutions are now held in the name of the State
Treasurer under a program established by the Mississippl State Legislature and Is governed by Sectlon
27-105-5, Mississippi Code Ann. {1872}, Under this program, the entity’s funds are protected through a
coliateral peol administered by the State Treasurer. Financial insfitutions holding deposits of public funds
must pledge securities as collateral against those deposiis. In the avent of fallure of a finandiat institution,
securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer fo replace the public
deposits not covered by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

2. Deposits — Primary government

At year end, the carrying amount of the City’'s deposits was $105,869,111 and the bank balances totaled
$95,574,760. Of the bank balances, $250,000 was insured by federal deposit insurance and $95,324,760
was covered by pooled and/or pledged collateral, as allowed by the Mississippi Code.

3. Inwvestments ~ Primary Government

As of September 30, 2012, the City had investmenis consisting of U.5. Agencies at a fotal fair value of
$2,000,000 with a total Portfolio Weighted Average maturity of less than one year.

Interest Rate Risk — Interesf rafe risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment, As a means of limiting s exposure to losses from rising inierest rates, the City's
invesiment policy limits investment maturities in its portfolic to no mere than 12 months for U.S. Treasury
obligations for all investments except bond funds. With respect to bond funds, the City can invest in
obligations of U.S. federal agencies for no more than 18 months.

Custodial Credit Risk — Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counterparty, the
Chy will not be able fo recover the value of s investment or collateral securities that are in the
possessions of an ouiside party. Consistent with the City's investment policy, all investments above are
hald by a counterparty and are not insured but are backed by the U. 8. government.

Following is a list of the City's eligible investments, which in accordance with State statute are limited fo
the investment of funds In excess of sums required for immediste expenditure or current obligations:
= Certificates of deposit with municipal deposifories approved annually by the State Treasurer
°  Money market mutual funds where portfolios consist entirely of U, 8. governmental and/or
federal agency securities
°  Bonds or direct obligations of the:
- United States of America
- State of Mississippi
- County or Municipality of Mississippi
- School Districts

State statute allows the investment of funds received from the sale of bonds, notes, or certificales of
indebtedness which are not immediately required for disbursement for the purpose issued, in direct
obligations issued by or guaranteed in full by the United Siates of America, or in ceriificates of deposit with
approved municipal depositories.
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CiTY OF JACKSON
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2012

Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds {Continued):
A DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS {Continued):
4. Cash and Investiments - Component Units

The component unit's policy is to invest available funds in the following types of investments: 1) direct
obligations of the U. 8. of America, including such instruments as freasury bills, treasury notes and
treasury bonds; 2) obiigations of U. 8. Government agencies that are deliverable on the Federal Reserve
System; 3) Repurchase agreements in U. 8. Government securities made with dealers that report to and
are regulated by the Federal Reserve Bank; 4) deposits with financial institutions which are insured or are
fully collateralized by qualifying securities,

The collateral for public entities’ deposits in financial institutions is held in the name of the State Treasurer
under a program established by the Mississippi State Legislature and is governed by Section 27-1058-5,
Mississippi Code Ann, (1972). Under this program, the entity's funds are protecied through a collateral
pool administered by the State Treasurer. Financial institutions holding deposits of public funds must
pledge securitiss as collateral against those deposits. In the event of faillure of a financial institution,
securities pledged by that institution would be liquidated by the State Treasurer to replace the public
deposits not covered by the Federal Dapository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). As of September 30, 2012
all of the component unit's cash deposits in excess of the amounts covered by the FDIC were covered
under the collateral pool administerad by the State Treasurer,

Investments are reflected at cost, which approximates fair value. These investments were uninsured,
unregistered, and held by the counterparty brokerage firm. At September 30, 2012, investments of the
compenent unit consisted of the following {(n thousands):

Capital City Convention Center Commission
Certificate of deposit:
Unrestricted $ 500

B. RECEWVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2012, for the primary government's individual major funds and nonmagjor,
internal service, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible
accounts, are as follows (in thousands}): .

Water 2003
Debt and Fedara GO Nonmajor and
Ceneral  Service Sewer Sanitation  Improvement  Grant Bond Other Funds Total
Recsivables:
Accounts receivable $ - % .~ $23888 $ 5899 § - $ - § 5 & - % 29813
Intergovernmental 333 - - - 26 1,472 627 664 3,022
Other 81497 3,652 1,351 . - 14 - 8,101 74,615
Gross receivables §61.83¢ §36562 $265210 & 5898 § 26 % 1486 % 582 & 8,765 $ 107,450

Receivables of Water and Sewer are reported net of uncoliectible amounts.,
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
8. RECEIVABLES {Continued):
1. Property taxes

Property tfaxes on real and personal properly, exclusive of automobiles, attach as an
enforceable lien on the levy date or January 1 for the preceding calendar year. Hinds, Rankin and
Madison Counties bill and ¢ollect the real, personal and auto ad valorem taxes for the City of Jackson,
Jackson Municipal Separate School District and the Jackson/Hinds Library System. Automobile taxes are
remitted monthly and real and personal taxes are remitted on a weekly basis to the City of Jackson. Hinds
County remits direclly fo the Jackson Municipal Separate School District taxes collected for alf school
funds except the Bond and Interest Fund in accordance with Siaite law. Minds County also remiits to the
City a pro rata share of road and bridge taxes collecied by theé County. :

The taxes are due on or before February 1; however, instaliment paymenis can be made one-half of
balance due on February 1 and one-fourth each on May 1 and August 1.

Tax millage levies for 2011 were collected in the current fiscal year and statutory maximum millage rates
ware as follows: :

Fund Levy (in mills) Purpose o Maximum
General Fund ' 45 68 General None
Parks and Recreation Fund 2.00 Recreation 2.00 mills
Debt Service Fund 3.20 Debt retirement None
Disability and Relief Fund 5.75 Retirement None
Total City of Jackson 56.63
Jackson/Hinds Library System 1.40 Public library None

Jackson Municipal Separale
School District:

District Supplement Levy 62.66 Public schools None
Special Debt Retirement Levy 2.20 public schools None
Special Debt Retirement Bond 3.57 Public schools None
Special Debt Retirement 6.56 Public schools None
74.98
Total mills 133.02

The City levies an assessment for the Landscape improvemeni fund which consists of nine cents of the
gross square foolage of land and building of property owners located in the downtown development
district. ‘

The Cily is permitied to levy taxes based on a percentage of up to 100% of fair value of property at the
millage indicated above. Al the present time, the City levies taxes based on 10% of fair value for
homeowner-occupied real property, 15% of fair value for all other real and personal property, and 30% of
fair value for all motor vehicles and properly owned by public service corporations. The City may levy
faxes as necessary to meet bonded debt retirement. Limitations are imposed on the amount of bonded
debt that may be issued based upon assessed valuation of properties.

Annual tax increases for all purposes except payment of general obligation bonds and interest are limited
by Siate law to 10% of the preceding year's receipis plus new construction.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds {Continued):
B. RECEWVABLES (Continued):

1. Property taxes (Continued):

The State levies a 7% sales tax on retail sales and remits 18.6% of collections fo the City monthly.
Intergovernmental revenue of the General Fund includes $28,154,689 of sales tax revenue.

In accordance with the Local and Private Act, since January 1, 2005 the Ciiy has levied, assessed and is
collecting: (a) tax of 1% of the gross proceeds of sales of restaurants and of sales of food and beverages
in the hotels and motels, within the City; {b) a tax of 3% of the gross proceeds of sales of hotel and motel
rooms and lodging within the City; and (¢} a tax of 3% of gross proceeds of sales at the Convention Center
by caterers. The tax is primarify to be used for debt service payments on bonds issued for the
construction of a convention center,

Governmental funds reported deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not
considered to be available to liguidate liabiliies of the current period. Governmental funds also defer
revenue recognifion in connection with resources that have been received, but not yet earned. At the end
of the current fiscal year, the various components of deferred revenue reported In the governmental funds
ware as follows:

Unearned

Delinquent properiy taxes recelvable (general fund) % 1,754,182
Delinguent properiy taxes recelvable {debt service fund) 913,021
Special assessments not yet due (debt servica fund) 99,877
Current year tax assessments (all funds}) 68,509,663
Grant drawdowns prior 1o meeting all eligibility requiremenis 381,658
Total uneamed revenue for governmental funds . $.60,768,401

. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ABSETS

1. Primary government capiial asset activity for the year ended September 30, 2012, was as follows
{thousands): -

Batance Balarice
Beptember 30, September 30,
Governmental Activities: _ 2011 Addifiens Deletions. 2012
Capital assets not being depreclated:
Land L 14,528 § - 8 28 $ 14,500
Constriction in progress B4,078 3,807 - 93,986
Toial capital agsets not being depreciated 98,605 2,907 26 108,486
Caplial assats being depreciated:
Buildings 81,480 - T 81,480
Infrastructure 214,246 - - 214,248
Automotive and equipment 69,981 2824 2,168 70,638
Total capital assets being depreciated 365,707 2,824 2166 366,360
Less accumulated depraciation for:
Bulidings (24,409) (1,481} - (25,600)
Infrastructure {95,656) {3.682) - (99,338)
Automotive and equipment {58,005) (2,748} 2,186 (58,675}
Total accumulated depreciation {177,860} {7.918) 2,166 {183,613}
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 187,847 {5,085) - 182,752

Total governmental activitles capital
assets, net % 288452 % 4812 § 26 % 291,238

53




CITY OF JACKSON
Hotes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2012

Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS {Continued):

Balance Balance
September 30, September 30,
Business-Type Activities: 2011 Additions Deletions 2012
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land % 1,838 § - % - $ 1,838
Conslruction in progress 143,102 15,437 - 158,539
Tolal capital assels not being depraciated 144,940 15,437 - 160,377
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 118,028 A7 - 118,078
Infrastructure 255,686 - ‘ - 269,686
Automotive and eguipment : 28,937 2,282 1,081 27,138
Total capital assets being deprecialed 403,651 2,329 1,081 404,889
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings {74,984) {2,7158) - (77,692)
Infrastructure {113,128) {6,193} - {118,321)
Automolive and equipment {9,9186) {1,930} 1,081 {10,765}
Total accumulated depreciation {198,028) {9,838} 1,081 (206,785) -
Total capital asssts being depreciated, net 205,823 {7,508} - 198,114
Total business-type activities capital assets, net 3 360,663 % 7978 § - % 358,491

2. Depreciation expense was charged to funclions of the primary government as follows (in thousands):

Governmental Activities:

General government % 1,585
Public Works 2,534
Hurman & Cultural 1,425
Public Safely 2,375
Total depreciation expense — governmental gotiviies 3 71.819

Business-Type Activities:

Water/Sewsr 3 8,782
Sanitation - 282
Madison Sewage 12
Transportation 762
Total depreciation expense — business-type activities $ 9838
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued}):
. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued):

3. Construction work in progress at September 30, 2012 for the governmental adlivities of the primary
government is composed of the following:

Remaining
Project Spent-to-date Commilment

Improvement Fund 13,678,710 % 52,080

Community Development Blook Grant 1,884,828 72,647

1982 Industrial Park Bond 49,923 -

1998 G O Public improvement Construction Bond 18,957,891 106,736

2003 G O Public Improvement Construction Bond 24,371,062 - 10,581,309

2007 Tax Increment Limited Obdigation Bond 2,077,736 -

2008 G O Strest Conatruction Bond 20,004,100 1,044,848

2009 American Becovery Reinvestment Act 3,328,528 1,465,996

2012 G O Capltal Project 40,825 9,500

Thalia Mara Hall 308,842 41,038
Economic Development Initiative — ’

Economic Development 3,629,356 259,637

Traffic ~ Repair and Replacement 2,098,058 280,420

Drainage ~ Repair and Replacement 903,224 44,860

Resurfacing — Repair and Replacement 2,218,084 104,814

Parks — Repair and Replacement 341,662 12,335

Total $ 93,085,876 § 14,067 260

4. Constuction work in progress at September 30, 2012 for primary government enferprise funds
is composed of the following:

Remaining
Project Spent-io-date Commitment
Water/Sawer Construction $158,539,620 $24.850.622
Fund
Total H1568 539 670 $24.850,622
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
C. CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS (Continuad)

5. Asummary of changes in capital assets for component units is as follows (in thousands):

Agctivity for the Jackson Redevelopment Authority for the year ended September 30, 2012, was as follows:

Balance Balance
Seplember 30, September 30,
Business-Type Activities: 2011 Additloris Delefions 2012
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 4538 % - § - % 4,538
Construction in progress 136 - 136 -
Property held for development 1,846 67 - 1,913
Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,520 a7 136 6,451
Other capifal assets:
Land improvements 29 - - 28
Buildings 49,979 1,444 - 51,423
Equipment and furiure 1,282 150 - 1,442
Taotal other capital assets 51,300 1,584 - 52,894
Less accumulated depreciation for
Land improvements R 3 - - (29)
Buifdings {(19,321) {1,238} - (20,559)
Equipment and furniture {1,288} {4} - (1,282)
Total capital assels being depreciated £20,638) {1,242} - {21,880)
Total other capital assets, net 30,662 352 - L 31,014
Total capital assets, net $ 37,182 % 418 % 136 § 37,465

Depraciation expense was charged to activities as follows (in thousands):

Urban renewal projects $§ 794
Rehabilitation loan services 1
Parking facilities 447

Total § 1.242

Activity for the Capital City Convention Center Commission for the yvear ended September 30, 2012, was

as follows {in thousands):

Balance Balance
. R September 30, September 30,

Business-Typs Activities: 2011 Aditions Delstions Transfers 2012
Capital assels not being depreciated:
Land ¥ 5792 % - § $ - 8 5,702
Bullding and improvements 79959 3 ‘ - 79,062
Eguipment 4,476 27 - 4,503

80,227 30 - 90,257
Less accumulated depreciation (6,784} {2.483) - {4,267y
Total capital assets, nat $ 83443 % {2,453) % % - $ £0,990
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds {Continued):

0. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS:
Individual fund interfund receivable and payable balanges as of September 30, 2012 foliows {in

thousands):
Interfund interfund
Receivables Payables
General Fund $ 3142 3 .
Federal Grant - 214
Nonmajor Proprietary Furds - 2,628
Total 53,142 § 3,142

Summary of transfer inftransfer out within primary government {in thousands):

Transfer Transfer
in Oug
General Fund $ 1 $ 18,074
Debt Service Fund 7 -
Proprietary Fund 361 38
Federal Grant Fund 832 -
2006 G O Bond ‘ 128 -
Nonmajor Govermnmental Funds 3,746 368
Intemal Serdce Fund 8,628 -
Norwnajor Propristary Funds 4,677 -
Total b 1s.481 $ 16,481

tnterfund transfers at Septermnber 30, 2012 consist of the following (in thousands):

3 7 From Capital Project Nonmajor Fund (2008 Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bond) to the Debt Servics Fund
for debt service payment.
38 From Propretary Funds (Water Sewer) to Nonmajor Proprietary {Medison} fo subsidize operations. r
361 From the Neonmajor Governmental Fund (2012 G O Note] to the Proprietary Fund (Water Sewer) o subsidize
operalions. ’
128 From the Major Governmental Fund {2006 G O Borg) to the Debt Service Fund for debt service payment,
932 From the General Fund to the Nonmajor Governmental Fund (Federal Grant Fund} to subsidize operations.
3,746 From the General Fund fo the Nonmajor Governmental Funds (Parks and Recreation} to subsidize operations,
6,629 From the Ganeral Fund fo the Internal Service Fund to subsidize operations.
4,638 From the General Fund o the Nonmajor Proprietary Funds (Transpertation) to subsidize operations.
1 From the Proprietary Furkis {Senitation} to the General Fund to subsidize operations.
$ 16,481
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds {Continued):
E. CAPITAL LEASES:

The City leases properly with varying terms and options. Most leases contain a clause that siates that the
lease shall terminate in the event that no funds or insufficient funds are appropriated. However, if renewal
is reasonably assured, leases are considered noncancellable leases for financial reporting purposses.

The City has financed through lease agreements the acguisition of the data processing division computer
system, word-processing systems for the legal division, computerized records management system and a
computer-aided dispaich system for the fire and police departments, and various copying and duplicating
squipment. in addition, fractors have been acquired for both the Water Maintenance and the Engineering
Maintenance divisions; golf carts have been acquired for the City's golf courses and riding lawn mowers
have been acquired for park maintenance. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for
accounting purposas and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of future minimum lease
payments as of the date of their inception. Future minimum lease payments under operating leases are
disclosed in the following note. At September 30, 2012, there were assets under capital lease iofaling
$20,786,427 for machinery and equipment. Future minimum lease payments for capital leases are
disclosed in Note 4.G.8.

The City has reported the proceeds of capital leases related to its Proprietary Funds as inflows of cash
since the City receives cash advances from the lessors and purchases the related assets.

F. OPERATING LEASES:

The City is obligated under certain noncanceliable leases for land and buildings with terms remaining
more than one year that are classified as operating leases. Operating leases do not glve rise to properly
rights; therefore, the results of the lease agreements are not reflected In the City's account groups. Total
lease expenditures for the rental of all land and buildings under operating leases for the year ended
September 30, 2012, amounted fo $510,313. The following is a schedule by years of future minimum
lease paymenis reguired under the noncancellable land and building operating leases as of
September 30, 2012, {in thousands of dollars):

Fiscal Year . Amount
2013 $ 188
2014 188
2015 188
2018 123
2017 and thereafter 2,675
Total $3.362

The total rental expenditires for all operating leases of the City for the year ended September 30, 2012
totaled to $1,287,207. There were no subleases or contingent rentals associated with the operating
loases.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds {Continued):
G. LONG-TERM DEBT:
1. General Obligation Bonds

The City issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisifion and construction of major
capital facilities. General obligation bonds have been issued for both general government and proprietary
activities. These bonds therefore are reported in the proprietary funds if they are to be repaid jrom
proprietary revenues.

The City issued $20 million of general obligation bonds in January 2003 to provide funds for the costs of:
(A) erecting, repairing, improving, and equipping municipal buildings, (B} improving streets, (C) traffic
signals, {D) drainage improvements.

On August 4, 2005, the City issued $20,860,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds with an average
interest rate of 4.26 percent to advance refund $20,710,000 of outstanding General Obligation Bonds,
Series 1998 with an average interest rate of 5.05. The net proceeds of $21,904,652 (after payment of
$343,777 in underwriting fees, insurance anhd other issuance cosis) were used to purchase U. 8.
government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable frust with an escrow agent to
provide for afl future debt service paymenis for the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1898, As a result,
the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1898 bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability for those
bonds has been removed from the government-wide statement of net assets. A portion {$7,480,000} of
the General Obligation Bonds, Series 1898 was not refunded.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisifion price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $1,401,036, This difference is being charged to opera‘zions through the year
2017. The City compleled the advance refundmg to reduce ifs total debt service paymenis over the next
12 years by $816,585 and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old
and new debt service paymenis) of $861,719.

On November 8, 2006, the City issued $65,000,000 in General Obligation Bonds to provide funds {g) to
purchase the City Bond {o provide funds to the City in order to finance the acquisition, consfruction,
aquipping, and furnishing of a convention center in the City to be known as the Capital City Convention
Center and for other authorized purposes under the Act (the "Construction Project”), and (b} to pay the
Costs of Issuance of the Serles 2006 Bonds and the City Bond, including the cost of the premium for the
Bond Insurance Policy, :

On January 1, 2009 the City issued $26,210,000 General Obligation Street Resurfacing Bond. The Bonds
are being Issued to provide funds to (a) purchase the City Bond to provide funds fo the City to pay the
costs of constructing, improving and paving streets, sidewalks, driveways, parkways, watkways and public
parking facilifies, and purchasing land therefore; and constructing bridges and culverts and (b) pay the
Costs of Issuance of the Bonds and the City Bond.

On September 1, 2010 the City issued $23,665,000 in General Obligation Refunding Bonds Series A & B.
The bonds were issued 1o provide funds 1o the City in order to refund, defease and/or resiructure certain
outstanding matwrities on the $5490,000 General QObligation Refunding Bond, Series 1688, the
$35,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 1998, the $20,000,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series
2003, the $20,960,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2005, the $5,155,000 General
Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2008, and the $26,210,000 Generai Obligation Bonds, Series 2009,
and to pay the costs of issuance.

On April 1, 2012 the City issued $11,500,000 in General Obligation Note, Series 2012. The nole was
issued to provide {a) erecting municipal buildings; (b} establishing sanilary, storm, drainage or sewage
and repairing, improving and extending the same; (¢) constructing bridges; and (d) constructing, improving
or paving sireets, sidewsalks, driveways, parkways, walkways or public parking facilites and purchasing
land.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):
G. LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED):

The average interest rate on the 2010 General Obligation Refunding Bond is 4.17%. The net proceeds of
$25,128,292 resulted in an economic loss to the City in the amount of ($2,116,552). The 1998 General
Ohligation Bond $5,490,000, the 1998 General Obligation Bond $35,000,000, and the 2008 General
Chtigation Bond $5,155,000 are considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds have been
removed from the government-wide statement of net assels. A portion of the 2003 General Obligation
Bond $20,000,000, 2005 General Refunding Bond $20,960,000, and the 2009 General Obligation Bond
$26,210,000 were not refunded.

At September 30, 2012, the City had $7,550,000 of general obligation bonds considered to be defeased
and ocutstanding. .

Geaneral obligation bonds are direct obligations and pledge the full faith and credit of the City. These
bonds generally are issued as serial bonds in denominations of $5,000 with principal maturing annually
and interest due at various semi-annual dates. General obligation bonds currently outstanding at
September 30, 2012, were as follows (in thousands):

Final
Date of Interest Maturity
, Obllgation Rate Date [ssuad Quistanding
General Obllgation Bonds:
MS Development Bank GO Bods, Serles 2003 01/05/03 2.00-825% 0301123 20,000 § 12,385
Genergl Obligation Bonds, Refunding 2005 08/04/05 3.60-5.00% 1001117 20,980 9,615
General Obligation Bonds, Seties 2006 11/08/06 3.60-5.00% 03704136 656,000 64,570
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2008 01/01109 4.00-5.80% M4 26,210 21,045
General Obllgation Refunding Series 2010A 08/01/10 3.60-5.00% 08/01/24 16,655 16,665
General Obligation Refunding Sedes 20108 - 09/0110 4.370 08/01/24 7,010 2,010
Totat General Qbligation Bonds $.131,290
Final
Date of interest Maturity
Ohligation Rate Date issued Quistanding
General Obligation Notes:
General Obligation Notes Payable Serles 2012 04/0112 1.71 08/01/24 402 & 402
Total General Obligation Notes § 402

2. Revenue Bonds

On Oclober 22, 2004, the City issued $78,085,000 of Water/Sewer System Revenue and Revenue
Refunding Bonds with an average interest rate of 4.53 percent fo provide construction funding of
$57,085,452 and to advance refund $5,030,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds,
Series 1080 with an average interest rate of 6.38 percent and to advance refund $5,895,000 of
outstahding Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 with an average interest rate of 3.71. The
net proceeds of $11,567,152 {(after payment of $210,259 in underwriling fees, insurance and other
issuance costs) were used to purchase U.S. government securifies. Those securities were deposited in
an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for all future debt service payments on the portions of
the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 199¢ and the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2002 that were refunded.
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Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds {Continued):

G. LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued):

As a resull, the porbion of the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1989 and the Water/Sewaer
System Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 that were refunded are considered to be defeased and the I|abzirty
for those bonds has been removed from the Water/Sewer Proprietary Fund.

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying
amount of the old debt of $642,152. This difference is being charged fo operations through the year 2034,
The City compieted the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 6 years
by $9,212,277 which resulted in an economic gain {difference between the present values of the old debt
and the new dabt service payments) of $200,734.

On August 4, 2005, the City issued $27,180,000 in Water/Sewer System Revenue Refunding Bonds with
an average interest rate of 4.32 percent fo advance refund $25,800,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer
System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 with an average interest rate of 5.21. The net proceeds of
$27,758,429 (after payment of $496,236 in underwriting fees, insurance and other issuance costs) were
used to purchase U.8. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an irrevocable trust with
an escrow agent to provide for ali future debt service paymenis for the Waler/Sewear System Revenue
Bonds, Series 1989. As a resull, the Waler/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Seties 1899 bonds are
considered to be defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the Water/Sewer
Propristary Fund. A portion ($5,085,000) of the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 was
not refunded. The advance refunding resulled in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net
carrying amount of the old debt of $2,785,028. This difference is being charged o operations through the
year 2024, The City completed the advance refunding o reduce its total debt service payments over the
next 19 yvears by $1,057,504 and to obtain an economic gain {difference between the present values of the
old debt and the new debt service payments) of $1,383,102.

On September 1, 2011, the City issued $46,720,000 and $2,565,000 in Water/Sewer System Revenue
Refunding Bonds o advance refund $42,355,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2002, $1,140,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding, Series 2004, and $2,780,000
of outstanding Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding, Sgries 2005. The purpose for issuing the Tax-Exempt
Bonds Is (a) to fund the 2011A Purchase Account, in order to provide funds for the purchase of the Tax-
Exempt Clty Bond {which amounts are fo provide financing for the refunding, defeasance andfor
restructuring of a portion of the Prior Bonds pursuant o the Act), (b} to pay the premium for the Bond
Insurance Policy and the Surety Bond for the Tax-Exempt Bonds, and {¢) to fund the 2011A Bond
Issuance Expense Account to pay the Cosfs of Issuance in connection with the Tax-Exempt Bonds:and
the Tax-Exempt City Bond, The purpose for issuing the Taxable Bonds is (a) to fund the 20118 Purchase
Account, in order to provide funds for the purchase of the Taxable Gity Bond (which amounts are 1o
pravide financing for the refunding and/or restructuring of a portion of the Prior Bonds pursuant to the Act),
{b) to pay the premium for the Bond Insurance Policy and the Sursty Bond for the Taxable Bonds, and {c)
o fund the 2011B Bond Issuance Expense Account to pay the Costs of Issuance in connection with the
Taxable Bonds and the Taxable City Bond. The City completed the advance refunding to reduce its debt
service payments over the next 23 years by $3,838,070 and o obtain an economic gain (difference
between the present values of the old debt and the new debt service payments} of $144,148.

On September 1, 2012, the City issued $63,045,000 and $19,180,000 in Water/Sewer Revenue
Refunding Bonds to advance refund $78,120,000 of outstanding Water/Sewer System Revenue
Refunding, Series 2004. The purpose for issuing the Tax-Exempt Bonds is {a} amount will provide
financing for the refunding, defeasance and/or restructuring of the Series 2004 Bonds and the 2004 City
Bonds, (b) as to the Taxable Bonds, to purchase the Taxable City Bond, which amount will provide
financing for the refunding, defeasance and/or restructuring of the Series 2004 Bonds and 2004 City
Bonds, {c) to pay premium for the Surety Bond and the Policy and (d) to fund the costs of issuance in
connection with the Series 2012 Bonds and the Series 2012 City Bonds, The City completed the advance
refunding to reduce its debt service payments over the next 22 years by 33,067,182 and fo obiain an
economic gain (difference between the present vaiues of the old debt and the new debt service payments)
of $3,062,988,
‘ 61



CITY OF JACKSON
Notes to Financial Statements
September 30, 2012

Note 4 — Detailed notes on all funds (Continued):

. LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued}:

Revenue bonds outstanding, at September 30, 2012, were as follows {in thousands):

Finat
) Date of Interest Maturity

Revenue Bonds: Qbligation Rate Date Issued Quistanding
Enterprise Funds:

Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 2005 a7/01/05 3.06-5.00% 090124 27,1680 § 22,920
Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 2011A 08/01/11 2.50-5.00% 0801134 46,720 46,720
Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 20118 0801711 4.070-5.40% 08/01734 2,565 2,565
Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 20412A 00/01/12 3.50-5.00% 08/01/34 63,045 63,045
Water/Sewer Revenue Refunding 20128 09/01/12 1.00-2.376% 09/01/20 19,180 19,180

At September 30, 2012, the Clty had $115,670,000 of revenue bonds considered to be defeased and
outstanding.

3. Tax Increment Limited Obllgation Bonds

The City issued $2.270 million of tax increment Hmited obligation bonds in December 2007 to provide
funds for the costs of constructing cerfain infrastructure improvements, site development and or site
preparation in connection with the development and construction of a redevelopment project located within
the City. The City entered into an Interlocal Cooperation Agreement with Hinds County, Mississippi, to
provide the pledge of certain ad valorem tax revenues for the payment of the principal and interest on the
bonds. As a result, the bonds are not a general obligation of the City. Limited obligation bonds
outstanding at September 30, 2012, are as follows (in thousands): '

Final
: Date of Interest Maturnity
Limited Obligation Bonds: Oblination Rate Date lssued Qutstanding

General Long-Term Debt:
Tax Increment Financing

Bonds, 2007 1212812007 A AT% arfee20 2,270 $ 4,690
Tax Increment Financing .

Bonds, 2008 412312009 4.20% 41172024 407 ©oa62
Tax Increment Financing

Bonds, 2008 6/16/2008 3.83% FHfz015 375 108
Tax Increment Financing

Bonds, 2009 B/19/2000 4.75% THI2022 1,600 1,323
Tax Increment Financing

Bonds, 2010 1273012010 - % 72022 2,800 2,53¢

Total Limited Obligation Bonds $6.102

4. Section 108 Loan

On July 1, 2008, the City entered into a loan guaranty assistance in an amount not to exceed the
$10,000,000 under Section 108 of the Housing and Communily Deveiopment Act of 1974 for the purpose
of providing assistance for the Capital City Cenler Revitalization Project and for development of a
revolving business loan program. Under the Contract for Loan Guarantee Assistance between the City
and HUD, HUD authorized the Cily to loan up to $10,000,000 under the 108 Program-to TCI MS
Investment, Inc. for special economic development activities under 24 CFR 570.703(1)(1) and 570.203(b)
and, in parficular, for "site assemblage” costs for the Revitalization Project. Upon repayment of the TCI
Loan, the Cily is authorized to use funds under the 1098 program for the Business Loan Pool.
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G. LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued):

The Revitalization Prolect is to consist of development of two (2) hotels, commercial and retail space, a
parking garage and residential facilities to help revitalize the City's CBD while providing job creation for
persons of low and moderate income through construction activities and then through the new businesses
opened as part of the Revitalization Project. The Business Loan Pool is to be used {o provide loan to for-
profit and non-profit businesses and organizations which meet the eligibility requirements of 24 CFR
570.703, the nationat objective requirements of 570.208 and, if applicable, the public benefit standards of
570.208(b}.

As required by the Guaranty Agreement, the City also entered into an agreement with Regions Bank to
sefve as custodian of original loan and security documents for the loan to TCL

5. Jackson Redevelopment Authority
Urban Renewal Bonds and Notes

Urban renewal bonds and notes are issued to provide funds for various rehabilitation projects at
September 30, 2012, were as follows (in thousands):

Flnal
Date of Interest Maturity
Cbligation Rate Date isgued Outsianding
Urban Renewsal Bongs:
Enterprise Funds:
Urban Renewal Central :
Business District, 1908-4 09/01738 4.50-8.375% 09/01/23 2,825 § 115
Urhan Renewal Bond, Saﬂas. 2011-A 060 3.25% 06/1131% 7,165 7018
Lrban Renewal Bond, Seres, 2011-B 06047114 5.15% 060123 2,745 2735
Total Urban Renewal Bonds and Notes § 0865
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G, LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

6. A summary of long-term debt transactions for the primary government and for the component unit for
the vear ended September 30, 2012, was as foliows (in thousands):

Governmental activities:

Bongs and loans payable;
Genegral obligation bonds
Limited obligation bonds
General Obligation Note
State revolving loan MDA
Miss. Developrent Bank Loan
Section 108 Loan
Less deferred amounts:

For issuance discount

On refunding

For issuance premium

Total bords payable

Capital leases
Claims and judaments
Workars' Compensation Benefits
Compensated absances

Total Governmental Activity

Business-fype activitias:
Bonds and loans pavable:
Revenue bonds
Less deferred amounts:
For issuance discount
For issuance premiums
On refunding
Total bonds payable
Capiial leases
Staie Revolving Loan (DEQ)
Compensated absences

Total Business-type activities

B

£

§

Component Unlt — Jackson Redevelopment Authority

Urban Renewal bonds
Less deferred amounis:
On refunding
Total Component Unit

Total Long-Term Dabt

k

$
$

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
13,720 0§ - 8 430 % 131,280 § 2,800
8,841 - 439 8,102 467
- A2 - 402 -
430 - 47 383 41
3,338 - 295 3,040 204
7.000 - - 7.600 -
{519} - {(28) (481} -
1,221 - 155 1,066 -
1852 - 415 3.437 ~
153,680 402 1,753 152,229 3,682
18,073 3,080 4,114 17,068 4,936
2,068 561 560 2,069 560
4,833 1,230 1,687 4,476 1,840
4,835 2037 2,296 4,676 2,646
30,008 8827 8,657 28,279 10,081
183,588 § 7,320 % 10410 $ 180,508 § 13,773
148,325 § 82225 &% 76,120 & 154,430 & 5,155
(2,522) 131 {1,819} (572} -
3,477 4,135 1,757 5,855 -
g 1,281 3,326 {1,054) -
180,271 87,772 78,384 158.659 5,158
2,758 2,094 1,783 3,088 296
13,799 471 1,602 12,578 1,586
545 3z Ry 535 386
17,102 2,886 3,806 16,182 2,978
167,373 an658 3 83,190 § 174841 % 4,133
11,120 % - % 1,305 § 10015 § 465
(167) - i7 {150
10853 § - % 1088 % 9,865 § 465
361,915 & 7,887 & 94,688 % 365214 8§ 22,371
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G. LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued):

7. The City's legal debt margin for the issuance of general obligation bonds was $101,746,803 at
September 30, 2012,

8. Annual Maturities Requlrements

The annual requiremerts to amortize all long-erm debls cutstanding, net of unamortized bond discount of
$448,374 for the component unii as of September 30, 2012, including interest, by source of retirement are
as follows (in thousands}:

Debt Service Fund (Special Tax Lavy)
General Obligation Bonds

Fiscal Year interest Principal Total
2013 5 6,232 $ 2,890 $ 9,122
2014 6,142 5,610 11,752
2018 5,823 5,955 11,878
2016 5,630 6,330 11,860
2017 5318 4,025 9,343 -
2018 - 2022 21,276 38,665 59,841
2023 - 2027 11,706 28,585 40,291
2028 — 2032 7,489 18,585 26,074
2033 - 2037 2,157 20,645 22,802

Total $ 71,873 $ 131,280 $ 203,163
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G, LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued):

Limited
Obligation Bonds
Fiscal Year _Interest Principal
2013 $ 266 § 467
2014 255 488
20158 243 518
2018 229 476
2017 273 502
2018 - 2022 412 2,300
2023 - 2027 203 797
2028 —2032 - 554
2033 - 2037 - -
2038 - 2042 - -
Total $ 187 5 6,102

General Fund {General Fund Revenues)

Ohbligation Under Capital

Total

$-9,845
12,495
12,639
12,665
10,118
62,653
41,291
28,628

22,802

$ 211,136

Leases
Fiscal Year Interest Principal Total
2013 $ 475 $ 4,838 3 5411
2014 361 3,841 4,202
2015 277 2,568 2,843
2018 216 1,154 1,370
2017 179 791 970
2018 — 2022 634 2,134 2,768
2023 - 2627 166 1,636 1,802
2028 — 2032 w - -
Tolal $ 2,308 $ 17,058 $ 19,366
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G. LONG-TERW DEBT (Continued}:

Enterprise Funds - Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund [(Water/Sewer Revenug)

Revenue Bonds

Fiscal Year Interest Principal
2013 $ 6,270 $ B85
2014 6,133 5,605
2015 5 0858 B 750
2016 5,810 5,830
2017 ‘ 5,614 6,125
2018 - 2022 24,744 33,935
2023 - 2027 16,017 34,975
2028 ~ 2032 8,339 36,040
2033 - 2037 964 17,915
Total $.80.776 $ 154,430

Obiigations Under
Capiial Lease

Fiscal Year Interest Principal
2013 $ 47 $ 1,198
2014 28 860
2015 15 869
2016 4 142
2017 Co- -
2018 - 2022 - -
Total 3 3,068
] State Revolving Loan
Fiscal Year Interest Principal

2013 $ ar4 L1 1,757

2014 307 1,825

2018 245 1,316

2016 202 1,083

2017 168 1,081

2018 - 2022 378 4,462

2023 - 2027 83 1,036

2028 ~ 2032 1 18

2033 .- 2037 - -

Total $ 1,738 $ 12,578
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$ 14,801
14,758
14,180
13,171
12,985
83,519
52,091
47,398

18,879
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G. LONG-TERM DEBT {Continued):

Jackson Redevelopment Authority (Urban Renewal Project Revenues)
Jackson Redeveiopment Authority

Motes Payable, Urban Renswal
Notes and Bonds

Fiscal Year Interest Principal Total
2013 $ 434 & 485 $ 820
2014 418 485 801
2015 399 4490 839
2016 382 460 842
2017 365 470 835
2018 - 2022 1,435 3,245 4,880
2023 - 2027 775 2,375 3,150
2028 - 2032 239 20758 2,314
4. 445 10,015 14,460

Unamortized refunding

cost and discounts ~ 150 ' 150
Total ' 5 4,445 $ 9865 $14,310

The City has unconditionally and irrevocably agreed o grant and coniribute o the Jackson
Redevelopment Authority from the General Fund of the Cify sums sufficient 1o pay the principal of and
interest on the bonds issued by the Jackson Redeveiopment Authority for urban renewal purposes, as the
same shali mature and become due. Principal and interest maturities for 2012 were pasd by contributions
from the General Fund of $706,926.

There are a number of requirements contained in various revenue bond ordinances. The Cify is in
compliance with alt significant requirements.

8. Annual Matorities Requiremenis

The annual requirements to amortize all debt outstanding for the City and the component unit as of
September 30, 2012, including interest of $449,374 for the component unit are as follows (in thousands):

Jackson
City of Redevelopment
Fiscal Year Jackson Authority
2013 : $ 30,057 3 899
2014 31,456 a0
2015 29,662 839
2016 27,208 842
2017 24,073 835
2018 and thereafter 340.731 10,144
Total 483 187 $ 14,480
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G. LONG-TERWM DEBT (Continued):
10. Inferest Rate Swap

On March 31, 2004, the City and the Mississippi Development Bank (collectively "the City") executed a
confirmation with RFPG, LLC (a subsidiary of Rice Finmancial Products Company) (the “2004 Swap
Counterparty”), in connection with the execution of an Inlerest Rate Swap Agreement (the 2004 Swap
Agreement™} in order to reduce the debt service costs associated with certain outstanding obligations of
the City. The swap wag done in conjunction with the Mississippi Development Bank Special Obligation
Bonds Series 2002 {Jackson, Mississipp] Water and Sewer System Revenue Bond Project) issued to fund
certain water and sewer improvements for the City, The notional amount of the swap is $49,105,000. The
Gity received a savings pre-payment of $287 315 from the 2004 Swap Counterparty.

Under the 2004 Swap Agresment the City receives a fixed rate from the 2004 Swap Counterparly, and in
return pays a fixed rate less an Adjustment Factor. The Adjustment Factor exposes the City to changes in
the ratio between the {acexempt BMA Index and LIBOR. Paymenis on the swap are exchanged
semiannually. The swap became effective on April 1, 2005 and will terminate on April 1, 2024, An early
termination of the swap fransaction may result in the City making or regeiving a termination payment
based on the prevailing market interest rates at the time of such termination. As of September 30, 2012,
the mark to market value of the transaction was $2,600,201 for the City, which Is not recorded, in the
financial statements. in fiscal year 2011, the Cily refunded the Water/Sewer System Revenue Bonds,
Series 2002,

Risks Associated with the 2004 Swap Agreement

Credit Risk — The City's swap relies on the performance of the 2004 Swap Counterparty. The City is
exposed fo the risk that the 2004 Swap Counterparly s unable to fulfill its obligations to the City. The
ohligations of the 2004 Swap Counterparty to the City are guaranteed by a third parly guarantor that
mainfains credit ratings of Aaa/AAAAAA by Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's and Fitch,
respectively.

Basis Risk — The City pays fixed rales on the Mississippi Development Bank 8pecial Obligation Bonds
Series 2002 (Jackson, Mississipp! Water and Sewer System Revenue Bond Project). .

Interest Rate Risk — The City Is exposed {o changes In refationships betwean tax-exempt and taxable
interest rates that may be affected by changes in the marginal tax rate, the elimination of tax preferences
or other major changes lo current fax law including, but not imited to, implementation of a flat tax or value-
added tax,

Termination Risk - The 2004 Swap Agreement doss not contain any extraordinary termination evenis or
iriogers that would expose the Gity to significant termination risk. If the 2004 Swap Counterparty fails to
mest its obligations to the Cily, these obligations will be met by a third party guarantor thal malintains credit
ratings of AaalAAAAAA by Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's and Fitch, respectively. [ the
third party guarantor suffers a loss of creditworthiness, the 2004 Swap Counterparty shall find an
acceptable replacement guarantor, If such replacement guaranior is not available or ¥ the Gty falls to
meef its obligations to the 2004 Swap Counterparty, the termination provisions in the 2004 Swap
Agreement will apply. The City may be liable for a payment equal to the fair market valus of the swap H a
termination occurs prior to April 1, 2024 and that fair market value is negative.
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Note 5 — GASB 54 Fund Balance Presentation ~ Classification Total

The City adopted GASB Statemant 94 during the vear ended September 30, 2012 as such, fund
balance of the governmental funds are classified by specific purpose as follows:

Monmajer Tatel
Improvement 1998 G 2603 GO 2686 GO¥ Gover H Gover tal
Generat Pand  Federal Grmut Dbt Service Pend Bond Bund Bend 2008 GO Bond Fuuds Fruands P
FUND BALANCES: ‘
NONSPENDABLE:
Generat povernsment § 2,159,625 b3 - b - b3 - & - ¥ - 8 - $ - & - § 2,159,635
RESTRICTEDR FOR:
General govermment - £1,033 - - - . - . 168,780 250,833
Public safety a58,112 43,889 - - - - - - 7,451 05,452
Fublie works - 481,585 - - - - - - - . 581,585
: Fiwsnan and Cultared ssrvices . 829,428 . . . ; - - 414 529,852
Delbt zervice reserve - - 2,331,343 - . . . . . 2,331,343
COMMITTED TO:
General government ‘ 1,617,003 - . 13,332 - - - - B 3,692,335
Public safety - 1,172,273 - - - . . “ “ - 1,172,273
Public works . - - 1376487 365,223 3,193,255 315,627 4,240,771 - 9,451,363
o and Culiurs! servitos - - - - - . - - 2,134,692 2,134,692
Emploges benefits - - - - - - - - 51,297 51,297
ASSIGNED TO:
General governmest 48,733 - . . - - - - - 48,733
UNASSIGNED:
General government 76,275,852 - . - - . - - - 26,275,852
Public safety 34,255 - - . - - - - - 34,255
Total fund balances $33965853 31535945 82331383 $30IMS  $365223  §5,193255  § 315427 B4AMMOTIL 5 236363 3 49709470
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Note 6 — Other Information
A. RISK MANAGEMENT
- 4. Workers Compensation Benefits

The City maintains a self-funded workers compensation plan accounted for in the General Fund.
Commercial insurance is oblained to protect the City from excess losses greater than $1,000,000 per
individual claim for police and fire empioyess. Commercial insurance is obtained to protect the City from
excess losses greater than $400,000 per individual claim for ali other employees. Benefits paud fo
employees during fiscal year 2012 were $1,687,802.

Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are actuarially determined based on observed patterns of claims
paymerts and case reserves development. Liabilities are based on the ulimate costs of setlling claims,
including inflation and other factors, and includes provisions for estimated claims adjustment expenses,

2. Unemployment Benefits

The City aiso maintains an Unemployment Compensation Revolving Fund (Employee Benefit Trust Fund)
established pursuant to state law. In addition to funding ali valid claims, the City is required to maintain
the balancs in the fund at not less than 2% of the first $7,000 paid each employes during the preceding
vear. As of September 30, 2012, the required amounts were funded. Claims tofaled $127,976 during
fiscal year 2012. Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are based on patterns of claims payments.

3. Group Benefits

Additionally, the City maintains the Employees’ Group Benefit Fund {internal Service Fund} to account for
the acoumulation of reveruss, principally confributions from the City of Jackson and employees to be used
to fund future liabilities and current payment of employer medical claims . and  related  administration
expenditures of the City's group benefit plan. Revenues totaled $8,137,831 and employee benefit costs
were $14,722,224 during fiscal year 2012. Claims incurred but not reported at September 30, 2012, in the
Employees’ Group Benefit Fund are provided for in the fund balance of that fund based primarily upon an
actuary's estimate.

4. Tort Liability

In compliance with the Tort Claims Act, Chapter 48 of Title 11 and as amended by the 1993 Legislature,
Section 11-46-17{3) requires all municipalities from and after October 1, 1983, fo obiain such policies of
insurance, establish self-insurance reserves, or provide a combination of insurance and reservas
necessary to cover all risks of claims and suits for which the City of Jackson may be liable under the Tort
Claims Act.

in order to assure compliance with the Tort Claims Act, House Bill 417 established the Mississippi Tort
Claims Board. Municipalities are required to submit plans of insurance, self-insurance and or reserves to
the Tort Claims Board for approval.

Municipalities may comply with the requirements of the Tort Claims Act by one of the following methods:
{1} Purchase of liability insurance, {2} Pooling of two or more municipaliies or other political subdivision to
purchase Hability insurance or to self insure, {3} Self-insure with the establishment of a selfdinsurance
reserve fund.
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Mote 6 — Other Information (Continued):

A, RISK MANAGEMENT {Confinued):

4. Tort Liability (Continued):

The City of Jacksen s in compliance by using method number three as indicsted above. The 2012 fiscal
‘yvear budget had the monies necessary to establish the reserve fund at the required funding level.

Estimates of the liability for unpaid claims are actuarially determined.

For the past three years, the setflement amount for claims against the City has not exceaded the amount
of insurance coverage maintained by the City,

The following table provides a reconcilistion of changes in the ligbilities for claims for vears ended
Saptember 30, 2012 and 2011:

. Unamployment Workers'
Employee Tori Benefits Compensation
Benefit Fund Claims Fund Benefits
2012: )
Beginning Bailance
$ 284,190 § 2.087,187 & - $ 4,933,746
Current Year Claims/Changes in Esfimnates 14,722,224 561,529 127,976 1,230,129
Claims Paymenis 14,585,180 558,904 127,976 1,687,802
Ending Balance $ 411,234 $ 2068822 & - $ 4,476,073
201t
Beglmning Balance
$ 360,791 % 2,788,833 $ - $ 5,108,260
Current Year Claims/Changes in Estimates 13,515,614 . B82,328 135,755 1,643,314
Claims Payments 13,582,215 1,603,864 135,785 1.818,428&
Ending Balance $ 284,190 $ 2,067,197 & - $ 4,033,746

5. Other Risks

The City of Jackson Is exposed to various other risks of loss related to theft of, damage to and
destructions of assels, errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Cily purchases commercial
insurance policy covering employee dishonesty up to $100,000 per employee with a $1,000 deductible.
The City carries casually insurance in the amount of $300,000,000 with a $5,000 deductible to protect
against damage to property caused by nalural disaster or other casualties, Amounis of setilements have
not exceeded insUrance coverage in the past three years,

B. COMMITMENTS
During fiscal year 1983, the City entered into a revolving loan agresment with the Depariment of
Ervironmental Quality (DEQ) for loans to the Jackson Water/Sewage Disposal System Fund, The City

has pledged sales tax reimbursements from the State of Mississippi to repay the DECG loans. The
outstanding balance of the revolving Joans at September 30, 2012, was $12,577,152.
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Note 6 — Other Information {Continued):
C. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On February 28, 2013, the City of Jackson issued General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2013
(Capital City Convention Center Project) of sixty-four nine hundrad forty million doilars {$64,940,000) for
the purpose of refunding the General Obligation Bonds, Series 2006..

On March 25, 2013, the City of Jackson governing body adopted a resclution declaring its intention to
either issue and sell general obligation bonds of the City or enter Into a loan in an amount not to exceed
Twelve Million Doliars {$12,000,000), all for the purpose of providing financing for the City infrastructure
projects which will result in a substantial public benefit to the citizens of the City.

On March 29, 2013, the City of Jackson refinanced existing energy performance leases for interest rate
savings.

On April 16, 2013, the City of Jackson governing body adopted a resolution declaring its intention fo issue
Water and Sewer Revenue bonds of the City in an amount not fo exceed ninety million doliars
($90,000,000), all for the purpose of providing financing for the City combined water and sewer system
which will result in a substantial public benefit to the citizens of the Cily.

Subsequent events have been evaluated through May 3, 2013, which represents the date the
comprehensive annual financial report were available to be issued. Subsequent events after thai date
have not been evaluated.

0. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES:
Litigation

The City is defendant in a number of legal actions seeking actual and punitive damages. Confingencies
fotaling $047,000 for which it Is probable a loss has been incurred and are subject to reasonable
estimation are recognized in the financial statements in the govemnmenta! funds. The City is vigorously
defending all matters of fitigation and believes there will be no material adverse financial effect.

The City of Jackson is the subject of an enforcement action by the United States Environmeantal Protection
Agency. The City shail pay the sum of $437,916 as a civil penalty to be paid in four (4} installments of
$100,479. The City shall pay to the United States Environmental Protection Agency sixty percent {60%)
and forty percent (40%) to the Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality of each installment of the
civil penalty plus any interest due. This civil penalty is for violations of the Clean Water Act.

Over the last two years, the City of Jackson has been unable to obtaln a viable financing plan for the
Capital City Revitalization Project. Subsequent to September 30, 2012, the City bagan negotiating & deed
in lieu of foreclosure for the land that is securing the loan under the section 108 loan. As a result, an
amendment to the City's Consolidated Plan was not necessary., Upon receipt of the deed in lieu of
foreclosure and the acquisition of all other lands necessary for the convention center project, Jackson
Redevelopment Authority (JRA) will issue an RFP for a new hotel devetoper.

E. JOINT VENTURES

The following provides the summary financial information of the Jackson/Hinds Library System as of
September 30, 2012 {in thousands).

Jackson/Hinds Library System

Total assets 1432

Tolal iabilities

Total fund eguily $1.210

Tofal revenuss $4301 {1}
Tofal expenditures $4.252

Net increase {decrease) in fund balance I

Totai debt

A

{1} The percentage share of the joint venture spplicable to the Clty of Jackson s fifty percent
{50%}.
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Note 6 — Other Information (Continued):
F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM:

The City of Jackson parlicipates in two retirement systems administered by the Public Employees'
Retirement System of Mississippi {(PERS). Both systems are defined beneflt plans and include a mulli-
employer, cost-sharing pension plan and an agent multi-employer pension plan as described below:

Public Emplovees’ Retiremsent System

1.' Plan Description and Provisions

Substantially ali City of Jackson full-time employees participate in PERS, a multi-emplover, cosl-
sharing, defined banefit public employee pension plan. PERS provides retirement and disability
benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefils {o ptan members and beneficiaries.
Benefit provisions are established by Section 21-29-201 of the Mississippi Code of 1942 as
annotated, and may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legislature, PERS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial siatements and required supplementary
information. That information may be obtained by writing to Public Employee Retirement System,
PERS Building, 429 Mississippt Sireet, Jackson, MS 38201-1005 or by calling (601) 350-3589 or
1-800-444-PERS.

2. Description of Funding Policy

PERS members are required to contribute 9.00% of their annual covered salary and the City of
Jackson is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate. The current rafe is 12.00% of
annual covered payroll. The contribution requirements of PERS members are established and may
be amended only by the Stale of Mississippi Legislature.

Annual Pension Cost. For 2012, the City’s annual pension cost of $7,079,036 for PERS was equal
to the City's required and actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of
the September 30, 2012, actuarial valugtion using the eniry age actuarial cost method. PERS's
unfunded actuarial acerusd liahility is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on
a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at September 30, 2012 was 22 years.

Three-Year Trend Information for PERS
{Dollar amounts in Thousands})

Fiscal - Annual Percentage
Yeoar Pension Of APC
Funding Cost (APC) Contributed
9/30/10 7,877 100%
G/30/11 ‘ 8,628 100%
0/30/12 : 7078 100%
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Note 6 — Other Information (Continued):
F. EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT 5YSTEM (Continued):

Disability and Relief- Municipal Retirement Systems Pension Plan

1. Plan Description

The City of Jackson contributes to the Municipal Retirement Systems and Fire and Police Disability
and Relief Fund (MRS), an agent muitiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by
the Public Employees' Retirement System of Missigsippi, The City's uniformed police officers and
fireTighters employed prior to April 1, 1976, pariicipate in MRS. Firefighters and police officers
employed subsaqguent to April 1, 1976, are membars of the Public Emplovess' Relirement System
of the State as previously described. MRS provides refirement and disability benefits and death
benefits fo plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are established by Sections 21-29,
Articles 1, 3, 5 and 7, Mississippi Code Ann, (1972) and annual locsl and private legislation.
Legislation may be amended only by the State of Mississippi Legisiature. At September 30, 2012,
the date of the most recent actuarial verification, there were 2 participating municipal employees
and 654 retired participants and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits. PERS issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information
for MRS. That information may be obtained by wrifing 1o Public Employeas’ Retirament System,
PERS Building, 429 Mississippl Street, Jackson, MS 39201-1005 or by calling (601 359-3589 or
1-800-444-PERS,

2. Basis of Accounting

MRS uses the acorual basls of accounting. Employee and emplover contributions are recognized
as revenue in the period in which employee services are performed, investment income is
recognized when earmed. Expenses, including benefits and refunds paid, are recognized when
incurred.  Investments for MRS are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national or
infernational exchange are valued at the last reporied sales price at curent exchange rates.
Corporate bonds are valued based on vields currently available on comparable securities from
issuers of similar credit rating. Mortgage securities are valued on the basis of future principal and
interest payments and counted al prevalling interest rates for similar instruments. Short-ferm
investmenis are reported at market value when published prices are available, or at cost plus
accrued Interest, which approximates market or fair value. For individual investments where no
readily ascertainable market value exists, the Public Employees’ Retirement System, in consultation
with their investment advisors and custodial bank, has determined the fair values.

3. Funding Status and Progress

The actuarial accrued liability is a measure Intended o (i} help users assess the plan's funding
status on a geing-concern basis, and {ii) assess progress being made In accumulating sufficient
assets to pay benefits when due. For the vears ending September 30, 1984, and prior, the actuarial
value of assels was equal to book value. Beginning with the September 30, 1985, actuarial
valuation, the actuarial value of assets will be determined on a market related basis that recognizes
20% of the previvusly unrecognized and unanticipaied gains and losses (both realized and
unrealized). Aflocation of the actuarial present value of projected benefits between past and future
service was based on service using the entry age actuarial cost method, Assumptions, including
projected pay increases, were the same as used to determine the system's annual reguired
contribution between eniry age and assumed exit age. Entry age was established by subfracting
cradited service from current age on the valuation dats.

As of September 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 48.8% funded.
The actuarial accrued liabllity for benefits was $124 million and the acluarial value of assets was
$60.5 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $63.5 million. The
covered payroll (annual payroll of active employess covered by the plan) was $42,000, and the ratio
of the UAAL 1o the covered payroll was 151,186%.
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Note 6 — Other Information (Continued):

F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued):

4. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset

The net pension obligation or gsset represents the cumulative difference singce the effective dale of
the statement between City's annual pension cost calculated pursuant to GASB 27 and the
employer's contribution to the pian, including the pension liability or assei at tfransition. For
purposes of transition, funding deficiencies which occurred prior to October 1, 1987 are not required
to be considered buf to do so s acceptable. However, information on fiscal years prior to October 1,
1087 is not available although considerable funding deficiencies ccourred to that point. As a result
of the transition rules under GASB Statement No. 27, the net pension obligation is considerably fess
than if the calculation were made considering alf applicable years of the plan. Consequently,
although the City has an unfunded actuarial accrued liability of $63,498 as of September 30, 2012,
the City has recorded a net pension asset of $15,785 in the accompanying government wide
staternents in the governmental activities.

The City's annual pension cost and net pension asse! for the current year calculated pursuant to
GASB 27 is as follows {in thousands):

Annual required pension contribution 5{6,126)
interest on net pension asset 1,136
Adjustments to annual required contribution {1,392}
Annual pension cost {6,382)
Contributions made 7,068
Decrease in net pension asset 1,684
Net pension asset beginning of year 14,201
Net pension asset end of year % 15,785

As the result of the issuance of $48,780 of general obligation bonds in 1887, the City's contribution
fo the plan has been limited since that date to matching confributions on employee withholdings.
Since 2001, the City's unfunded actuarial accrued Hability related to MRS has grown considetably
and the annual required contribution for fiscal 2012 is projected to be approximately $6,126. The
City's plans are to continue the present contribution level to the plan through fiscal 2012. At that
point the 1997 general obligation bonds will have been retired and tax millage presently used for
bond payments amounting fo approximately $6.0 million will be diverted toward making annual
centributions to the plan. Projeciions of cash flow for the plan indicate contributions of
approximately $ 6.9 million in 2012 and growing to approximately $9.8 million through 2021 will be
necessary to meet the City's obligations under the plan. To account for the receipt of revenues,
property tax levies, and payments of bond principal and interest related to the bonds issued fo
provide reduetions in the accrued actual liability related to pensions of refired and disabled police
and fireman, all confributions are paid from in the Disability and Relief Fund (Non-Major Fund).

In 1697, the Cily issued $49,780,000 of General Obligation Bonds and contributed the proceeds to
the MRS pian to provide for a similar reduction in the unfunded actuarial accrued lighility. As a
result of this contribufion, the Cily has not recognized a net pension obligation (NPQ) in #s financial
staterments.
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Note 6 — Other Information (Continued):
F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued):
4. Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset (Continued):

The entry age actuarial accrued liability was delermined as part of an actuarial valuation of the
system {but not used for funding purposes) as of September 30, 2012. Significant actuarial
assumptions used in determining the eniry age actuarial accrued liabiity inciude: (a) a rate of return
on the investment of present and future assefs of 8% per year compounded annually, {b} projected
salary increases of 4.5% to 6.0% per year compounded annually, atiributable fo inflation and
seniority/merit. The actuarial value of assels was determined using techniques that spread the
effects of short-term volatility in the market value of invesiments over a five-year period. The
unfunded lability is being amortized over a closed 30 year period with 22 years remaining as of
September 30, 2012. At Seplember 30, 2012, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability was
determined as follows: .

Actuarial Acorued Liability {In Thousands)

Retiress and beneficiaries currently
receiving benefits $123,688
Active members 321

Vested ferminated members not yet
raceiving benefits -

Total actuarial accrued liabllity 124,010
Actuarial Value of Assels - 680,512
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability $ 63,498

During the year ended Seplember 30, 2012 the plan experienced an estimated net change of
$(3,452) in the Actuarial Accrued Liability.

5. Funding Policy

The schedule of funding progress presented as regquired supplementary information following, the
notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial
value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability
for benefits.

The funding policy for MRS provides for periodic employer contributions at actuarially determined
rates that are designed to accumulate sufficient assets to pay benefits when due. In developing the
annual required contribution shown below, the normal cost and actuarial accrued liability are
determined using the enfry age actuarial cost method, Unfunded actuarial accrued labifity is being
amortized on an open basis as a level dollar amount over a period of 40 years. The City's active
MRS members confribute ten percent of their base salaries o the plan. This difference has
historically resulted in the actual contribution being less than the annual required contribution.

&. Annual Pension Cost

During the year ended September 30, 2012, contributions totaling approximately $7,973,753
{$7,967,824 empioyer and $9,756 employee) were made in accordance with cantribution
requirements determined by the actuarial valuation of the system as of Sepiember 30, 2011. The
employer contributions consisted of approximately $11,840 for normal cost and administrative
expenses and $7,955,084 for amortization of the unfunded actuarial accrued liability. In addition to
the above contributions, the City has levied a special tax for the refirement of bonds issued to
provide funding for Gity's pension obligation for the year ended September 30, 2012.
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Note 8 - Other Information {Conlinued):
F. EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM {continued):

7. Contributions Required and Contributions Made;

Three-Year Trend information for MRS
{in Thousands)

Fiscal Annual Percentage . Net Pansion

Year ' Pension Of APC Asset
Funding Cost (APC) Coniribuied {NPO)
9/30/10 (5,865) 97.8% 13,662
93011 {6,081) 108.8% 14,201
9/30/12 (6,382) 124.8% 15,785

G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Effective for the 2009 fiscal year, the City adopted GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postempioyment Benefits Other Than Pensions. GASB Statement No. 45
establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of other postemployment benefits
(OPEB} expensesfexpendiiures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and reguired
supplementary information. This Statement requires recognition of the cost of other postemployment
benefits during the periods when employses render their services and disclosure about actuarially accrued
liabilities related to past services and the status and progress of funding the benefits. The reguirements of
GASB staternent No. 45 were implemented prospectively beginning Oclober 1, 2007.

Plan Descriplion

The City's OPEB plan provides post employment healthcare coverage, including dental benefits to eligible
individuals. Eligible individuals include all regular, fuil-time employees of the City, as well as permanent
part-time employees who work at least 20 hours per week, and their spouses and dependeant children,
Employees must have earned at least 25 years of service with the City in order o be eligible for retiree
healthcare coverage. Coverage continues at the election of the retiree until age 65. Refirees must pay
the required monthly premium for either single or family coverage, as applicable. As of September 30,
2012, 156 retirees are eligible to receive benefits under the plan. The plan was established under
authority of the City Councit and may be amended or abolished by council action.

Annual OPEB cost and Net OPEB Chligation

The City's annual OPEB cost (expense) was calculated based on the annual required contribution of the
-employer (ARC}, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to
cover normal cost sach vear and amortize any unfunded actuarial liahilities over the actuarial amortization
perlod. The ARC was caloculated as part of the actuarial valuation performed by an cuiside actuary
consuliant. The following table shows the componenis of the government's annual OPEB cost for the
yaar and the amount actually contributed to the plan during the year:
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Note § — Other information (Continued):

G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued):

Governmental Business-type Total
Activities Activities OPER Plan

Annual Required Contribution ~ $6,681,033 $1,016,067  $7,698,000
Interest on net OFPER obligation 506,049 76,851 583,000
Adjustment fo ARC {(1,161,398) (176,604)  (1,338,000)
Annual OPEB cost (expense} 6,026,586 916,414 6,943,-000

Less: Confributions made §1,591i928) (242 072} _{1,834.000)
Increase in net OFEB obligation 4,434,658 674,342 5,108,000
Net OPEB obligation beginning 13,428,088 2,041,802 15,470,000
Net OPEB obligation end éf year $17.862.756 $2.716,244 $20,579.000

Trend information for OPER Plan:

Fiscal Annusl Percentage of Net

Year OPEB Annual OPEB OPEB
Ending Cost Cost Contributed OChbligation
/3010 $5,214.000 27% 10,824,000
Sf30/11 $5,253,000 13% 15,470,000
93042 46,979,000 27% 20,672,000

Funding status and funding proqaress:

The City funds the plan on a pay-as-you-go basis. As of September 30, 2012, tha most recent actuarial
valuation date, the plan was zero percent funded. The actuarial acorued liability for benefits was
545,498,000 with no valued assets, resulling In an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of the same
amount. The covered payroll was not avallable and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was N/A.
Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probahility of occurrence of avents far into the future. Examples include
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost frend. Amounis determined
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the emplayer are subject
to continual revision and actual resulls are compared with past expectations and new estimates are made
about the future.

Although, the actuarial accrued liabifity for the OPEB plan has increased, the City has not provided funding
for the plan.
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Note & — Other Information (Continued):

G. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued):

Actuarial methods and assumptions

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the plan as
understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of
- each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs betwsen the employer and the plan
members. The achuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce
the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets,
cansistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the September 30, 2012 actuarial vatuation, the projected unit credit method was used. Itis amortized
as a level percent of payroll over a 15 year open period and a level-dollar payment. The actuarial
assumptions included a 4.0 percent invesiment rate of return {net of administrative expenses) and an
annual healthcare cost trend rate of 10 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ullimate trend rate of
6 percent after ten years. Both rates include a 2.75 percent inflation assumption. Currently there are no
assets set aside that are legally held exclusively for OPER.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY
INFORMATION



Actuarial

- Waluation

Date

9/30/2010

9/30/2011

9/30/2012

Actuarial
Valuation
Date
10/1/2008
10/4/2010

5M/2012

CITY OF JACKSON

Required Supplementary Information
Employees’ Retirement Systems
Schedule of Funding Progress

September 30, 2012

DISABILITY AND RELIEF - MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEMS PENSION PLAN

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

(2}
70,753
65,786

60,512

Actuarial
Vaiue of
Assels

(=

{Doltar amounts in Thousands)

Agtuarial
Accrued
Liability
{AAL) - Unfunded
Entry Age AAL {UAAL)
{b) (b-a)
131,163 80,410
127,461 61,875
124,010 53,4588

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

Funded
Ratio
{a/b}
53.9
51.6

48.8

for the OPEB PLAN

{Dollar amounts in Thousands)

Actuarial
Accrued
LiabilHy
{AAL) - Unfunded
Entry Age AAL {UAAL)Y
{b) (b-a}
36,875 36,875
36,875 38,875
45,498 45,498
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Funded
Ratio
{a/b)

0.00%
0.00%

0.00%

Covered
Payroll (o)

a3
88

42

Goverad
Pavroll (¢}

66,782
66,782

Not available

HAAL as a
Percentage
Of Covered

Payroll
i(b-a)ic]

64.957.0
62.298.0

151,185.7

UAAL as a

Percentage

Of Covered
Payroll
i{b-a)ic]

55.2
55.2

N/A
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NON-MAJOR
GOVERNEMENTAL FUNDS



Nonmajoer Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Fands

Parks and Recreation Fund _

To account for the operation and maintenance of all City-owned parks. Financing is provided by
a 2-Mill annual property tax levy, admissions, fees and concessions. Appropriations are made
from General Fund sources to the extent that such tax levy and other revennes are not sufficient
to finance expenditures. '

State Grant Fund
To account for proceeds of state grants or loans other than those grants or loans for Enterprise
Fund or Capital Projccts Fund items.

Disability and Relief Fund

To account for the receipt of revenues, principally tax levies, and payments of bond principal and
interest related to bonds issued to provide reductions in the accrued actual liability related to
pensions of retired and disabled police and fireman employed prior to April 1, 1976.

Capital Projects Funds
Industrial Park Bond Fund, 1982-A
To account for proceeds of general obligation bonds of $3,000,000 to establish an mndustrial park.

2009 Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bond
To account for bond proceeds issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to the
River Hills project.

2009 Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bond
To account for bond proceeds issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to the
Paul Moak project.

2009 Tax Increment Financing Bevenue Bond
To account for bond proceeds issued to finance the costs of infrastructure improvements to the
Fondren project.

2012 General Obligation Note 2012
To account for proceeds of general obligation note of $11,500,000 providing updates to City
Facilities and rehabilitation of sewer line projects.



ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
{Other Receivable

Total Current Asset

LIABIEITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Confracts Payable
Unearned Revenus
Other Liabilities

Total Habilities

FUND BALANCES
Restricted
Committed
Tolal Fund Balance

Tota) Liabilties and Fund balances

_City of Jacksen
Combining Balance Sheet

Nopmajoer Governmental Funds

Ag of September 30, 2012

Speeial Revenne
Parks and  Disability and

Reercation State Grant Rehief Total
¥ 2,331,136 & 131,564 3 669,959 $  3,132,67%
2,336,396 51,112 5,713,617 8,101,125
3 4,667,552 $ 182,676 b 6,383,576 § 11,233804
3 24,369 % - $ 618,662 § 643,031
- 41,037 - 41,037
2,324,715 - 5,713,617 8,038,332
183,776 - - 183,776
2,532,860 41,037 6,332,279 8,906,176
- 141,639 - 141,635
2,134,692 - 51,297 2,185.98%
2,134,602 141,639 51,297 2327628
b 4,667,552 3 182,676 $ 6,383,576 $ 11,233,804

The notes fo the fimancial statements are an integral part of this staterent,
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Cepital Projects

2009 Tax Tetal Nermajor
1982 Industrial 2009 Tax 20609 Tax Increment Governmental
Park Bond Increment Bend  Increment Bond Bund 2812 GO Note Total Funds
$ 36,163 % 231§ 166§ 123 % - % 36,677 % 3,169,356
_ - - - - - 8,101,125
b 36163 § 231 % 60 % 123 % - 36,677 § 11,270 481
b - % - & - 3% - % 671 671 % 643,702
- - - - - . 41,037
- - - - - “ 8,038,332
- - - - “ - 183,776
- - - ~ 671 o671 8,906,847
36,163 31 160 123 (671} 36,006 V77,645
- - - - - - 2,185,089
36,163 231 _ 160 ) 123 (671} 36,006 2,363,634
5 36,163 $ 231 3 60 3 123§ - % 6,677 & 11,270,481
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City of Jackson :
Combining S¢atement of Bevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the vear ended September 30, 2012

Special Revenae
Parks and Dsability and
Recrention State Grant Relief Total .
REVENUES o
General property taxes $ 2,337,765 $ - $ 6,733,311 §  9071,576
Intergovernmental 123,058 276,272 192,690 592,020,
Admissions, fees, rentals and concessions 306,723 - - 306,723
Interest 21,028 a6l 10,183 31,572
Other 75,000 - 5,379 80,379
Total revenues 2,863,574 276,633 6,942,063 10,082,270::
EXPENDITURES
Current Gperations: -
Personnet Services 4,025,378 . ) - 4,025,378 -
Supplies 764,724 - - 764,724
Other Services and Charges 1,096,392 185,514 6,931,879 8,213,785
Capital Outlay 389,513 91,270 - 480,783,
Total expenditures 6,276,007 276,784 6,931,879 13, 484670
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures (3,412,433) (151) 10,184 (3AD2A00)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES :
Transfers in: :
General Fond 3,745,689 - ) - 3,745,689
Proceeds of long term debt 63,448 - - 63,448, .
Transfers vut: . :
Dbt Service Foad - - - oo
Total oifier financing sources 3,809,137 7 - - 3,809.137
Nei change in fund balances 396,704 (151) 10,184 406,737 .
Fond balances at beginning of year 1,737,988 141,790 41,113 1,020,801
Fund balances at end of year § 2,134,602 $ 141639 5 51297 § 2321608

The notes to the financial statements are an intergral part of this staternent.
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Capital Projects

| 2009 Fax Total Nommajor
1982 Indnsirial 200% Tax 2009 Tax Inerenent Governmental
Park Bord Increment Bond  Incroment Bond Bond 2012 GO Note Total  Funs
- 8 - % - B - 3% - % - 3 8,071,576
- - - - - - 592,020
- - - - - - 306,723
208 - - - 9 307 31,879
- - - - - - 80,379
298 - - - 9 307 10,082,577
- - - - - - - 4,025,378
- - - - - - T64,724
- - - 40,127 40,127 8,253,912
- - - - - - 480,783
- - - - 40,127 40,127 13,524,797
298 - ' - - (40,118) £39.820) (3,442.220)
- - - - - - 3,745,689
- - - “ 40,146 40,146 103,594
- - - {6,736} - {6,756) {6,756)
- - - {6,756} 39447 32,691 3,841,828
298 - - {6,756} {671} (7,129} 399,608
35,865 231 160 0,879 - 43,135 1,964,026
36,163 % 231 3% 160 % 123§ (671) % 36,006 & 2,363,634

83



City of Jackson
Farks and Eeereation Special Revenue Fund
Schedule of Revennes, Expenditures and Chappges in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 36, 2032

Budget Amouné

Vartance with
Finzl Budget -
Original Final Actual Ameunts _positive(negative)
REVENUES ‘
General propetty taxes $ 2,318,979 $ 2,318,970 b 2,337,660 § 18,681
Taterpovernmental - - 123,058 123,058
Admissions, fess, rentals and concessions 529,800 525,800 306,828 {222,972}
Interest - - 21,628 21,028
Other - 185.000 75,000 {110,000)
Total revenmes 2,848,779 3,033,779 2,863,574 {170,205)
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:
Personnel Services 4,594,898 4,694,613 4,025,378 £69,235
Supplies 1,014,303 1,089,272 764,724 324,548
Other Services and Charges 1,395,936 1,494,942 1,096,392 398,550
Capital Cutlay 304,934 495,250 389,513 105,737
Tolal expenditures 7,400,073 7,774,077 6,276,007 1,498,070
Excess {deficiency) of revennes over expenditures {4,551,284) (4,740,298) (3.412,433) 1,327,865
OTHER FINANCING SOQURCES (USES)
Transfers in:
(General Fund 3,772,194 3,745,689 3,745,689 -
Process from long term debt 128,000 128,000 63,448 (64,552}
" Total other financing sources (uses) 3,800,194 3,873,689 3,800,157 (64,552}
Net change in fund balances (651,100} {866,609) 306,704 1,263,313
Fund balances at beginning of year 1,737 988 1,737,088 1,737,988 -
Fund balances at end of year $ 10863888 $ RB71,379 3 2,134,692 % 1,263,313




City of Jackson

State Grants Special Revenuve Fusd

Schedulc of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Funé¢ Balance-Budget and Actual

For the year ended September 38, 2012

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Intorest
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current Operations:
Personnel Services
Supplies
Other Services and Charges
Capital Outlay '

Total expenditures

Excess {deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Total other financing sources {uses)

Net change in fimd balances
Fund balances at beginning of year

. Fund balances ot end of year

Badget Amount
Variance with
Final Budgef -
Original Final Agtual Amount  positive{megative)
$ 403,893 $ 638,008 $ 276,272 (361,736)
- - 361 361
403,853 638,008 276,633 (361,375)
102 14,600 - 14,600
250 - - -
387,606 455,692 185,514 270,178
15,935 169,756 91,270 78,486
4{3,893 644,048 276,784 363,264
- (2,040) {151 1,889
- {2,040} {151) 1,889
141,790 141,790 141,790 -
$ 141,790 $ 139,750 $ 141,639 § © 1,889
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Disability and Relief Special Revenne Fund
Scheduie sf Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

City of Jackson

For the year ended September 30, 2012

REVENUES
General property taxes
Intergovernmental
Admissions, fees, rentals and concessions
Interest
Other
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current Operations:
Other Services and Charges
Total expenditures

Fixcess (deficiency) of revenmes over expenditures

OTHIER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Total other financing sources {uses)

Net change in find balances
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

Budgel Amount

Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Fimal Actual Amount  positive{negative)
£ 6,652,578 $ 6,652,578 $ 6,733,510 80,932
190,392 190,392 192,690 2,298
- - 30 361
- - 16,183 10,183
18,072 18,072 5,379 {12,693)
6,801,042 6,861,042 6,942 063 81,021
6,861,042 8,209.275 6,931,879 1,367,396
6,861,042 §,299 275 6,931,879 1,367,396
- {1,438,233) 10,184 {1,448 417)
- {1,438,233) 10,184 {1,448,417)
41,113 41,113 41,113 -
$ 41,113 $ (1,397,120 3 51,297 (1,448,417}
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City of Jackson
Debt Service Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Badpet and Actual

1 REVENUES

General property taxes
Curtent realty taxes
Current personal taxes
Dalinguent taxes
Automobile ad valorem taxes
Homestead exemption
Interest
Apecial assessments
(Other revenues
Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
General obligation bonds
Principal
Interest
Bank service charge
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year
Fund balances al end of year

For the ¥Year Ended September 30, 2012

Budpeted Amonnis
Variance with
- Final Badget-
Original Yimal Actoal Amounts Positive (Negative)
2,378,922 § 2,386,802 2,403,001 16,199
001,435 918,075 992,690 74,624
75,000 75,000 134,197 59,197
360,785 360,785 - 397,720 36,944
180,901 180,901 107,236 {73,665)
1,000 7,965 27,600 19,635
- - 5,736 5,136
3,488,710 3,822,020 3,825,936 3,916
7,386,753 7,751,548 7,894,134 142,586
500,325 872,869 R72,868 1
6,871,387 6,537,347 6,513,948 23,399
14.041 16,673 14,807 1,868
7,388,753 7,426,891 7,401,623 25,208
1,000 324,657 492,511 (167.854)
- 6,757 6,756 (1)
- 6,757 6,756 {1
1,000 331414 409257 {167,853)
1,832,076 1,832,076 1,832,076 -
1,833.076 3% 2,163,490 2,331,343 % {167,853}
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City of Jachson
1982 Indusirial Park Bond Capital Preject Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Brlance-Budget and Actusl
For the year ended Septeraber 39, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Paositive L
REVENUES Original Fimal Ansounts {Negative) [
Interest $ - $ - $ 298 % 298
Total revenues - - 298 208
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations: o
Other Services and Charges 35,720 35,720 - 315,720
Total expenditures © 35,720 35,720 - 35,720
Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditares {35,720) {35,720} 298 36,018
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Total other financing sources (uses) - - - -
Net change in fund balances (35,720} (35,720} 298 36,018
Fund balances at beginning of year 35,865 . 35,865 35,865 -
Fund balances at end of year $ 145 $ 145 $ 36163 $ 36,018
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City of Jackson
1998 GO Bond Fund
Schedule of Revennes, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 38, 2612

Budgeted Amounts
Variance
with Final
Budget-
Artual Positive
Original Final Amounts {Nepative)
REVENUES
Tnterest . - - 3,565 3,565
Total revenues - - 3,565 1,565
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Supplies 15,468 9,119 3,890 5,229
Other services and charges 545,509 542,451 128,697 412,754
Total expenditures 560,977 551,570 133,587 417,983
Deficiency of revermes over (under) expenditure (560,977} {551,570} (130,022} 421,548
Net change in fund balances (560977 {551,570} (136,022) 421,548
TFund balances at beginning of year 495 245 495,245 465,245 -
Fund balatices st end of year $ (65,732 $ (56325 § 365223 § 421,548

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
2003 GO Public Improvement Boad Fund

Sehedule ef Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual

REVENUES

Intergovernmental Revenue

Interest

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Personuel services
Supplies
Other services and charges
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues over (vander) expenditures
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances at beginning of year

¥und balances at end of year

For the year ended September 36, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Originai Fimal Amounis {(Negative)
3 6,917,943 $16,906,900 § 945,897 § (15,961,003
8,653 §.653 36,006 27,353
6,926,596 16,915,553 981,903 (15,933,650)
37,263 17,179 - 17,179
40,000 32,818 990 31,828
11,195,719 21,232,318 2,193,920 19,038,398
39,500 38,500 - 39,500
11,312,482 21,321,815 2,194,910 19,126,905
{4,385.886) (4,406,262) {1,213,007) 3,193,255
{4,385.886) (4,406,262) {1,213,007) 3,193,255
4,406,262 4,406,262 4,406,262 -
2037 $ 3,193,255 § 3,193,255

$ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this siatement.
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City of Fackson
2606 GO Bond Fund
Scheduie of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Budget and Actusl
For the year ended September 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
Yariance
with Final
Budget-
Actual Positive
Orriginal Final Amsunis {Negative}
REVENUES
Interest $ - 8 - § 2,638 3 2.638
Total revenues - - 2,638 2,638
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations
Other services and charges - 7,000 7,000 -
Total expenditures - 7,000 7,000 -
Dieficiency of revenues over (zmder) expenditures - (7,000} {4,362) 2,638
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES) _
Total other financing sowrces and vses - - - -
Net change in fund balances - {7,000} {4,362) 2,638
Tund balances at beginning of year 319,080 319 989 319,980 -
Tund balances at end of year $ 310089 & 312989 & 315,627 % 2,638

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staiement.

93



City of Jackson

. 2009 GO Bond Fund
Schedule of Revennes, Expenditures and Changes in Fuod Balances - Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 39, 2012

REVENUES
Interest
Total rovenues

EXPENDITURES
Cutrent Operations
Personnel services
Supplies
Other services and charpes
Capital outlay
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revermes over (under) expenditures
OFTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)
Transfers in
Total other financing sources and nses
Net change in fand balances
Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

Budgeted Amounis
: Varizgnee
with Final
Budget-
Actual Positive
Original ¥Final Amounis {MNesative)
- - 45,199 45,199
- - 45,199 45,199
16,254 - - -
652,020 437,717 411,180 26,537
3,595,369 5,299.817 1,337,009 3,962,718
- 402,534 127,534 275,000
4,263,643 6,140,068 1,875,813 4,264,255
(4,263,643) {6,140,068) {1,830,614) 4,309,454
- 127,534 127,534 -
- 127,534 127,534 -
(4,263,643) {6,012,534) {1,'103,080) 4,309,454
5,943,851 5,943 851 5,943,851 -
$ 1680208 § (68,683 § 4240771 § 47309454

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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City of Jacksen
2009 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Project Fund
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditares and Changes in Fund Batasces - Budget and Acinal
For the vear cnded Sepiember 30, 2012

Budgeted Amounts
Variance with
Final Budget-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounis (Negative}
REVENUES ' _
Interest 3 - ¥ - % - ¥ -
Total revenues ' - - - -
EXPENDITURES
Current Operations:
Other services and charges - - 6,756 {6,756)
Total expenditures - - 6,756 {6,756)
Deficiency of revenues over {under) expenditures - - {6,756) {6,756)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES(USES)
Total other financing sowces and vses - - - . -
Net change in fund balances - - {6,756} (6,756)
Fund balances at beginning of year - - 6,879 {6,879)
Fund balances at end of year B - % - % 123§ 123

The notes to the fmancial statements are an infegral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
2009 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Preject Fuands
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Foud Balance-Budgef and Actual
For the year ended September 30, 2012

Bodgeted Amounts

Variance with
Fipal Budpget-
Actual Posiiive )
REVENUES Original Final Amounts {(Negative} b
Interéest % - $ - $ R [ " :
Total revenues - - - -

FXPENDITURES

Current Operations:
Other Services and Charges - _ - - -
Total expenditures - - - .

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures - - - -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in:
Proceeds from Tax Increment Bonds - - . -

Total other financing sources {uses) “ - - -

Net change in fund balances - - . -
Fund balances at beginning of year - - 231 -

Fund balances at end of year b - $ - $ 231 % -
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City of Jackson
2009 Tax Increment Financing Bond Capital Project Funds
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual
For the year ended September 34, 2012

Budgeied Amounts

Varjance with
Firtal Budget-
Astual Positive
REVENUES Original Hinal Amounts (Negative)
Interest 3 - $ - b - 8 -
Total revenues - - - ~

EXPENDITURES

Current Operations: :
Other Services and Charges - - - -
Total expenditures - - ‘ - . -

Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures - - - -

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in:
Proceeds from Tax Increment Bonds - - - -
Total other financing sources {Uses) - - - -

Net change in fund balances - - . . -
Fund balances at beginning of year - - 160 -

¢

Fund balances at end of year 3 - 3 - 3 160§ -
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Clty of Jackson

2012 GO Note Capital Project Punds

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance-Budget and Actual

For the year ended September 30, 2012

REVENUES
Interest
Other
Total reveniies

EXPENDITURES

Current Operations:
Other Services and Charges
Total expenditures
Deficiency of revenues over (under) expenditures
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out:
General Fund

Proceeds from long tarm debt
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances ot beginning of year

Tund balances at end of year

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Fipal Budgel-
Actual Positive
Original Final Amounis {Nepative)

3 - 3 - 5 9 8§ g
- Q2R 529 {928,529}
- 928,529 9 {528,520}

- 936,529 40,127 596,402

- 936,529 40,127 896,_402
~ (8,000} {40,118} (32,118)
- - (699) {699}

- . 8,000 40,146 32,146

- 8,000 39447 31,447

- - (671} {671)

3 - ¥ - ¥ 671y § {671)
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NON-MAJOR
PROPRIETORY FUNDS



Nonmajor Proprietary

Madison Sewage Disposal System Fund

To account for costs of construction, operation and maintenance of the Fast Madison County
Sewage Disposal System. The City of Ridgeland, Mississippi will be responsible for the
service contracts with Madison County participating in the system.

Transportation Fund

To account for operational costs of the City’s transit system. Deficiencies in the revenues
over expenses are financed by the City.
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City of Jackson
Combining Statement of Net Asseis
Proprietary Funds - Nommajor Furds

As of September 3¢, 2012
Madison
Sewage Transporiation Totals
ASSETS ‘
Curtent Assets:
Cash and Cash Eqaivalent $ 34344 % 32,173 B 66,517
Intergovernmental Receivable - 663,877 663,877
Total Current Assct 34,344 696,050 730,394
Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost
Land ' - 450,000 450,000
Buildings - 187,903 187,903
Waier plaut, distribution system and equipment 532,942 410,690 043,632
Automotive and other equipment - 10,559,245 . 10,558,245
532,542 11,607,838 12,140,786
Tess: acowmulated depreciation (214,130) . {5,493,515) (5,7017,645)
: 318,812 6,114,323 6,433,135
Constroction in progress 13,800 2,291,043 2,304,843
Net property, plant and equiptnent 332,612 8,405,366 8,737,978

Total Assets $ 366,956 & 9,101,416 $ 9,468,372

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this staterent.
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City of Jackson
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds - Nommajor Fonds
As of September 30, 2012

Madison

Sewage Transporiation Totals
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities: ‘

Accounts Payable b 1,182 % 275,065 3 276,187

Due to other funds l - 2,028,944 2,928,944

Contracts payable 40,102 5,344 45,446

Cornpensated absences . - 8,723 3,723

Current portion of long term debt: '
Lease Obligations - 212,094 212,094
Total current Hahilities 41,284 3,430,110 3,471,394
Post Employment Benefits accrual - 46,038 46,038
Long Term Debt (less amounts classified as cnrrent liabilities):

Lease obligations - 513,489 513,499
Total long-term debt - 513,499 513,499
Total liabilities 41,284 3,989,047 4,030,931

NET ASSETS
Tnvested in Capital Assets, net of related debt 332,612 7,679,773 8,012,385
Unrestricied ' {6,940) {2,568,004y . {2,574,944)
Total Net Assets 325,672 5,111,769 5,437,441
Total Habilities and net agsels 3 366,956 % 9,101,416 g 9,468 372

The notes to the financial statements are au integral part of this staterent.
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City of Jackson
Ceombining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Proprietary Funds - Nonmajor Funds
For the Year BEnded September 30, 2012

Madison Sewage Transportation Totals
Operaling Revenues:
Sales 1o Costomers ¥ - $ 588,629 % 588,629
Other Reverme 376 480,000 480,370
Total Operating revenucs ‘ 370 1,068,629 1,068,999
Operating Expenses:
Personnel Services - 276,334 276,334
Supplies - 821,857 821,857
~ Other services and charges 61,844 5,110,283 5,172,127
Depreciation 12,003 762,125 774,218
Total operating expenses 73,937 6,970,599 7,044 536
Operating Income (loss) (73,567 {5,901,970) {(5,975,537)
Nenoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Interest revenue - 47 47
Gain (loss) on sale of capital assets - 7480 7,480
Tolal nopoperating revenues (expenses) - 7.527 7,527
Loss before coniributions and transfers {73,567) (5,894,443) (5,968,010)
Capital contributions from grants - 2,731,398 2,731,398
QOperating Tranpsfers In: : .
General Pund ' - 4,638,988 4,638,988
- Enferprise Funds 37,870 - 17,870
Total transfers in (out) 37,870 4,638 988 : 4,676,858
Change in Net Assets : (35,697 1,475,943 1,440,246
Total net assets - beginning 361,369 3,635,826 3,857,195
Total net assets - ending h 325,672 3 5,111,769 3 5,437,441

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Jackson
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Froprietary Funds - Nonmajer Funds
Feor the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Madison Sewage Transportation Totals
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from customers and users $ - 3 588,629  § 588,629
Receipts from other revenue 370 819,851 820,221
Payments to suppliers (42,467) {6,583,262) (6,625,729)
Tayments to employees . - {228,125) (228,125}
Net cash used for
Operating activities (42,097) (5,402,907 (5,445,004)
‘Cash Flows from Moncapital Financing Activities
Transfers In 37,870 4,638,988 4,676,858
Net cash provided by noncapital and related _
financing activities 37,870 4,638 088 4,676,858
Cash Flows from Capital and Related
Financing Activities .
Acquisition and construction of capital assets - (1,799,004) {1,799,004)
Proceeds from sales of capital assots - 7,480 7,480
Proceeds from capital debt - 74,660 74,660
Principal paid on capital debt - (218,489) (218,489)
Proceeds from capital contributions - 2,731,398 2,731,398
Net cash provided by capital snd related
financing activities - 796,045 - 796,045
Cash Flow Provided by Invesiing Activities:
Interest on investments ' - 47 47
Net cash provided by investing activities - 47 47
Net increase {decrease) in cash and cash eguivalents {4,227) 32,173 27,946
.Cash and cash squivalents at beginning of year 38,571 - 38,571
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year - 3 34,344 3 32,173 3 66,517
Reconciliation of Operating Less to Net Cash '
Used for Operating Activities:
Operating logs _ b {73,567) % (5,901,970) % (5,975,537}
Depreciation expense 12,093 762,125 774,218
(Increase) decrease in other receivable - 339,851 339,851
Increase (decrease} in accounts payabis 19,377 (605,084) (585,707
Increase (decrease} in compensated absences - 2,171 2,171
Total adjustments 31.470 499,063 336,533
Net cash provided by operating activities 3 {42,007y % (5,402,907 § (5,445,004)
Neuncash Investing, Capital, and Financing
Activities:
Borrowing vnder capital lease $ - B 74,660

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statehwnt
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS



- Fiduciary Funds

' Unemployment Compensation Revelving Fund
To account for money held in trust to fund unemployment claims pursuant to State law.
Charitable Trust Fire and Police Fund

To account for contributions from the public sector which are held in trust for police and fire
altowable claims, ‘

Mausoleum Trust Fund

To account for funds to be used for maintenance and upkeep of the Henry Mausoleum
located in Kernaghan Cemetery.

Tax Collections
To account for receipt of tax collections for and subsequent payment to the Jackson/Hinds

Library System, Jackson Municipal Separate School District, Capital City Community
Convention Center, and Jackson Convention & Visitors Bureau.



CITY OF JACKSON
7 - ALL TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2812

Unemployment  Charitable

Compensation Trast Mansolewm
Revolving  Fireand Poce Trust
Fond Fund Fund Tofal
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents $ 387,867 % 9090 % - § 396,987
Investnent at fair value:
Certificate of deposit - - 32,270 32,270
Total assets 3 387,897 § 0090 § 32270 § 429257
Liabilities and Net Asscts
Liabilities: :
Payables to vthers - - - -
Total liabilitics - - _ )
Net Assets:
Held in trust 387,897 2090 . 32270 429257
Total net assets 387,897 9,090 32,276 429,257
Total liabilities and net assets $ 387,897 § 9090 § 32,270 § 439257
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CITY OF JACKSON
‘ ALL TRUST FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

Compensation Trost Mausoleum
Revolving  Fire and Police  Trust
Fund ' Fund Fund Total
Additions:
Interost 3 2919 § 83 § - § 3,002
Other additions 200,274 - - 200,274
Total additions 212,193 83 - 212,276
Deductions:
General government
Trust funds 127.976 - - 127,976
Total deduclions 127,976 - - 127,976
Change in Net Assots 84217 83 - 84,300
Net assets at beginning of year 303,680 9,007 32,270 344957
Net assefs at end of year $ 387897 % 9090 § 32270 § 4287257
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CITY OF JACKSON,
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

ASSETS FIABILITIES
Cash
and Cash Total COther Total
Equivealents Assets Ligbilities Liabilities

Capital City Community Convention Center

Balance at October 1, 2011 $ 531,743 § 531,743 3 531,743 § 531,743

Additions 4.211,170 4,211,170 4211,170 4,211,170

Peductions 4,721,534 4,721,534 4,721,534 4,721,534

Balance &t Septemiber 30, 2012 b 21,379 § 21,379 $ 21,379 § 21,379
Tackson Convention & Visitors Bureau

Balance at October 1, 2011 $ 180 % 180 $ 180 § 180

Additions 3,145,931 3,145,931 3,145,931 3,145,931

Deductions 3,146,111 3,146,111 3,146,111 3,146,111

Balance at September 30, 2012 $ - § - $ - % -
Fackson/Hinds Library System

Balance at October 1, 2011 $ - % Lo $ - § -

Additions 1,631,828 1,631,828 1,631,828 1,631,828

Deductions 1,631,828 1,631,828 1,631,828 1,631,828

Balance at September 30, 2012 3 - $ - 3 -8 -
Tackson Municipa! Separate School District

Ralance at OQctober 1, 2011 § - - 3 -3 -

Additions 8,987,857 8,987,857 3,987,857 8,987,857

Deductions 2,987,857 8,987,857 8,087,857 8,987,857

Balancs at September 30, 2012 5 - § - § - 3 -
Total - All Agency Funds:

Balance at October 1, 2011 3 531,923 § 531,923 b 531,923 § 531,923

Additions 17,976,786 17,976,786 17,976,186 17,976,786

Deductions 18,487,330 18,487,330 18,487,130 18,487,230

Balance at September 30, 2012 3 21,379 § 21,379 § 21,379 & 21,379
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CAPITAL ASSETS




CITY OF JACKSON

CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

COMPARATIVE SCHEDULES BY SOURCE ({1}
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012 AND 2011

2012 2011
Governinenital funds capital assets:
Land $ 14,500,351 § 14,628,823
Buildings 81,480,260 81,480,260
Automotive and squipment: 70,839,480 §9,280,850
Infrastructure 214,244,644 214,244,644
Construction in progress 43,985,878 84,079,080
Tuotal governmental funds capits] asseis $ 474,850,591 § 464,311,857
Investment in governmental funds capltal assets by source:
Assats prhor to 1885 not segregated
by sources 3 14,002,713 % 14,002,713
General Fund revenues 77,050,418 76,313,930
Special Revenus Fund revenues 95,008,222 95,112,469
Special Assessment bonds 2,123,834 2,123,334
General Obligation bends 242,408,749 232,501,854
Limited Obligation bonds 4,330,429 4,330,429 .
Pabt Service Fund revenues 85,000 55,000
Federal grants 39,877.918 38,377,818
State grants 52,261 52,281
County grahts 430,849 430,948
Total gove nmental funds capital assels 4 474,850,691 § 464,311,557

{1} This schedule presents only the capital asset balances (excluding acoumulated depreciation)
related o governmental funds, Accordingly, the capifal assets reported in internal service funds
are excluded fram the above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of infernal service funds

are included as governmental activities in the statermnent of net assets.
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STATISTICAL SECTION



STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Jackson’s comprehensive annual financial report presents
detail information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial
statements, note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the
city’s overall financial health,

Contents Page

Financial Trends 114

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the City of
Jackson’s financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity 119

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City of Jackson’s most
significant local revenue source, the property tax.

Debt Capacity ' 123
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the City

of Jackson’s current levels of outstanding debt and the city’s ability to issue additional
debt in the future.

 Demographic and Economic Information 130

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators {o help the reader
understand the environment within which the City of Jackson’s financial activities take
place.

Operating Information 132
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how

the information in the City of Jackson’s financial report relates to the services the city
provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the infortmation in these schedules is derived from the
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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City of Jackson
Governmental Activities Tax Revenues By Source
Last 'Ten Fiseal Years
{accrual basis of accounting)
{amounis expressed in thonsands)

Motor Alcoholic
Fiscal Property Sales " Franchise Fuel Beverage
Yesr Tax 'Tax Tax Tax Tax Total
2012 55,855 29,155 ‘ 1,652 30 268 86,960
2011 54,594 30,798 1,823 28 268 87,511
2010 50,483 29,995 1,890 31 262 82,661
2009 53,256 32,301 1,572 31 274 57434
2008 48,769 35,428 1,477 31 282 85,887
2007 44,240 35,838 1,442 31 304 81,855
2006 41,324 37,993 1,398 31 302 81,048
2005 40,509 35,673 1,406 31 267 71,886
2004 41,660 35,882 1,152 31 261 78,988
2003 41,660 35,097 1376 31 249 78,413

Source: General Fund Badget and Actual Statement
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City of Fackson
Principal Froperty Taxpayers
September 30, 2012
(amonnfs expressed in tousands)

Source: Hinds County
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2012 2003
Percentage of Perceninge of
Taxable Fotal Taxabie Taxable Total Taxable
Asseased Assessed Assessed Assessed
Taxpayer Value Rank Value Value Rank Value
Bell South 50,108 2 4.79% $ 76,029 1 7.92%
Eaterpy 79472 1 7.59% 45,673 2 4.76%
Atmos Energy 12268 5 LIT% - -
Midcontinent Express Pipelane LLC 29,093 3 2.78% - -
AT&ET - 9,804 7 0.94% 11,064 4 1.15%
Trustmark National Bank - - 5,393 7 0.56%
Parkway Properties 10,233 & 0.98% 6,088 6 0.63%
Ceniral MS Health Systems - - 13,729 3 1.43%
Entergy Services Inc 5,836 3 0.84% - -
Wal-Mari/Sam's Wholesale Club £,280 9 0.79% 5,180 g 4.54%
MeCarty Holman, Inc. - - - -
Deposit Guaranty National Bank - . - -
Metrocenter - - 3,919 9 0.41%
St Pominics Hospital - - 1,823 ¥ 0.40%
- Home Depot - - - -
Gulf South Pipeline Company L1 26,849 4 2.57% - -
Dredphi Auto Systems LLC - - - -
Liinois Ceniral Railroad 7.026 10 Q.67% - -
Eaton Aerospacs LLC - - - -
Mississippi Valley Gas Company - - 8,596 5 0.50%
Totals 241,969 23.12% b 179,494 18.69%
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Governigental Vst
Diebt repaid with property taxes:
Hinds County )

Jackson Pablic Schools
Subiotal, overlapping debt

City of Jackson direet debt

Totel direot and overlapping debt

City of Jackson
Direct and Gyerlapping Governmeninl Activities Debi
As of Septembier 30, 2012
{amounts expressed in thousands)

Estimnuted

Estimated Share of
Drelit Pergentage Overlapping

Outstanding Applicable Diehi

k3 40,370 76.57% $ 30,511
136,935 100.00% . 136,935
167,846
131,691 100.00% 131,692
§ 299,538

Sources: Assessed vakue datn used to estimate applicable percentages by City of Tackson, Hinds County, and Jackson Public Schools.

Mote: Overlappiag governiments are {hose that coincide with the geographic boundaries of the city. This schedule estimates the portion
Gf the outstanding debt of those overlapping govemnments that is borne hy the residents and businesses of the ity of Tackson,

This protess recopnizes that, when considering the City of Fackson ability 10 issue and repay long-term debt, the entire dabt

burden borte by the residents and business should be taken into account. However, this does not imply thal every laxpayer is s resident,
and therefore responsible for repaying the debt, of cach overfapping government.

The percentage of overlapping debt applicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values. Applicable percentages were estimated
by determining the portion of the county's taxuble assessed value that is with the govemnment's boundaries and dividing it by the county’s

total taxable assessed value.
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Employer

State of Mississippi
University of Mississippi

U.8. Government

Jockson Pubtic School District
Baptist Health Systems

St Dowinic Health Services
City of Jackson, Mississippi
Jackson State University
AT&T

Central MS Medical Center

City of Jaclson
Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ape

2003

Sovree; Metrofackson Charnber of Conunerce 2012

Nofe: Data for 2001 is currenily not available,
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2412
Percenfage

of Total City

Employees Rank  Employment
31,556 - . 1713%
8,000 Z 434%
5,500 3 2,.98%
4,814 4 2.61%
2,875 5 1.56%
2,600 6 141%
2,323 7 1.26%
1,667 8 §4.950%
1.300 9 0.71%
1,208 i¢ 0.65%

o833 e 320%

Percontage
of Tatal City

Employees Rank  Employment o
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BANKS, FINLEY,
WHITE & CO.

CERFIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

The Honorable Mayor Harvey Johnsaor, Jt.
and Honorable Members of the City Council
Jackson, Mississippi

We have audited the financial staternenis of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of City of Jackson, Mississippi (the City), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2012,
which collectively comprise the City of Jackson, Mississippi’s basic financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated May 3, 2013. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable fo financial audits
contained in Government Audiling Standards, Issued by the Comptrofler General of the Unlied Siates,

Internal Control Qver Financial Reparting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Jackson, Mississippi’s internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Jackson, Misslssippl’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Jackson, Mississippi's internal controf over
financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no
assurance that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been [dentified.
However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified
certain deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses.

A deficiency In infernal control exists when the design or operation of a confrol does not aliow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or.a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We
consider the deficiency described in 2012-1 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs to be a material weaknass.

Complisnce and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonabie assurance about whether the City of Jackson, Mississippi's financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
materlal effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The resulls of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reparted under Government Auditing Standards,

308 HIGHLAND PARK COVE = RIDGELAND, M3 39157 » {(601) 353-5423 ¢ FAX (601) 353-5426
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City of Jackson, Mississippi’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, We did not audit City of Jackson, Migsissippi's
response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is Intended solely for the information of the Mayor, City Council, and management, cthers
within the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended fo
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parfies.

Dbl \file 5 Ge.

Ridgeland, Missigsippi
May 3, 2013
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SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS



City of Jaclkson
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Federal Pass Through Current Year
CFDA Grantor Federal
Federal Agency/Propram Number MNumber Expenditures
1.8, Departiment of Agriculture
Direct Program:
Food and Nutrition Service (M8 Department of Education - Pags Through) .
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 VOOONTIB08G 3 306,763
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 10,558 300,763
Child Nutrition Claster
Summer Food Service Program for Children (MS Department of Education - Pags Througsh) 10.559 V0800718080 a6,030
SUBTGTAL CFDA NUMBER 10,559 56,030
TOTAL Child Nutrition Cluster 56036
(Central Mississippi Planning and Developtent District - Pass Through)
Commedity Supplemental Food Program 10.565 A78-M-25 24,219
Commaodity Supplemental Food Program 18.565 ¥19-F25 5,742
Commodity Supplemental Food Progmm 18.565 379-8-252 8,613
Commodity Supplemental Food Program 16.565 396-F-25 20,332
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 10.565 58,906
(Natural Resource Conservation Service - Pags Through)
Emergescy Watershed Protection Progrom 10.923 68-4413-12.2342 20,400
SUATOYAL CFDA NUMBER 10,923 20,400
TOTAL U8, DERARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 436,045
1S, Department of Housing and Urban Development
CDBG Entittement Grants Cluster:
Clommunily Development Dlock Grant - Neighborkood Stabilization Program « f4218 B-08-MN~28-0001 916,269
Community Development Blogk Grant 14218 B10-MC23-0003 1,752,116
Community Development Block Grant 14,218 B-11-MC-28-06003 24,498
SURTQTAL CFDA NUMBER [4.218 2,693,483
Community Development Block Grant Recovery - ARRA 14,253 B-0%-MY-28-0003 106,2; 13
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.253 106,213
TOTAL CDBG Entitlement Grants Cluster 2,799,696
Emergency Solution {irants Program 14.231 E-11-MC-28-0002 109,573
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.233 159,573
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14.239 MAOT-MC-28-6200 4,509
_HOME Invesiment Partnership Program 14.239 M-08-MC-28-0200 60,231
HOME Investment Partnership Program 14,239 MAS-MC-28-4200 44,653
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14239 109,393
Housing Oppottunities for Persens with AIDS 14.241 MS-H11-FOBE 824,210
Housing Opportunitics for Persons with AIDS 14.241 MS-H10-FO01 254,683
SUBTOTAL CFDANUMBER 14.241 1,118,893
Teonamic Development Initiative-Special Project, Neighburhood Initistive and Miscellaneous Grants . 14,351 B-69-8P-M840134 3.695
Heonomic Development Tnitlative-Special Project, Neighborhood Initintive and Miscellaneous Grants 14.251 B-05.8P-MS8-0141 9,940
Feonomic Development Initlative-Spesial Project, Neighborhood Initistive and Miscellaneous Grants 14.251 B-09-3P-M3-0133 118,903
SUBTOTAL CFDANUMBER 14.251 - 132,538
Homelessnsss Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program - ARRA 14257 S-09-MY-28-0002 136,980
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 14.257 136,968
TOTAL 1.8, BEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 4,406,993
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City of Jackson
Schedule of Bxpenditures of Federal Awards
Por the Year Ended September 36, 2012

Federal Pass Through Current Year
CFDA Grantor Federal
Federal Ageney/Projram Number MNumber Bxpenditures
LS. Depavtment of Justice
JAG Propram Cluster;
Edward Byrse Memorial Justice Assistance Gran? Progzam 16738 2007DIRX0570 21,346
Edward Byrae Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Progran 16,7138 BO0DIBX0627 58,714
Edward Byrsie Momorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 201IDIBXA320 66,464
Edward Byme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Progras 16.738 2040DI3X0594 20,000
SUBTOTAYL CFDA NUMBER 16.738 166,524
Edward Byme Memotial Justice Agsistanoce Grant Program - ARRA 16.804 2609SBB93222 178,592
SUBTQTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.804 178,592
TOTAL JAG Program Cluster 345,116
Second Chanee Act Prisoner Reentry Initiative 16812 201 1-€Z2-BX-3041 27,920
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16.804 27,920
Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grant 16.710 2009CKWX0603 2,198
Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grant 16.710 2610CKWXN084 54,400
Public Safety Partnership & Community Policing Grant 16.710 201 1ULWX0021 748,209
SUBTUTAL CFDA NUMBER. 16.710 804,807
Developing, Testing And Demongirating New Programs 16.541 2008-JL-FX-0009 73,813
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 16,541 73,913
TOTAL U8 DEPARTMENT OX JUSTICE 1,251,756
U.S, Depariment of Labor
Older Americans Act
Senier Comnmmity Service Employment Program (Title V) 17.235 AD-2186241 {55-A24 453,367
Senior Community Service Employment Program (Titte V) 17.235 AD23234.12-55-A24 135,649
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 17.235 388,410
TOTAL U8, BEPARTMENT OF LABOR - 5 __3:416
U.S. Department of Transpertation
Federal Transit Administration
Federal Transit Chustor:
Divgct Programs:
Federal Transit Formula Grants 200507 MS-96-X0-72 35,187
Federal Transit Formula Grants 20.5607 MB99-X098 636,021
Federal Transit Formula Grants 20507 ME90-X0-81 591,889
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.507 ! 1,263,097
Federal Transit Cupilal Investment Gran(s 20,500 MS-03.00.12 17,982
Federat Transit Capital Investment Grants 20.500 MS3-43-G4-13 277,512
Federal Trensit Capital Investment Grants 20.500 MS-03-00-14 1,027,248
Federal Transit Capital Investment Grouts 20.500 MS-34-00-03 145,560
Federal Transit Capital Investmeni Grants 20,500 ME96-X603 2,005,152
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.500 3473454
TOTAL Federal Transit Cluster 4,736,551
Highway Planning & Consiruction Cluster:
{Mispissippi Department of Transportation-Pass Through)
DHP-7300-00061)
Highway Planning and Censtructioni (Lynch Strgel Improvements) 20205 L04387/811000 215,603
STP-7285-00(007)
Highway Plarmiag and Censtruetion (Fortificafion Strecl Improvements) 20205 iN5325/301600 674,891
DHP-7305-00{005)
Highway Planning and Construction (Safe Routes) 20,205 105267 29,030
Highway Planning and Construction {IT5-3 Railroad Grade Crossing Project) 20.205 IT8-0250-00(0ZMLFA
103901/70160¢ 6,017
Highway Planning and Construetion {ITS-3 Raifrozd Grade Crossing Projeot) 20.205 TCP-0250 6,270
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: City of fackson
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Federal Pass Through Current Year
CFDA Grantor Federal
Federal Agency/Program Number Number Expenditures

{Mississippi Department of Trausportation-Pass Threugh)
STP-9999-05(623)
Urban Youtk Corps Grant : 20205 106400-317000
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.205

TOTAL Highway Planning and Construction Cluster
{Mississippt Department of Transportation-Pass Thrmigh}
Capital Assistance Program for Elderly Persons and Elderly Persons with Digabilities 20513 N/A

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 20.513

TOTAL U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

U.8. Instiinte of Musewmn and Libr reices
Birect Programs:
Congressional Set-Aside; Museums 45.312 CM-00-05-0012-05
SURFOTAL CPDA NUMBER 43.312
TOTAL G.8. INSTITUTE OF MUSEUM AND LIBRARY SERVICES

U.8. Departmont of Environmental Quality
{Mississippi Department of Environmental Quality-Pass Throogh)

Capitafization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds o 66.458 SRF280886-02-0

TOTAL U.S, DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY

U.5. Department of Enerpy

Direct Proprams: -
Energy Bfficiency and Congeryation Block Grant Program (ARRA} 81128 DE-5C0003032
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 81.128

TOTAL U8, DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY

1.8, Department of Health and Human Services

Direet Programs:
Metro Medical Regponse System 93.000 233-01-0043
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMDER 93.000

Aging Cluster:
Special Programs for the Aging Title 101, Part B, Grants for Supportive Services and Senior Centors
{Central MS Planning and Devclopment District - Pass Through)
Title N1I-B Outreach 93.044 I7TI-M-25
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.044

Special Programs for the Aging Title 1V, Part C, Nutrition Services
{Central MS Plaoning and Development District - Pags Through)
Cengregate Nufrition Program {Non-cash) 091,045 ATRM-2S
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.045

TOTAL Aging Cluster

CCDF Cluster:

{State of M8 Olffice of Child Nutrition - Pass Througl) )
Child Care Davelopraent Block Grant 93.575 625Q621A
Child Care Development Blook Grant 93,575 625Q611A

SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93,575

TOTAL CCIF Chaster

13%

- 34,930
T esiay

957,741

34,907
34,507

5,729,19%

22,560
22,566

22,566

471,220

471,220

L7860
1,347,860

1,347,860

157,025
157,025

10,000

10,000

45,775
45,775

335,775

891,625
114,292
1,005,917

1,005,917



City of Jackson
Schednle of Bxpenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

Fedderat Pass Through Current Your
CFDA Grantor : Pederal
Federal Agency/Program Nuber Nusuher Expenditures
Title XX-Social Services Block Grant
(Central MS Planning and Development District - Pags Through)
Tranagrottation 93,667 396-F-25 128,772
Home Delivered Meals {Non-cagh) 93,567 396-F-25 97,938
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 93.667 226,710
" TOTAL US, DEPARTMENT OF HEALTILAND MUMAN SERVICES 1445427
Coarporation for Natlonn] and Community Service
Mississippi Cornmizsion for Veluntesr Service - Pass Through .
AMERICORPS 94,806 12AC109584 8,906
AMERICORPS D406 1TACI22587 209,300
SUBTOTAL CFDA MUMBER 54.006 218,206
TOTAL MISSISSIFEL COMMISSION FOR VOLUNTEER SERVICE 218,206
U.8, Office of Nationat Drug Contrel Pelicy
{MS Gulf Coast HIDTA ~ Pass Throngh) ) .
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area (HIDTA} 95,001 G10GCH003A 781
High Intensity Brug Yrafficking Area (HIDTA) 95.001 . GHIGCe003A 4,019
High Intensity Drug Trafficking Area JIIDTA} 95.001 G12GCA003A 6,236
11,036
TOTAL U.8. OFFICT OF NATIONAL DRUG CONTROL POLICY 11,036
LS. Department of Homeland Security
Missiasippl Bmerganey Managoment Agency (Pass-Through)
Tigaster Grants - Pablic Assistance 97,036 W 03350 112,320
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 97.036 112,320
Mississippi Emergency Management Agency (Pass-Through)
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 DoMM22] 295,939
Homeland Security Grant Program . 97.067 16CC1 2,061
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 HHS221T §22
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 HIHS221T2 7050
Homeland Seeurity Grant Program . 97,067 118221 14,670
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 AUHSZNT 55,248
Homelard Seeurity Grant Program 97.067 HOLE221S 8,639
Homeland Seeurity Grant Program Y1067 HLEX 9,917
Homeland Security Grant Program 97067 10LE22 56,793
SUBTOTAL CFDA NUMBER 97.067 : 451,139
TOTAL US. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 1 563,459
TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS $ 16,492,183
1.5, Department of Housing and Urban Deyelopment
The City of Jackson has the following loans payable to the
11.5. Repastment of Housing nnd Urban Development at September 30, 2012
The fiunds were used to siimulate renewal and economie development
activities in the Capital Center Development Area
Community Development Block Grant - Section 108 Loan Guarantees
variable/fixed rate note dated September 15, 2008 14.24% B-07-MC-28-0003 $ 6,888,731
TOFTAL V.S, DEPARTMENT OF FIOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 3 6,888,731
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GITY OF JACKSON
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the Year Ended September 30, 2012

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal grant activity of
the City of Jackson and is presenied on the accrual basis of accounting. The information in this
scheduie is presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Siale,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in thig
schedule may differ from amounis presented in, or used in the preparation of, the general-purpose
financial statements.

NOTE 2 - CONTINGENCY

The City has responsibifity for expending grant funds in accordance with specific instructions from its
funding sources. Any deficits resulting from over expenditures andfor questioned cosis are the
responsibilily of the City.

Any unexpended grant funds at the end of the grant period may be refundable or carried over to the
following period at the discretion of the funding sources. Notwithstanding the audits by independent
certified public accounianis, all costs included in this report remain subject to audit by the agencies
providing financial support within the limits of the Single Audit Act of 1996, as amended. The
determination as to whether costs will be allowable or unallowable under the grants will be made by
representatives of the funding sources having authority to make and enforce contracts.

NOTE 3 - SUB-RECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the City of Jackson provided federal
awards to sub recipients as follows:

Amount Provided

Program Title Federal CFDA Number to Sub-recipients
Housing Opportunities for Persons
With Aids’ 14.241 $1,100,884
Home Investment Partnership
Program 14.239 44,653
Community Development Black .
Grant - Entitlement Grards 14.218 383,662
Homeless Prevention and Rapid Re-housing
Program — ARRA 14.257 136,900
Emergency Solutions Grant Grant 14.231 108,673
Total $1.775572
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NOTE 4 — LOAN AND LOAN GUARANTEES

In accordance with OMB Circular A-133, loans and loan guarantees include new loans made during
the year, plus prior year loans for which the federal government imposes continuing compliance
requirements.
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BANKS, FINLEY,
WHITE & CO.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT GOULD HAVE
A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

The Honorable Mayor Harvey Johnson, Jr.
and Honorable Members of The City Gouncil
Jackson, Mississippi

Compliance

We have audited the City of Jackson, Mississippi's {the City) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
tnaterial effect on each of the City of Jackson, Mississippi's major federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2012. City of Jackson, Mississippi’s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditor's resulis section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance .
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of City of Jackson, Mississippl's management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on the City of Jackson, Mississippl's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the.
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Goverrment Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred fo above that could have a direct and material effect
on g major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on # test basis, evidence about the
City of Jackson, Mississippi's cornpliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures
as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis
for our opinfon. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the City of Jackson, Mississippi's
compliance with those requirements.

As described in items 2012-2 through 2012-6 in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs, City of Jackson, Mississippi did not comply with requirements regarding Davis-Bacon Act,
Reporting and Sub-Recipient Monitoring that are applicable to its Home Investment Partnership
Program,, Housing Opportunities for Persons with Aids Grant, Public Safety Partnership Grant and
Community Development Block Grant-Neighborhoed Stabilization Program Grant. Compliance with such
requiraments is necessary, in aur opinion, for City of Jackson, Mississippi to comply with the requirements
applicable to those programs.

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance describad in the preceding paragraph, the City of Jackson,
Misgissippi complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that
could have a direct and materiai effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
Septermmber 30, 2012,

308 HIGHLAND PARK COVE » RIDGELAND, MS 38157  (601) 353-5423 » FAX (601) 353-542¢
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Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the City of Jackson, Mississippi is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal condrol over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, confracts and grants
applicable to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Jackson,
Mississippi's internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and materiai
effect on a major federal program o determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our
opinicn on compliance and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circutar A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal contral
over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City of Jackson,
Mississippi's infernal conirol over compliance.

A deficiency in internal confrof over compliance exists when the design or operation of a gontrol over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness In internal confrol over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencias, in internal conlrol over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of & federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal conirol over compliance

- that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance
that all deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses have been Kentified. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance fhat we consider to be material weaknessas,
as defined above.

A signiiicant deficiency in internal conirol over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in infernal control over compliance, yet important
enough to merit attention by those charged with govemnance. We consider the deficiencies in internal
confrol over compliance described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as
iterns 2012-2 thru 2012-8 1o be significant deficiencies.

City of Jackson, Mississippi's responses io the findings identified in our audit are described in the
accompanying schadule of findings and questioned costs, We did not audit City of Jackson, Mississippi’s
responses and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the responses.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Mayor, City Councll, and management, others

within the organization, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entiies and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

’B@%Aa\ﬁ%m Co,

Ridgeland, Mississippi
May 3, 2013
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
Sehedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Section 1: Summary of Auditor's Results

1. Type of auditor's report issued on the basic financial statements, ' Unqualified
2. Material noncomp!iance relating to the financial siateﬁents. : MNone
KR | Internal control over financial reporting:
a. Material weaknesses identifled? Yes
b. Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material

weaknesses? _ None

+aderal Awards:
4, Type of auditor's report issued on compliance with major federal programs:
Unqgualified for all major programs except for Home Investment Partnership Program, Housing

Opportunities for Persons with Aids Grant, Community Development Block Grant, Public Safety
Partnership Grant and Community Development Block Grant — Neighborhood Stabilization

Program.
5. Intemal conirol over major programs:
a. Material weaknssses identified? None
b, Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered to be material
weaknesses? Yes
8, Any audit findings reported as required by Section __510(a) of OMB Circular A~1337 Yes
7. Federal programs identified as major programs.

Community Development Block Grant Entitterent Grants Cluster:
CFDA #14.218 - U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Community Development Block Grant
CFDA #14.253 - U, 8, Department of Housing and Urhan Development
ARRA ~ Community Development Block Grant
Home Invesiment Partnership Program:
CFDA #14.239 - U. 8. Department of Housing and Urban Development
Housing Opportunities for Persons with AIDS:

CFDA #14.241 - U, S, Department of Housing and Urban Development
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPP]
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Federal programs identified as major programs: {continued)
JAG Program Cluster:
QFDA #14.738 - U, 8. Department of Justice

Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program
CFDA#16.804 - 1. 8. Department of Justice
Edward Byrme Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program -~ ARRA
Assistance Discretionary Grants Program

Public Safety Parinership & Community Policing Grant
CFDA #16.710 - U. S, Department of Justice

Federal Transit Cluster:
CFDA #20.500 - U.S. Depariment of Transportation
Faderal Transit Capital Investment Grants
CFDA #20.507 - U.8. Department of Transportation
Federal Transit Formula Grants
Highway Planning & Construction Clﬁster:
CFDA #20.205 - U. 8. Department of Transportation
Highway Planning and Construction

Energy Efficiency and Consarvation Block Grant Program:
CFDA #81,128 — U, 8, Department of Energy

8. The dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $494,765

9. The City of Jacksen did not qualify as a low-risk auditee.

Section 2: Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Audit

PAYROLL CHANGES IN PERSONNEL FILES
Finding 2012-1
Finding Type: Material Weakness

Statement of Condition

Our audit testing of payroll transactions revealed that in 24 out of 40 personnel files tested, adequate
docurmentation was not available in the personnel file to support the current pay rate of some employees.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Caosts
Yeat Ended September 30, 2012

Cause of Condition

Failure to follow established procedures for personnel pay rate changes.

Effect of Condition

Tha employee’s current salary pay rate could not be verified with supporting documentation in the
personnel file,

Criteria

The requirements of the City of Jackson Department of Personnel and Management's Employee
Handbook Section 7.1.1 — states “The Department of Personnel Management shafl maintain records
showing administrative actions including records of employment history of each employee, performance
evaluation records and related files and correspondence. In addition, the Department of Personnel
Management shall prepare, maintaln and presetve records on the wages, hours and other conditions and
practices of employment of all City employees.”

Auditor's Recommendation

The City should strengthen internal administrative controls to ensure that the personnel department
updates all changes in an employee's wages and documents these changes in the employee’s personnel
file so that, at any point in time, the employee’s current salary can be verified.

Section 3: Major Federal Awards Program Findings and Questioned Cosis

Finding 2012-2 — SUB RECIPIENT MONITORING
Finding Type: Significant Deficiency

Grant Program/CFDA#: Home investment Parinership Program/ 14.239

Statement of Gondition

The City of Jackson is reguired to monitor the performance of HOME sub recipients against goals and
performance standards and in our review of sub recipient monitoring reports, the City did not provide us a
monitoring report for one {1) sub recipient that was pald during FY 2012,
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Cause of Condition

L.ack of compiiance with established policies and procedures.

Effect of Condition

The sub-recipient monitoring report was not provided for review.

Criteria

Pursuant to the requirements of OMB Circular A-133 Part Il Subpart C ~ Auditees, paragraph.300, which
states that applicants will establish and maintain internal control over Federal Programs that provide
ressonable assurances that the auditee is managing federal awards in compliance with laws, regulations,
and the provisions of contracts or grant agreements that could have a material effect on each of Its
Federal Programs.

Audiior's Recommendation

The City should strengthen internal administrative control procedures to ensure that sub recipients are
being monitored within the prescribed time petiod.

Finding 2012-3 — DAVIS-BACON ACT
Finding Type: Significant Deficiency

Grant Program/CFDA#: Communlty Bevelopment Block Grants/ 14.218

Statement of Condition

Eubank Greek Drainage Project

The City did not comply with the Davis-Bacon Act requirement that certified payroll reports be submitied

on a wesekly basis by confractors andfor subcontractors working on federal financed construction
contracts in excess of $2,000.

Cause of Condition

Lack of compliance with established policies and procedures.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Effect of Condition

The City did not ensure that weekly certified payrolls were submitted by contractors on the federally
financed project. :

Criteria

The Davis-Bacon Act requires that all contracters and subcontractors performing on federal contracts
{and contractors or subcontractors performing on federally assisted contracts under the related Acts} in
axcass of $2,000 pay their laborers and mechanics not less than the prevalling wage rafes and fringe
benefits listed in the contract's Davis-Bacon wage determination for corresponding classes of laborers
and mechanics employed on similar projects in the area. Davis-Bacon labor standards clauses must be
included in covered contracts,

Each covered contractor and subcontractor must, on a weekly basis, provide the federal agency a copy of
all payrolls providing the information listed above under "Recordkeeping” for the preceding weekly payroll
petiod, Each payroll submitted must be accompanied by a “Statement of Compliance.” The contractor,
subcontractor or the authorlzed officer or employee of the contracior or subcontractor who supervises the
payment of wages must sign the weekly statement.

Auditor's Recommendation

We recommend that the City strengthen internal administrative control procedures to ensure that they
comply with Davis-Bacon compliance requirements on federally financed consfruction projects,

Finding 2012-4 ~ REPORTING
Finding Type: Significant Deficiency

Grant Program/CFDA#: Community Development Block Grant — Nelghborhood Stabilization
Program{14.218

Statemnent of Condition

During our review of Performance Reporting, we noted that the City did not submit 2 out of 4 reports in a
imely manner.

Cause of Condition

The person responstble for preparing and submitling the guarterly reporis was away from work when the
reports were due causing the reports to be submitted late.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Effect of Condifion

Noncompliance with the Housing and Urban Development, Disaster Recovery Grant Reporfing Manual
Guide, May 9, 2011 7.2 Release.

Ciiteria

Per HUD's Disaster Recovery Grant Reporting Manual Guide, May 9, 2011, 7.2 Release, Quarterly
Performance Reports are due within thirty days after the end of the quarter.

Auditor's Recommendation

We recommend that the City strengthen internal administrative control procedures fo enstre that the
Quarterly Performance Reporis are completed and submitted in a timely manner.

Finding 2012-5 — REPORTING
Finding Type: Significant Deficiency

Grant Program/CFDA#: Public Safety Partnership Grant A6.710

Statement of Condition

The Cily did not provide the COPS Annual Progress Report to the Department of Justice in a timely
manner, )

Cause of Condition

l.ack of compliance with grant terms

Effect of Condition

| The Cily is not in compliance with the grant reporting requ.irements,
Criteria

According to the COPS Hiring Pregram contract agreement, the City is required fo submit the Department
Annual Progress Report at least once a year during the life of the grant to the U.S. Department of Justice.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSiSSIPPI
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Cosfs
Year Ended September 30, 2012

Auditor's Recommendation

We recommend that the Cily strengthen Internal administrative control procedures fo ensure that the
required reports are completed and submitted in a timely manner.

Finding 2012-6 — REPORTING
Finding Type: Significant Deficiency

Grant Program/CFDA#. Community Development Block Grants/ 14.218, Housing Opportunities
For Persons With Aids/14.241

Statement of Condition

During our review of the Sub award Reporting under the Transparency Act, we noted that the City had not
reported the required sub recipient/subcontractor information in the Funding Accountability and
Transparency Sub award Reporting System (FSRS),

Cause of Condition

City persannel failed to comply with reporting requirements,

Effect of Condition

Noncompliance with the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (Pub. L. No. 109-282)
(Transparency Act), as amended by Section 6202{(a} of the Government Funding Transparency Act of
2008 (Pub L. No. 111-252),

Criteria

Under the Federal Funding Accountabllity and Transparency Act (Pub. L. No. 108-282) (Transparency
Act}, as amended by Section 6202(a) of the Government Funding Transparency Act of 2008 {Pub L. No.
111-252), a direct recipient of grants or cooperalive agreements who were awarded $25,000 or more
(effective 10/1/10) and who make first-fier sub awards and a prime condractor thal award first-tier
subcontracts, must report any newly awarded subcontract of $25,000 or more to FSRS,

Auditor's Recommendation

We recommend that the City strengthen internal administrative control procedures to ensure that they
comply with the requirements of the Funding Accountability and Transparency Sub award Reporting.
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CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPI
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

20411 FINDING NO. 1 ~ SECTION 2
Condition: Our audit testing of payroll transactions ravealed that adequate documentation was not
available to support the employees’ current pay rate.

Current $iatus: Not Gorrecled, repeated ag finding 20121

20112 FINDING NO. 2 - SECTION 3

Conditlon: During our audit, we noted that there were no formal procedures in the City's Public Works
Depariment for requesting reimbursement of grant expenditures and that the current practice has
contributed to the requesting of reimbursements near the end of projects or near the end of the City's
fiseal year.

Gurrent Status: Corrected

2011-3 FINDING NO, 3 ~-SECTION 2

Condifion: During the suspension and debarmant testing, we noted that the City entered nfo three {3)
contracts for goods andfor services for an amount equal to or exceeding $25,000 and four {(4) sub-
recipient contracts in which no documentation was maintained 1o support the fact that the conbractor or -
sub-recipient had not been suspended or debarred or otherwise excluded from receiving the contract.

Current Sfatus: Corrected

2011-4 FINDING NO. 4 - SECTION 3

Conditian: A review of sub recipient monitoring reports and audit reports revealed ten (10} Instances in
which sub recipient audit reports were not submitted within 180 days after the fiscal year end,

Gurrent Status: Correcled

152



: CITY OF JACKSON, MISSISSIPPE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS (Continued)
~ YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

2011-5 FINDING NO. 5~ SECTION 3

Condition: During the sub reciplent maonitoring fost of the Home Investment Partnership Program, we
noted that the Cily did not ensure that sub recipient's audit reports were submitted within 180 days of
their fiscal year end as required in the sub-grantes agreement.

Current Status: Not _corrected, repeated as Finding 2012»3-

2011-6 FINDING NO, 6~ SECTION 3

Condition: During the sub recipient monitoring test of the Edward Bymes Memorial Justice Assistance
Grant — ARRA, we noted that the City did not request and review the audit report of their sub-grantee.

Current 8tatus: Corrected
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200 Scuth President Streot
Post Office Box 17
Jackson, Mississippi 39205-6017

Department of Administration

Harvey Johason, Jr.
Mayar of the Chry of Jackson

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
05/03113

U.S. DEPARTIMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
The City of Jackson respectfu.liy subrmits the following correctiva aclion plan for the year ended

September 30, 2012.

Name and address of independent public accounting firm: Banks, Finley, White & Company
308 Highland Park Cove, Ridgeland, MS 39157 -

Audit period:  Year Ended September 30, 2012

The findings from the September 30, 2012 schedule of findings and questioned costs are discussed
below. The findings are numbered consistently with the numbers assigned in the schedule, Section 1 of
the schedule, Summary of Audit Resuits, does not include findings and s not addressed.

2. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
Finding No. 2012-1 PAYROLL CHANGES IN PERSONNEL FILES

Recommendation: The Cily should strengthen infernal administrative controls fo ensure that
the personnel department updates all changes In an employee’s wages and documants these
changes in the employee’s personnel flle so that, at any point in time, the employee's current
salary can be verified. ,

Action Taken:. The City has approved several cost of living pay increases that may not be
reflected in an employes’s file unfess that employee has had some fype of personnel action fo
oceur which requires a PER-3 form, which is the necessary required documentation of that
personnel action where it would reflect an employee’s current salary at that ime.  The two (2)
cost of living Increases are as follows:

Effective 10/01/2008, the City approved a $50/monihy cost of living pay increase for current and
future employees and a $100.00/month cost of living pay increase for current and future sworn
police officers and firefighters.

Effsctive 01/01/2012, the City approved a $79.18/month cost of living pay increase for curent
and future school crossing guards, for current and future permanent and full-ime employees, and
for current and future permanent parf-ime employees. Excluded from the approved pay
adjustments were Senior aldes, Americorps trainees, elected officials, interns, and other
temporary part-fime classifications.

Personnel will include in each employee’s personnel folder a memorandum explaining the salary
variance.
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3. FINDINGS ~ MAJOR FEDERAL AWARDS PROGRAM FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Finding 2012-2 — SUB RECIPIENT MONITORING
Grant Program/CFDA#: Home Investment Partnership Program/ 14.239

Recommendation: The City should strengthen internal administrative control proceduras to
ensure that sub recipients are being monitored within the prescribed time period.

Action Taken: Paymenis made to the sub recipient were not for any costs incurred during fiscal

- year 2012, but pertained to the prior fiscal year before the Home Program was suspended.
During fiscal year 2012, the Home Program was reactivated and activities have resumed. As a
condition of our HUD monitoring, all paymenis had to be pre-approved by HUD, which delayed
the payments for this fiscal year. Home Program sub recipient monitoring has resumed in
compliance with the Clty's Subgrantee Monitoring Plan. In the future, the City of Jackson will
ensure that all sub recipients are monitered annually.

Finding 2012-3 —~ DAVIS-BACON ACT

Grant Program/CFDAKE: Gommunity Development Block Grants / 14.218
Recommendation:  We recommend that the City strengthen internal administrative conlrol
procedures to ensure that sub-reciplents submit audit reporis within the prescribed time period as
noted in the sub-grantee agreement.

Action Takern: In the future, the City will require the submittal of certified payroli from contract
inception fo contract closeout even during periods when no payroll is reportabie for the project,

Finding 2012-4 — REPORTING

Grant Program/CFDA#: Community Development Block Grants — Neighborhoed
Stabiilzation Program / 14.218

Recommendation: We recommend that the City strengthen internal adminisirative control
procedures to ensure that the Quarterly Performance Reports are completed and submitted in a
timely manner.

Actlon Taken: The City of Jackson's Neighborhood Stabilization Representative notified the

HUD office and racelived permission to submit the two late NSP reports. The HUD representative
gave a verbal approval of the late submissions and the reports were approved.

Finding 2012-5 — REPORTING
Grant Program/CFDA#: Public Safety Partnership Grant /16.710

Recommendation: We recommend that the Cily strengthen internal administrative control
procedures to ensure that the required reports are completed and submitted in a timely manner.
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Action Taken: To ensure timely compiiance with all grant reports, the City of Jackson Paolice
Department has Implemeanted internal procedures for grant tracking atid reporting.

Finding 2012-6 - REPORTING

Grant Program/CFDA#: Community Development Block Grants / 14.218, Housing
Opportunities For Persons With Aids / 14.241

Recommendation: We recommend that the City strengthen internal administrative control
procedures to ensure that they comply with the requirements of the Funding Accountability and
Transparency Sub award Reporting.

Action Taken: It is the intent of the Cily fo slrengthen iis interhal administrative control

procedures by establishing a system that will ensure that the City is in compliance with the
Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act,

If the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has questions regarding this plan,
please cali me at (601) 960-2209,

Sincerely yours,

\-Qeﬂ - &"g-\_/
ee A, Unger,

Director of Administration

156



BANKS, FINLEY,
WHITE & CO.

CERTHFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH
STATE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the Honorable Mayor Harvey Johnson, Jr., and
Honorable Members of the City Gouncil
City of Jackson, Mississippt

We have audited the financial statements of the Gity of Jackson, Mississippl (the City) as of and for
the year ended September 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated May 3, 2013. We
conducted our audit in accordance auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards.

As required by the state legal compliance audit program prescribed by the Office of the State
Audifor, we have aiso performed procedures fo test compliance with cerain state laws and
regulations. However, providing an opinion on compliance with state laws and regulations was not
an objactive of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

With respect to the items fested, the results of those procedures and our audit of the financial
statements disclosed no instances of non-compliance with state laws and regulations.

This report is infended solsiy for the information of the Mayor, City Council, management others
within the organization, Office of the State Auditor and federal awarding agencies and pass-through

entities and Is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified
parties.

Bl W73 C.

Ridgeland, Mississippi
May 3, 2013

308 HIGHLAND PARK COVE » RIDGELAND, MS 39157 » (601) 353-5423 « FAX (801) 353-5426
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SUPPLEMENTAL DATA



GITY OF JACKSON
SCHEDULE OF BONDS OF CITY GFFICIALS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2012

1) Company: Porter's Insurance Agency

Limits of liability: Honesly Blanket
Posltion Bond Coverage

Posilion Coverage per each Term of bond

At emplayees except City Counall {7) $100,000 03/28/11 - Indefinke
Mayor, City Administrative Officer,
Director of Administration, Chief of Palice,
Deputy Chief of Police, City Clerk,

Deputy Clerk (10)

2) Company: Siatewide Generat Insurance
Litnits of Hability: Surefy Bond coverage as follows:

Positlon Coverage per each Term of bond

City Councii {7} . $100,000 02447111 - D7706M13
Mayor $100,000 0770112 - 07/01M3
Clty Administrative Officer $50,000 03/29/12 - 03/29M13
Assistant Chief Administrative Officer $50,000 03/20/12 - 0372913
City Clerk .$50,000 G47/16M2 - 041513
Director of Administration $50,000 05/01M12 - 05/01/13
Chlef of Police $50,000 0102112 < 0440213
Assistant Police Chief $50,000 qri20M12 - 0712013 '{
Deputy Ghief of Police $50,000 Q2724112 - 05M113
Asasistant City Glerk $50,000 as10/12 - 65M110/13
Deputy Clerk (10} $50,000 02/26M2 - 09/04113
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